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ABOUT THE REPORT

OUR REPORTING 
APPROACH

REPORTING PERIOD

SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

MATERIALITY

This is the Second integrated report of 
Tata Steel Mining Limited (TSML).The 
report reflects our integrated thinking and 
approach to value creation. It provides 
a holistic view of our financial and non-
financial performance, strategy show 
casing our value creation process to our 
stakeholders.

The report contains information from 01 
April 2021 to 31 March 2022.

This report presents an overview of the 
Company’s performance of Sukinda, 
Saruabil and Kamarda Mines, Ferro Alloys 
manufacturing plant at Anantapur, 
Athagarh, Corporate office and activities of 
sales and marketing offices.

This integrated report contains 
both financial and non- financial 
information of our business, 
organizational strategy, important 
risks, stakeholder issues and 
management response to mitigate 
those issues. Further, this report 
also present the impact and use of 
the Six Capitals on our strategy and 
business model.

STANDARDS AND 
FRAMEWORKS

RESPONSIBILITY

The Report is prepared in accordance 
with the Integrated Reporting 
framework prescribed by the Value 
Reporting Foundation, formed following 
the merger of the International 
Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) and 
the Sustainability Acconting Standards 
Board (SASB)

ASSURANCE 
Assurance on financial statements has 
been provided by independent auditors 
of Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered 
Accountants LLP  and on non-financial 
statements by Bureau Veritas (BV) as per 
International Standard on Assurance 
Engagements (ISAE) 3000.

The information contained in this 
Integrated report are overviewed by 
Senior executives of the Company. The 
Management assures integrity of the 
information presented in this report.

KEY HIGHLIGHTS

Environment

Total revenue 

of renewable 
energy sourced

Recycling of 
onsite process 
water

48376MWh

Social

of overall behavioral, 
functional and 
managerial training to 
employees

70004hours
Lives impacted 
through CSR 
programmes

67901

100%

Financial

EBIDTA

`4605 Cr

`(1100.69)Cr

Operational

Chrome ore 
production 

Ferro chrome 
production 

17.85LT

3.73 LT

Commercial

Chrome ore 
sales

Ferro chrome 
sales

4.34LT

3.71LT



SUSTAINABLE MINING FOR A BETTER 
TOMORROW

Purpose-driven 

We are committed to transforming natural resources sustainably 
for a better tomorrow. We believe we are providing the raw 
materials that serve as building blocks for human progress 
towards a sustainable future. We thus strive to ensure that 
valuable minerals are extracted in a scientific manner and 
transformed suitably by our Company and its partners or 
by its customers for the greater good of society. We are also 
transforming the way mining is done by bringing in new 
technology, mineral conservation, sustainability, and greater focus 
on care for the community and safety. Sustainability is integrated 
in all our business endeavours and decisions. We also promote 
sustainable practices among all our stakeholders. 

Determined 

Despite the challenging MDPA targets, we have managed to 
successfully scale them up for all the three mines. We also ramped 
up our ferro chrome production capacities to 373 KT in FY’22 and 
further increasing it over 420 KT in FY’23. We partnered with six 
ferro processing centres and ramping up the production from our 
new acquisition of Rohit Ferro Tech, increased utilisation of key 
assets, introduced digitalisation for faster turnaround and brought 
to play the diverse expertise of our team members. All this while 
incorporating industry best practices into the management of 
safety, health, environment and sustainability. 

Committed 

Our new journey has enabled us to implement a robust and 
sustainable business model. In keeping with the spirit of 
‘Atmanirbhar Bharat’, we are expanding our domestic business 
of ferro alloys while forging a deeper connect with our global 
customers. Our impactful community initiatives in the vicinity of 
our operations reaffirm our standing as a responsible corporate 
citizen. We continue to minimise our environmental footprint 
through strict monitoring of our carbon emission intensity, 
effluent discharge levels and solid waste generation. 

Delivering excellence 

We believe in delivering excellence at every level of our 
operations. We thus lay special emphasis on learning and sharing 
of knowledge. We design our processes and systems to support 
innovation and improvement. Thus we are able to increase 
customer satisfaction and enhance stakeholders’ experience while 
reducing cost and increasing profitability. In our new journey, 
we intend to amalgamate data, carry out deep analysis to draw 
insights and carry out activities the right way. 

One TSML culture 

We are inspired by our people. We have inducted 100+ new 
employees and look forward to fostering a close bond with and 
between our employees so that they are able to take forward the 
purpose and vision of the Company. We encourage our teams 
to take initiatives to improve our operations. We create for them 
an enabling and supportive work environment through our 
commitment to diversity and inclusion, and to the health and 
safety of the entire TSML family. 

We have just started our journey. Consistent with Tata Steel’s 
values and our commitment, capability and collaboration, we 
believe that we can create a better tomorrow for our stakeholders 
and our planet.

Starting from mining to making ferro chrome, managing the supply chain and 
associated processes, we serve our esteemed customers both innational and 
international markets. Our operations leverage our parent company’smining 
expertise and long-standing position in the chrome business. We are 
buildingon our mining expertise and deep connect with our customers to 
grow the businessand infuse it with our new-found vigour and focus.

WELCOME TO OUR WORLD
CORPORATE IDENTITY

Tata Steel Mining is among the leading players in chrome ore mining and the ferro alloys business in India. We are a 100% subsidiary 
of Tata Steel Limited. We are using our domain expertise in mining and alloy making, innovation capabilities and sustainability focus 
to transform mining while involving all our stakeholders in our journey towards long-term value creation.

Integrity; 
Responsibility;

Excellence; Pioneering;
Unity; Zero Harm

Our Values

Transforming 
Natural Resources 
Sustainably for a 
Better Tomorrow.

Domain knowledge and 
expertise in mining – 
planning, operations and 
regulatory

Domain knowledge and 
expertise in ferro alloys 
manufacturing

Strong relationship with 
premier global customers

Passionate people from 
diverse backgrounds and 
expertise

Culture of continuous 
improvement and business 
excellence

Strong relationship and connect with stakeholders, especially 
host community around the mines and plants

Supply chain capabilities for 
timely order fulfilment for 
customers in domestic and 
international markets

Using partner plants in an 
asset-light business
model

Our Purpose

To be The Most 
Respected and 

Valuable Mining 
Company in India.

Our Vision

Chrome ore mining
(Ore production)

17.85LT 
Chrome ore mining 
(Total excavation)

100.33LCuM
Ferro alloy 
production

3.73LT 

Our Capacities

Our core strengths 
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VERSATILE DOWNSTREAM USES OF FERRO 
CHROME

ONE-YEAR MILESTONES

Ferro chrome is used in making stainless steel, which forms a part of our 
daily lives in many ways.

Smartwatches Infrastructure
Personal grooming

products Airport roofing

Smartphones Surgical tools Utensils Automobiles

AWARDS AND ACCOLADES

Sukinda Chromite Mines awarded as the Regional Winners of SHE Award 
at the 16th CII Safety Symposium and Exposition

Kalinga Environment Excellence Award 2021

• Successful conduction Public 
Hearing for Saruabil Mines and 
Kamarda Mines as part of fresh 
environmental clearance for 
expansion to 1 MTPA & 0.3 MTPA 
respectively.

• TSML launched its Ferrochrome brand “IndiCrome” 
• TSML received the Geominetech VIBGYOR Excellence award for 

excellence in CSR and Environment .
• TSML received the Best CSR Excellence Award 2021 from World CSR Day .
• Started conversion and buyback of ferrochrome with Jindal Stainless Ltd. 
• Highest ever ferrochrome production of 34KT.

Oct’21

• Sukinda achieved the highest ever 
dispatch of ~142KT of chrome ore in a 
month.

• TSML started its 1st ever container export 
of Ferrochrome from Paradip Port.

Jan’22

• Commendation for 
Significant Achievement 
in Biodiversity by CII – ITC 
Sustainability Award 2021 in 
the area of Biodiversity.

Nov’21

• TSML was awarded the Golden 
Peacock Award for Sustainability for 
the year 2021.

• TSML was awarded “Energy and 
Environment Foundation Global CSR 
Award 2022” in Platinum Category.

• TSML was awarded the “Great Place to Work” 
certification from Great Place to Work® Institute.

• TSML has completed the Phase 1 of feasibility study 
of Oman Limestone project and started exploration 
drilling as part of Phase 2 (final stage) studies.

• The resolution plan submitted by TSML for 
acquiring control of Rohit Ferro-Tech, got 
approved by the NCLAT andRohit Ferro-
Tech become a 100% subsidiary of TSML 
on Apr’22.

• Tata Steel Mining 
celebrated completion of 
one year of operations as 
TSML Day in presence of 
TSL leadership team.

• TSML achieved highest 
ever monthly dispatch of 
Chrome ore.

• TSMLwas declared as the successful 
resolution applicant by the Committee 
of Creditors for acquisition of Rohit 
Ferro-Tech Limited on June 5, 2021.

• Saruabil & Kamarda mines met the 
annual MDPA (Mine Development and 
Production Agreement) ore production 
target of 1st year of operation.

• Ferro Alloy Plant, Athagarh of TSML awarded the 9th FICCI 
Safety Systems Excellence Silver Awards.

• TSML signed a MoU with Jindal Stainless to jointly mine the 
Chrome Ore locked up in the common boundary between 
their mines located in Sukinda.

• TSML signed sales contract with Nippon Steel Corporation, 
Japan for the first time for sale of 3500t of Ferro Chrome for 
its three Carbon Steel Plants for    the period Q2-Q4 FY22.

Jul’21May’21 Jun’21

Sep’21

• TSML has received the Aqua Excellence Award 2021 under the 
category of “Outstanding contribution towards the cause of 
Sustainability” from Aqua Excellence Award Jury.

• TSML won the Gandhalpada iron ore block in auction of mineral 
blocks by Odisha Govt. A high quality 300mt greenfield block 
having synergy with Kalamang iron ore block.

Dec’21

Feb’22Mar’22Apr’22
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PRESENCE IN STRATEGIC LOCATIONS
OUR FOOTPRINT

Footprint Locations

Head office Bhubaneswar, Odisha

Mines Sukinda Valley, Odisha

Plants Athagarh & Gopalpur, Odisha

Ferro Processing
Centre (FPC)

Six in Odisha, one in Chhattisgarh 
and one in Andhra Pradesh

Sales office Bombay, Delhi, Kolkata

Depot Bhiwandi, Nagpur, Faridabad

Distributors Rohit & Co. in Bombay & 
Ahmedabad, Lauls Ltd. in Delhi & 
NCR

Key customers Jindal Stainless, AIA Engineering, 
Rimjhim Ispat, Synergy Steel, SAIL, 
Viraj Profiles, Visa Steel, IMFA 

Ports Paradip, Vizag, Haldia, Nhava Sheva 
Port (Mumbai)

CFS partner Vizag, Paradip, Nhava Sheva Port 
(Mumbai)

Footprint Locations

Marketing Agents Tokyo, Seoul, Hong Kong, Shanghai, 
Chicago

Sourcing/Trading 
partners

Australia, China, Singapore, Europe

INDIA GLOBAL
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Dear Shareholders, 

I am pleased to write to you on the performance of Tata Steel Mining 
Limited (TSML) for the financial year FY’22. For the last two years, 
the world has been in the grip of a crisis in the form of COVID-19 
pandemic. The impact is there for all of us to seeand against this 
backdrop of disruption and loss, I am happy to see the spirit and 
resilience of our people and ourorganization in achieving full scale 
operations of our Chromite mines. 

FY’22 was a challenging one for the Company in many ways. 
Although, we have achieved our target as per the MDPA guidelines 
and the company produced 17.74 LT of Chrome ore and thereby 
produced 3.73 LT of Ferro Chrome, the Company posted a turnover 
of `4612.55 crores with EBIDTA Loss of `.1100.69 crore.

During the year, several measures were taken in the areas of 
Safety, Health & Environment. Suraksha Card (Connected Work 
Force) & E work Permit implementation was carried across all the 
unit. We successfully installed an ETP plant at Briquette unit of 
FAP Athagarh. We were also able to successfully conduct public 
hearing for Saruabil and Kamarda mines in a single day and signed 
MoU with JSL for common boundary mining to unlock potential 
resource of our Sukinda mines. 

FY’23 will be more challenging and team TSML need to work more 
diligently to turn things around for a better performance. Competing 
in this difficult time & improving bottom line are key imperatives 
for business success. Our focus will be towards ensuring safety and 

health of our employees, cost competitive operations, ramping up 
the ferro chrome capacities as well as expanding our business to 
new customers and markets. Technology and digitalisation along 
with innovation, have been our tools to improve efficiency and 
push for process improvements. 

After approval of the resolution plan submitted by TSML in FY’22 
for Rohit Ferro Tech Ltd (RFTL), TSML finally acquired RFTL in the 
beginning of FY’23. It will be a major challenge for us to start and 
ramp up the production of ferrochrome and stainless steel at RFTL 
while ensuring, that there is a transformation in safety standards in 
the new Plants as per TSML. Once fully operating, RFTL will help us 
in maximizing our ferrochrome production and will also enable us 
to delve in the new domain of stainless-steel industry.

I am confident that the management team, along with employees 
of TSML, will put extra efforts to sustain your Company’s proven 
excellence in all spheres – be it operational, environmental, social 
accountability and safety. The year ahead will pose more challenges 
and I am sure, we will be able to overcome these with commitment 
and focused efforts. 

I would like to thank all my fellow Board of Directors, all employees, 
shareholders, bankers, suppliers, customers, Government 
authorities and other stakeholders for their continued support 
during the year.

Your`s Sincerely

MAKING 
RESPONSIBLE 
PROGRESS

CHAIRMAN’S LETTER

Our focus will be towards
ensuring safety and health 
of our employees, cost 
competitive operations, 
ramping up the ferro chrome 
capacities as well as expanding 
our business to new customers 
and markets. Technology 
and digitalisation along with 
innovation, have been our tools 
to improve efficiency and push 
for process improvements.

Safety, Health & Environment. Suraksha Card 
(Connected Work Force) & E work Permit 
implementation was carried across all the 
unit. We successfully installed an ETP plant at 
Briquette unit of FAP Athagarh. We were also 
able to successfully conduct public hearing 
for Saruabil and Kamarda mines in a single 
day and signed MoU with JSL for common 
boundary mining to unlock potential 
resource of our Sukinda mines.

D B SUNDARA RAMAM
CHAIRMAN
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A SUSTAINABLE 
TODAY FOR 
A BETTER 
TOMORROW

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S 
MESSAGE

We look forward to building 
the future of TSML with sharply 
focused business verticals, best-
in-class technology enablement 
across the value chain and 
sustainability-first business 
practices from the beginning.

The financial year 2021-22 has been a challenging year for Tata 
Steel Mining Limited (TSML) and we worked as a team to overcome 
several obstacles that came our way in this year. We faced the 
2nd and 3rd wave of COVID-19,which brought irreparable loss 
to humanity and affected us and our near and dear ones and 
we maintained production at our Mines and Plants without any 
hindrance.Further, meeting compliance to MDPA targets set for our 
minesis a major challenge for us.  

For us, the safety and health of our employees and people working 
inside our units is our top priority, and we are committed to Zero 
Harm across all our locations. We have deployed safety systems like 
Connected Workforce and Suraksha Card,through which we are 
able to properly monitor their safety.

This financial year has been a pivotal year for TSML, which saw 
us consolidate our position as one of the largest ferrochrome 
producers in India and one of the top 10 producers of ferrochrome 
globally,reaching to allmajor national and international customers 
in various geographies. 

We have signed long term contracts with several major international 
and domestic stainless-steel producers thereby consolidating our 
position in the market.

We have successfully conducted Public Hearing for our Saruabil 
Mines and Kamarda Mines on a single day as part of fresh 
environmental clearance for expansion to 1 MTPA & 0.3 MTPA 
respectively, to meet future demand of chrome ore for our plants.

We have won the Gandhalpada iron ore block in auction and have 
also started the feasibility study of Oman Limestone project.

Our teamwork was further highlighted when we received our 
“IMS”and “Great Place to Work”certifications.

In our path towards sustainable mining, Water Audit for all units, 

Energy efficiency audit, Biodiversity assessments and many more 
have been initiated. 

As we embark on financial year 2022-23, we must all focus to 
take Tata Steel Mining successfully towardsthe “Vision” that we 
collectively decided on and deliver our promises to our stakeholders 
and at being a pioneer of sustainability transparency in the mining 
business.

Also, for our operations to function smoothly, reducing cost of 
operation is a top priority for us.We are regularly engaging with 
our vendors and customers to maintain a strong relationship for 
years to come. At the same time, we are working closely on more 
proactive engagement with our stakeholders. We are engaging 
with the Central and State Governments respectively and statutory 
bodies on various critical areas and we are confident that we will 
be able to make a positive stride in all the areas in the coming year. 
We are also engaging with various agencies for capacity growth 
in the Saruabil and Kamarda mines and getting the necessary 
environment and forest clearances. 

We have partnered with Tata Steel Foundation for various projects 
for the communities around us to have a positively influence on 
their livelihood.

We at TSML consider our employees as our most invaluable assets 
and we are building a talented and committed team with diverse 
backgrounds, which will significantly contribute to the wellbeing 
of the Company.

We will strive to secure the future of TSML with performance 
oriented and sustainable operations across all units, advancement 
in adoption of new technology and digital projects while also caring 
for our environment and the ecosystem, as we advocate“Mining for 
a Better Tomorrow”.

We have partnered with 
Tata Steel Foundation 
to connect and engage 
with the communities 
around our locations to 
positively impact their 
lives.

PANKAJ KUMAR SATIJA
MANAGING DIRECTOR 
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OUR VALUE CREATION FRAMEWORK
BUSINESS MODEL

CAPITAL INPUTS VALUE CREATION APPROACH OUTPUT OUTCOME

Financial capital
• Shareholders’ Funds (` lakh): 7,736.00

• Net Fixed Assets (` lakh): 32,186.00 

Financial capital
• Revenues (` lakh): 461255.41

• EBITDA Loss (` lakh):  -1,10,069 

Manufactured capital
• Mines: 3

• Own ferro alloys plant: 1

• TSL ferro alloys plant managed: 1

• Ferro Processing Centres (FPCs) onboarded: 6

• Total ferro chrome conversion capacity (KT): 450

Unit: All in numbers

Intellectual capital

• Cost saving (` crore): 100+

• No of Impact centre launched (Nos): 3

• No of Shikhar units (Nos): 11

• % of Coverage of people in improvement projects (%): 85

• TNo of projects yielded savings (Nos): 38

Intellectual capital
• No of technology projects running in collaboration with TSL R&D 

Technology Team (Nos): 14

• No of IT and Digital projects running in collaboration with Digital 
partners: 8

• No of Shikhar projects running (Nos): 72

Human capital

• Loss Time Injury (Nos): 1

• Health Index (Nos): 13.5

• Employees trained (Nos): 4000

• Skilled manpower (Nos): 2656

• Diversity - % women in the workforce (%): 2.71

• Diversity-% of women in TSML (%): 5.31

Human capital input
• Employees on roll (Nos): 452

• Total workforce (Nos):  4,065 

• Spend on training and development (`): 13,46,181

• Employee training (hours):  70,004 

Social and relationship capital
• No of customers onboarded - ore (Nos): 10

• No of customers onboarded - dom (Nos): 11

• No of customers onboarded - export (Nos): 16

• No of overseas partners (Nos): 3

• No of distributors (Nos): 2

• No of key vendors/ vendors onboarded (Nos): 70

Social and relationship capital

• No. of customers with long-term contracts: 13

• Sized products sales/ Value added sales (MT):  75,858

• Repeat customers (Nos): 20

• Customer complaints (Nos): 6

• Suppliers covered under on-line meet (Nos): 120

• Lives touched (through CSR initiatives) (Nos): 67,901

Natural capital input

Plant Mines

Energy intensity 
(MWh/tonnes FeCr | KWhr/Cum)

3.57 0.903

Specific water consumption 
(KL/t FeCr | KL/Cum Excv)

2.38 0.93

Capital spend on environment
(` crore)

10.6 5.5

Natural capital outcome

Plant Mines

Solid waste utilisation (%) 100(Gopalpur)
100 (Sukinda)
45 (Athagarh)

100

GHG emission intensity
( tCO2e/tFeCr | Kg CO2e/ 
Cum Excv)

3.75 5.22

Trees planted (Nos) 2,408  21,550 

Water Recycled (KL) 5,461 2,721,607

Air Quality (PM10) 64 59

Our purpose
Transforming 
natural resources 
sustainably for a 
better tomorrow

SO1
Leadership 
in chrome 
business

Strategic objectives

Strategic enablers

SE1
Engaged 
and high 
performing 
people

SO2
Drive 
profitability 
through 
focused cost 
management

SE2
Leadership in 
technology 
and 
innovation

SO3
Grow in new 
businesses

SE3
Foster ONE 
TSML culture

SO4
Leadership in 
sustainable 
mining

Our vision 
To be the most 
respected and 
valuable mining 
company in India

Total 
excavationLCuM

Ferro chrome 
production (LT)

Chrome ore 
production  (LT)

Chrome ore 
Sales (LT)

100.33

3.73 LT

17.85LT 

4.34LT

OUR 
VALUES

IntegrityZero Harm

Unity

Pioneering

Excellence

Responsibility
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SETTING GOALS FOR SUSTAINABLE GROWTH
STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

We have identified four strategic objectives to meet our business and 
sustainability goals, while setting parameters to measure the outcomes. This 
goal-oriented strategy will not only help us become a performance-driven 
organisation, but also help us push ahead our larger sustainability agenda.

Strategic objectives

Strategic 
objectives

Brief outline Objective details
Key performance 
indicators

Goals

SO1 Leadership in 
chrome business

Double the capacity of chrome business 
and become one of the most preferred 
vendors by providing benchmark quality 
products and services to customers

• Ferro chrome 
production capacity

• Chrome ore capacity

Emerge as #1 chrome 
ore and ferro chrome 
producer in India

SO2 Drive profitability 
through
focused cost 
management

Focus on best-in-class processes for 
operational efficiency, energy efficiency, 
supply chain and procurement optimisation

• ROIC

• Shikhar savings

Higher Return on
Invested Capital
(ROIC)

SO3 Grow in new 
businesses

Scale up our capabilities and capacities to 
multiply revenue momentum in identified 
new businesses

Revenue through new 
business streams

Emerge as Top 3
in India in new
businesses

SO4 Leadership in 
sustainable
mining

• Committed to Zero Harm to our 
people and planet. Grow the ambit of 
sustainable business practices in terms 
of CO2 emissions, water and energy 
consumption 

• Make the entire supply chain responsible 
and improve the quality of life of the 
communities we operate in

• Zero fatality Reduce 
carbon emission

• Reduce specific 
water and energy 
consumption

• Zero effluent discharge

• Zero Harm

• Lives covered

Strategic enablers
SE1 SE2 SE3

Engaged and high performing people Leadership in technology and innovation Foster ONE TSML culture

SO2 Develop engaged and high-
performing people by enabling best-in-
class work systems. Create diverse and 
inclusive teams and focus on structured 
learning and development programmes

Leverage technology and digital 
interventions in mining and ferro 
alloy making. Devise and implement a 
suitable innovation framework across the 
organisation and emerge as a technology 
leader in India

Build a culture of agility and collaboration. 
Develop an accountable and risk 
intelligent workforce
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DELIVERING ON STAKEHOLDER 
EXPECTATIONS

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We are constantly engaging with our stakeholders to understand their 
expectations and key requirements. This enables us to align our business 
objectives with their requirements and create win-win partnerships.

Stakeholders Relevance Requirements Key initiatives

Customers • Business sustenance/ 
growth

• Improvement in 
products

• Process innovation

• Consistent quality

• Compliance to orders - timely 
delivery

• Physical specifications

• Competitive pricing

• Service support

• Quality assurance at mines and at plants

• Measurement of delivery compliance

• Increase in sizing capacities

• Long-term contracting

• Technical support

Shareholders • Capital/fund 
generation

• Corporate 
governance

• Progress towards Purpose

• Financial performance alignment 
to strategy

• Wealth creation

• Enabling profitable growth

• Leveraging synergy and collaboration

Vendors • Production and 
delivery Growth

• Quality of materials/
services

• Transparency and hassle-free 
transactions

• Fair and sustainable business

• Timely payments and financing 
requirement

• Standard procurement processes

• Service-level agreements

• Regular vendor meets and platform for two-
way communication/Vendor relationship 
management

• Established confidence in payment cycle

Outsourced 
partners 
(MDOs and 
FPCs)

• Cost efficiency

• Process expertise

• Resource support

• Technical support

• Sustainable business

• Collaborative environment

• Timely payments

• Efficient contract management

• Regular review and capability development 
planning

• Established confidence in payment cycle

Employees • Taking TSML towards 
its vision

• Culture building

• Brand ambassadors

• Innovation

• Accomplish work of 
the organisation

• Career progression

• Agile and safe workplace

• Learning and growth 
opportunities

• Reward and recognition

• Quality of work life

• Inclusive workspace

• Promoting diversity

• Initiatives around Zero harm

• Inclusive workplace

• Gender neutral toilets

• Supporting high performance HR policies

• Organisation structure to drive career 
progression and job content

• Systematic training and development process for 
technical and management topics

• One TSML culture – enabling collaboration and 
agility

• Employee engagement through Shikhar projects

• Structured communication platforms such as 
monthly Baat Cheet by MD

Stakeholders Relevance Requirements Key initiatives

Community • Ensure business 
continuity and 
sustenance

• Tata philosophy

• Social license to 
operate

• Socio-economic development

• Livelihood opportunities

• Preservation of ethnic practices

• Support in health and education

• Rehabilitation and resettlement

• Activities in the area of education, health, 
livelihood, sports and culture, environment and 
rural development

• Participation of community in project selection

• Communications and engagements

Government 
and 
regulatory 
bodies

• Business continuity

• Industry discipline 
and governance 
structure

• Help in nation-
building

• Compliance with laws and 
regulations

• Revenue collection

• Contribution in case of national 
emergencies

• Mine production at MDPA terms

• Schematic mine development and sustainable 
mining

• Zero effluent discharge and compliance with all 
environment norms

• EVOLVE system to streamline all compliances

Media • Wider 
communication

• Matters of public 
interest

• Communicating news

• Sharing best practices

• Clarifying positions

• Advance information on key 
developments

• Media engagements

• Invitation to participate in events

• Regular updates on progress

Industry 
bodies

• Enabling ease of 
doing business

• Collaboration on best practices

• Enabling policy advocacy for 
benefit of industry

• Inputs for regulatory changes

• Participation in key roles to drive activities

• Help in formulating policies with our inputs

• Presentation in industry bodies to share best 
practices

Material issues
Materiality enables us to identify, prioritise, track and report the most important issues under economic and environment, social and 
governance (ESG) parameters that have a significant impact on our business.

We have been constantly working on improving and delivering on the ESG priorities identified by us through the findings of the 
pan-India materiality exercise that we conducted by TataSteel in FY 2018-19. The findings have been indicative of the future trends, 
potential business risks, and new business opportunities, and have been collated with inputs from stakeholders viz. customers, investors, 
suppliers, shipping and logistics partners, media, industry associations, government and regulatory bodies, employees including 
contract employees and union leaders and community representatives.

Economic Environmental Social Governance

• Business growth

• Long-term profitability

• Product quality

• Contribution to public 
exchequer

• Renewable and clean 
energy

• Waste management

• Water consumption

• Effluent discharge

• Energy efficiency

• Air pollution

• Supply chain sustainability

• CO2 emission

• Biodiversity

• Occupational safety and 
health (OSH)

• Labour relations

• Drinking water

• Local employment 
opportunities

• Talent retention

• Going beyond compliance 
and setting trends for 
future regulation

• Sustainability disclosures

• Technical knowledge 
transfer and capacity 
building for relevant 
partners

• Stakeholder engagement

• Technology, product and 
process innovation

• Responsible advocacy 
for the mining and alloys 
sector
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ENSURING ETHICAL BUSINESS CONDUCT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Over the years, we have built a strong organisational governance and ethics 
mechanism that helps us uphold the highest standards of accountability and run 
a tight ship in terms of compliance.

TSML Board constitutes nominees of its 
promoter company, Tata Steel limited. The 
Board comprises three Non-Independent & 
Non-Executive Director and one Managing 
Director (Executive). Managing Director 
is the senior executives of TSL having 
experience and expertise relevant to 
TSML’s business activities. 

Governance System

The Governance structure of the Company 
comprises Board & its Committees and 
other management team at operational 
level. The Board is the apex decision 
making authority and provides feedback 
and guidance on the performance of 
the Company and its Strategic Business 
Units through detailed discussions on 
operations, concern areas as well as 
growth plans. The Board of Directors 
maintains oversight over management 
performance and provides guidance to 
the management on strategic issues for 
protection of long-term interests of various 
stakeholders.

The Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) Committee the Board Formulate 
and recommend to the Board CSR Policy 
anddetailed CSR plan indicating activities 
and expenditure tobe incurred.

Company is committed to strict 
compliance of all applicable laws, 
regulations and codes of conduct.It has 
well defined Compliance Management 
System which mapped all relevant rules 
& regulations applicable to the Company. 
The Compliance system is strictly reviewed 
& monitored by the management. 

Corporate Ethics

Reaffirming to the core values 

and principles of Tata group, TSML 
havedeployed Tata Code of Conduct 
(TCoC) and ensures that all business 
transactions not only meet legal standards 
but also ethical standards set by the 
Group. All vendors, partners  ofTSML 
must also demonstrate theircommitment 
to the Tata Code of Conduct by signing 
it.Company believes in zero tolerance 
against violations of TCoC and all internal 
regulations framed in this regard. The 
company has also extended the POSH 
guidelines applicable to all employees to 
provide harassment free workplace for all 
people. 

Leadership engagement

Company have well defined governance 
structure for Management of Business 
Ethics. The Company has a designated 
Chief Ethics Counsellor who is assisted 
by Local Ethics coordinator. Company 
have a robust two-tier ethics governance 
structure, called Apex Ethics Committee 
and Ethics Committee.Apex Ethics 
Committee shall work on policies, 
focus on strategic issues and provide 
resources to establish and ensure effective 
functioning of ethics management system. 
Consequence Management System 
allows all stakeholders to report unethical 
conduct in line with violations of the Tata 
Code of Conduct, POSH and other policies. 
Complaints are reviewed by the Managing 
Director and periodically reported to the 
Board.

Besides above, Company has formed a 
four-member team of Internal Complaints 
Committee under POSH guidelines 
consisting of 50% female, an external 
independent member from non-
governmental organization (NGO). The 

committee is presided by senior female 
employee of the Company. 

Company also forms MOSAIC council to 
provide an inclusive workplace where each 
one is respected and can give their best to 
the organisation. 

Compliance Structure

Company have formulated various policies 
& procedures under TCoC for adherence of 
ethical behaviorand practices. The policies 
are formulated to guide the stakeholders 
for ethical conduct. The Company has in 
place the Ethics related policies such as 
Policy on Conflict of Interest, Policy on Gift 
and Hospitality, Whistle-blower Policy for 
Employees and Directors, Whistle-blower 
Policy for business associates, Whistle-
blower policy for protection of business 
associates, Anti-Bribery & Anti-Corruption 
Policy and Anti-Money laundering Policy 
etc. Company have also engaged third 

party whistle-blower hotline number to 
report any ethical concern.

Communication & Training

All the new joinees are imparted training 
on TCoC, POSH guidelines at the time 
of joining. Continuous training & 

communications on TCoC, POSH guidelines 
and ethics policies are being conducted. 
Besides above dialogues at various forums, 
celebration of ethics month and sharing 
of relevant policies, clauses pertaining to 
ethics to the vendors are being done at 
vendors meet.

Measurement of effectiveness

The effectiveness of ethics programme are 
measured by concern report & MBE Survey, 
MBE assessment. The feedback received is 
incorporated into the annual plan for MBE 
Deployment.

We have a well-defined governance 
structure for the management of 
business ethics. Apart from the 
Board oversight, we have a robust 
two-tier ethics governance structure 
– the Apex Ethics Committee and 
the Ethics Committee.
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BUILDING RESILIENCE AGAINST 
UNCERTAINTIES

RISK MANAGEMENT

Our robust and effective risk management system helps us identify, monitor 
and mitigate the risks that challenge business continuity and business growth, 
thereby ensuring that we meet our strategic objectives and deliver on our 
commitments to our stakeholders.

Key risks identification and description Mitigation strategies
Strategies 
deployed

Capital 
Impacted

Macroeconomic and market risk
More than 50% of our Ferro Chrome 
production is exported to Stainess Steel 
customers globally. Any slowdown/ 
downturn in stainless steel industry adversely 
impacts ferro chrome and chrome ore 
demand. The reductant used (Ultra low phos 
coke and Anthracite coal) in smelting process 
of ferro chrome production is also imported. 
Any geo political tensions, trade barriers and 
protectionist policies may affect the demand 
and prices. China, Indonesia and Japan are 
big consumers of ferro chrome, has a bigger 
impact to our sales if there is any geo-political 
isssues related to them. The multiple waves 
of COVID 19, global and local lockdowns also 
impacts the demand. 

Long term contracts with select customers and 
vendors are being formulated to give continuity and 
assurance to our esteemed customers. Alternate 
markets and sourcing vendors are being readied in 
case of any specific regions are affected.  In response 
to pandemic led lockdowns, our pan India customer 
base and global presence will help shifting sales to 
areas less affected by the pandemic with the objective 
of ramping up sales in line with the recovery in the 
market. 

SO1, SO2, 
SO3

Financial and 
Manufactured 
capital

Safety risk
TSML mines and Ferro chrome production 
plants are subjected to safety risks due to the 
nature of industry and material they are in. In 
addition, the COVID 19 pandemic poses risk 
to health and safety of our employees and 
partners

TSML is committed to “Zero harm” as one of the values 
of the company. Safety standards and best practices 
around safety leadership competency development, 
Process safety,  Contractor safety, Road safety and 
occupational health are being deployed. HIRA and 
emergency preparedness plans are strengthened 
through Integrated management system. Company 
has ensured 100% vaccination to its employees and 
vendors partners in response to COVID.

SO4 Human & 
Manufactured 
capital

Financial risk
Working Capital requirement of the company 
is increasing with the scale up of operations 
and Mine development plan agreement 
(MDPA) requirements. 
The Company is also exposed to currency 
volatility given ~ 50% of its alloy sales is in 
international markets.

Company is looking for additional manufacturing 
capacities to utilize ore production and reduce 
working capital. Meanwhile, company has credit lines 
to manage cash flow in the event of a need.
Company will be hedging its exposure under the 
guidance and expertise from parent company. 
Company is also enjoying natural hedging between its 
export & imports.

SO1, SO2, 
SO3

Financial 
capital

Operational risk
Unanticipated breakdown/equipment failures 
may lead to disruption in the operations

Preventive maintenance practices are being 
strengthened to improve plant and HEMM availability 
and reliability. Our strong quality assurance and daily 
management practices at plants enable early warning 
indication. On a long-term basis, we are also planning 
to adopt best-in-class practices and technology for 
early detection and protection of critical installations. 

SO1, SO2, 
SO3

Financial and 
Manufactured 
capital

Key risks identification and description Mitigation strategies
Strategies 
deployed

Capital 
Impacted

Community risk
Any issues in maintaining harmonious 
relationship with proximate communities 
may adversely impact business continuity 
and social license to operate.

The Company is responsible towards the local 
communities around its mining and manufacturing 
locations. Several initiatives and programs are being 
implemented with Tata Steel Foundation covering 
livelihood, health, education, sports & ethnicity 
and relief during urgencies. 'SABAL' initiative has 
been launched for people with disability. Focussed 
programs on women empowerment, health 
education, job preparation are designed to help 
commonuities facing various challenges. 

SO4 Social & 
Relationship 
Capital

Supply chain and commodity risk
Given the reductants (coal/coke) are 
imported, any supply chain disruptions and 
exchange rate fluctuations can escalate cost 
and hence can impact profitability. Ship and 
container issues during COVID 19 waves and 
unfavourable geo political conditions may 
interrupt our export and import.

The Company sources reductants through Tata Steel 
Group Procurement (TSGP), which consolidates the 
Tata Steel Group requirement and negotiates the best 
deal. TSGP has established a good balance of long 
term and spot buy which reduces impact of price 
fluctuations.
In addition, we are also working to identify common 
consumables across plants for consolidation of buy to 
further reduce the cost. Alternative sources are being 
managed to avoid sourcing risks. Necessary clauses 
are incorporated in vessel contracts to safeguard the 
Company’s interests in case of potential delays.

SO1, SO2, 
SO3

Financial and 
Manufactured 
capital

Environment risk
Non-compliance with the stringent 
environmental conditions and other 
regulatory provisions may lead to penalties, 
operational disruption and loss of reputation.

The company has a strong compliance management 
process for monitoring and managing various aspects 
of compliances. Our emissions are well within the 
norms and the company is focusing on resource 
conservation. Air quality, energy consumption, water 
management, GHG emission, solid waste generation 
are the focus areas for our company supported 
by several initiatives. The Company has identified 
sustainability framework and drawn 2030 targets for 
these key measurements.  The company is identifying 
and implementing signature initiatives for CO2 
emission reduction, energy conservation, and energy 
procurement from cleaner sources in collaboration 
with industry technology experts. Water audits and 
energy audits are being triggered across plants and 
mines.

SO1, SO2, 
SO3, SO4

Natural, Social 
& Relationship, 
Financial and 
Manufactured 
capital

Regulatory risk
The Company is exposed to stringent laws 
and regulations in the areas of mining, alloys 
manufactuiring such as environmental, forest, 
trade measures, competition and taxes, 
among others.
Any non-compliance to various laws and 
regulations can have consequences on the 
Company’s operations and can adversely 
impact reputation. The frequent changes in 
regulations and introduction of newer ones 
may make compliance more complex.

The Company is deeply committed to complying with 
existing laws and regulations and has a policy of zero 
tolerance to non-compliance. It follows a compliance 
management system to drive and monitor compliance 
across the organisation within the required timeframe, 
with suitable escalations and reviews. Employees are 
regularly sensitised about changes in regulations and 
educated about the compliance requirements of the 
role. 

SO1, SO2, 
SO3, SO4

Natural, Social 
& Relationship, 
Financial and 
Manufactured 
capital

www.tatasteelmining.com22 232nd Integrated Report 2022Corporate Overview | Statutory Reports | Financial Statements



PRUDENT FINANCIAL 
MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL CAPITAL

At TSML, we use our financial 
resources judiciously to create 
value through the optimisation of 
our business processes, and, when 
necessary, we raise finance aligned 
to market conditions and our 
internal strategy for business growth. 

Our finance capital is generated 
from the surplus arising from our 
operations year on year. 

Capital Base (` Lakhs)
Year 2021-22 2020-21

Equity Share Capital 48507 48507

Security Premium 40762 40762

Retained Earnings -81533 7602

Shareholder's funds 7736 96871

Basic Earning Per Share 
(`)

Year `

FY’18 1.86

FY’19 -0.59

FY’20 0.43

FY’21 0.36

FY’22 -18.26

EBITDA/Turnover
(%)

Year %

FY’18 11.1

FY’19 0.3

FY’20 6.7

FY’21 7.5

FY’22 -23.9

PBT/Turnover
(%)

Year %

FY’18  7.63 

FY’19  -4.31 

FY’20  3.04 

FY’21  2.66 

FY’22  -24.56 

Return on Average 
Capital Employed (%)

Year %

FY’18  11.53 

FY’19  -5.78 

FY’20  5.16 

FY’21  4.69 

FY’22  -120.90 

Return onAverage Net 
Worth (%)

Year %

FY’18  12.51 

FY’19  -6.13 

FY’20  5.42 

FY’21  4.77 

FY’22  -213.60 

Financial performance

Revenue Growth 

During FY 2021-22, there is phenomenal 
increase in the revenue of the Company 
clocking a Revenue from Rs 535 Crore 
in FY21 to Rs 4605 Crore in FY22. Our 
focus was on Cash flow. The Company 
monitored it daily, weekly and monthly 
cash movements closely and maintained 
a forecast of its needs for a three-month 
period with the aim of remaining cash 
neutral on a monthly basis. Close track was 
kept on the market conditions, liquidity 
position and health of the Company. TSML 
is continuously focusing to add partner 
plants for value additions of Chrome Ore. 
Apart from the above, the Company is 
exploring the opportunities to export the 
Chrome ore for further value addition.

Driving efficiency 

We have continuous cross functional 
improvement programmes under Total 
Quality Management (TQM) and Shikhar25 
(flagship improvement programmes run 
by the parent company), wherein TQM 
techniques are routinely deployed for 
operational efficiency, energy efficiency 
and procurement optimisation to manage 
cost. Our marketing initiatives and product 
mix optimisation provide better customer 
connect, customer satisfaction, and higher 
realisations. This operational efficiency 
enables us to generate positive cash flows 
from operations. 

Optimising investment requirement 

We work on an asset-light model of 

operation. In ferro chrome production, we 
are engaging with various manufacturing 
facilities on a contractual basis. In mining 
operations also, we have engaged Mine 
Development Operator (MDO) to execute 
mining activity. 

Leveraging market landscape 

During the FY 2021-22 multiple factors like 
rising international Ferro Chrome prices 
along with strong demand from domestic 
as well exports market supported Ferro 
Chrome prices in India too. The rising 
price and demand of Ferro Chrome was 
capitalized by maximizing sale by driving 
up ferro chrome production.

Strategic objectives
SO1, SO2, SO3

Strategic enabler
SE2

Capitals impacted

Manufactured

Intellectual

Human

Social and relationship
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MANUFACTURED 
CAPITAL, MINING 

MANUFACTURED CAPITAL 

As one of the largest chrome 
ore producers and ferro chrome 
manufacturers in India, we are 
committed to growing our 
operations responsibly and 
sustainably. Our key manufacturing 
assets include our three chrome ore 
mines, one strategically located ferro 
chrome manufacturing unit and six 
Ferro Processing Centres (FPCs).

Strategic objectives
SO1, SO2, SO3

Strategic enabler
SE2

Capitals impacted

Financial

Intellectual

Human

Social and relationship

Mining operations 

Chrome is an essential ingredient in 
the manufacturing of stainless steel as 
it imparts the properties of corrosion 
resistance, toughness and lustre 
to stainless steel. We operate fully 
mechanised chrome ore mines in Sukinda, 
Saruabil and Kamarda, situated in Sukinda 
valley, Odisha. The region houses over 95% 
of India’s chrome ore resources. We were 
the first company in India to get a mining 
lease executed with Government of Odisha 
after completion of the auction process for 
commercial mines. 

We aspire to become the most respected 
and valuable mining company in India, 
imbibing the Tata group’s rich culture, 
value systems and knowledge base. 
Together with our state-of-the-art geology 
and mine planning competencies, we 
have developed a detailed understanding 
of regional and area-specific geology of 
chrome ore deposits, establishing best-in-
class sustainable mining operations in a 
short period. 

This focus has enabled us to reach our 
highest-ever excavation and production 
capabilities within three months of 
beginning our operations of supplying 
chrome ore to our ferro chrome plants, 
conversion partners and other customers.

Safe mining 

We emphasise on ensuring the highest 
safety standards in mining operations 
through a comprehensive Safety 
Management Plan, detailed hazard 
identification, risk assessment and 
mitigation measures. 

Mining best practices 

Our focus on operational efficiency has 
enabled us to ramp up production and to 
meet targets as per the Mine Development 
and Production Agreement (MDPA). We 
performed despite the COVID-related 
headwinds, including reduced demand 
and the challenging conditions in terms of 
dispatch. 

Our mining team has been effectively 
using benchmarking practices in the 
field of geology, survey, mine planning 
and design through three-dimensional 
comprehensive modelling using high-
end software such as Surpac, MineSched, 
ARCGIS and AutoCAD.

Innovative approaches such as the use 
of drone reduces cycle time of survey 
by more than 90% from conventional 
total station survey. We also carry out 
scientific studies and use accurate radar 
technology for online monitoring and 
management of slope. Our best-in-class 
Effluent Treatment Plant (ETP) which 
ensures that 100% mine water is treated, 
which frees it of hexavalent chrome, is 
promoting sustainable mining operations. 

A long-term partnership model has been 
established with the MDO through a 
rigorous selection process that looked at 
technical and financial capabilities. This 
ensures that our mining operations are 
asset-light, flexible and cost competitive. 

We are also progressing towards 
developing Sukinda Chromite Mine to a 
world class underground mine.

We also make our best efforts to use lean 
grade ore blended with higher grade and 
thus by conserving the mineral resources.

Way forward - Mining

• Complete feasibility studies for the 
underground project in Sukinda chromite 
mines

• Stabilise mining operations and align a 
safe work culture in the newly acquired 
mines

• Complete scientific studies related to 
slope management systems and obtain 
approval from statutory bodies for 
implementation 

• Introduce automation and digital 
intervention in mining and logistical 
operations to ensure safe and improved 
performance

• Strengthen stakeholder engagement and 
sustainability measures 

• We have already got the consent from 
statutory bodies to initiate mining 
operation  with adjacent lessee  for 
joint mining in common boundaries for 
mineral conservation, progress on the 
same

• We have initiated  a complete scientific 
study to extract friable ore below the 
opencast limit of Sukinda with IIT-
Kharagpur and will target conclusion of 
the same.

• Explore systematically to delineate 
the concealed chromite ore bodies in 
the twin mines by deploying modern 
hydraulic core drilling rigs for good 
quality data including borehole deviation 
survey and core orientation tool.

• For expansion of production in Twin 
Mines upto a level of 1 Mt, successfully 
conducted the PH and we are in the 
process of obtaining the EC

• Initiate the process for setting up of a ETP 
with a capacity of treating water @ 1200 
m3 /hour in Twin mines
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Ferro chrome production operations

We are engaged in the production of 
high-carbon ferro chrome have grown 
capacity to a total volume of 400 KTPA. 
Our production base includes owned ferro 
chrome smelter facility in Odisha and 
also the smelter facilities of partners in 
eastern and central India. Our ferro chrome 
production is backed by a robust supply 
chain, starting from chrome ore supply 
from our captive mines, sourcing and 
supply of high-quality, low-phosphorous 
reductant to a customer base served by 
various manufacturing units across both 
international and domestic markets.

400 KTPA
Rated capacity achieved in Q4

Sustainable manufacturing

Our ferro chrome smelter unit is 
strategically located at Athagarh, Odisha, 
~70 kms from the mines, in proximity to 
the state and national highways and the 
port of Paradeep, Odisha.

Our facility has 2x16.5 MVA state-of-the-art 
semi-closed furnaces, having 59.4 KTPA 
capacity integrated with highly efficient 
bag-filter type gas-cleaning plant of 2.4 
lakh NM3/hour. The chrome ore – received 
from the mines – is being agglomerated to 
produce chrome briquette in our 100 KTPA 
briquetting plant.

Power being a major component in ferro 
chrome production, we have secured 
arrangement to source uninterrupted and 
cheaper power from our captive power 
plant – Bhubaneswar Power Private Ltd 
(BPPL).

Our final product is processed according 
to customer requirements through a series 
of activity starting from liquid tapping 
to sizing and final packaging. All our 
processes are managed by an experienced 
and competent workforce and technocrats. 
We also have a state-of-the-art QC lab 
equipped with precision instruments such 
as X-ray fluorescence (XRF) and Laboratory 
Equipment Corporation (LECO) analysers.

We have also established a metal recovery 
plant with crushers, screens, jigging 
machines and micro jigs to recover metal 
to the last possible extent. This enables 
to us to improve chromium recovery to 
85-86% and this stands as benchmark in 
similar operations. We have added one 
new facility for recovering metal content in 
slag chips generated from normal jigging 
for additional recovery of ferro chrome.

The Athagarh plant is committed to serve 
quality products with its hybrid facilities-
mechanical, automated and manual 
based on the criticality of the processes 
and the local socio-political conditions 

Manufactured Capital – FPCs 

Ferro Processing Centres 

We have adopted an asset-light model 
by entering into long-term conversion 
contracts with Ferro Processing Centres 
(FPCs) for conversion of the chromite 
ore into ferro chrome. Currently, we are 
working with six FPCs spread across 
Odisha, West Bengal, Andhra Pradesh and 
Chhattisgarh. This allows us to maximise 
our mining capability and derive synergies 
from the conversion partnership, utilising 
the production capability of our FPC 
partners.

Ferro-alloys conversion with us is a 
win-win business for the FPCs, which 
contribute more than 70% to our ferro 
alloys production capacity. The model 
enables TSML to supply our chrome ore 
and reductants to partner plants, who, in 
turn, convert the same to ferro chrome and 
give it back to us for sale to our customers. 
We are looking to expanding our footprint 
with more partners to enhance production 
volumes. The widespread network of 
FPCs enables us to serve customers 
across geographies and exceed customer 
expectations with our wide product 
basket.

We have introduced several improvement 
initiatives to enhance FPCs’ operations 
and achieve benchmark figures in terms of 
specific consumption of resources, use of 
anthracite coal and others, including the 
following:

• Long-term contracting to provide 
contractual assurance to partners

• Enhanced safety excellence journey for 
successful onboarding of partners to our 
safety culture

• Cost and operational efficiency with 
alternate reductant usage, fixed and 
variable cost optimisation, contract 
norms optimisation through process 
trials

During the year, we undertook special 
drives in safety excellence by covering 
all FPCs, and focused on communication, 
trainings, sharing best practices among 
plants and site visits. FPCs are adopting 
the more environment-friendly LPG in 
place of furnace oil in the briquetting 
process. We also conduct plantation drives 
across plants to maintain a green and 
healthy workplace. These initiatives are 
strengthening our sustainability culture by 
elevating health, safety and environment 
management across FPCs

What makes FPCs a success story?

• Relationship management: Sustenance 
of a win-win situation with partners in all 
weather conditions 

• Cost leadership: Strong procurement, 
end-to-end supply chain management 

around Athagarh. Those processes where 
technology demand is high, they are 
mechanised and automated. Athagarh 
is also entering the phase of its digital 
assessment with an external partner 
to see the opportunity specific energy 
optimisation.

Maintenance department monitors and 
controls Equipment availability. As part 
of the maintenance plan, all the critical 
equipment’s are being checked for 
availability on a regular basis. For quality 
control, all input raw materials and output 
finished products are sampled and tested 
on a regular basis.

` 14.6 crore
Annual savings from the use of
alternate reductant in the reductant mix
for ferro chrome production

Safety first approach 

We implemented a robust safety 
management system through a web-
based portal across our plants. To support 
and strengthen ground connect, safety 
subcommittees on process safety, 
incident investigation etc. were formed 
in both plants. Each subcommittee 
comprises officers from line function and 
a safety professional. They help frame 
organisational policies based on actionable 
points and ensure their implementation 
on the shop floor. Cross-functional audits 
confirm the actual status and provides 
inputs for improvement. We have also 
worked on improving our communication 
infrastructure to strengthen safety on the 

and technical support from FPCs

• Risk management: Using mutual 
strengths to mitigate risks

Way forward

• Enhance ferro chrome production 
volume to 420 KTPA in FY 2022-23

• Establish a new blend of chrome ore with 
supplies from all three mines

• Use alternate reductant across all plants, 
including in FPCs

shop floor by installing public address 
system and the use of wireless sets. We 
have created a facility with 600+ lockers 
for workers to keep their PPEs, appliances 
and personal belongings. We have also 
completely stopped the use of mobile 
phones at the workplace.

Our Athagarh unit bagged State Safety 
Award -2021, Kalinga Safety Gold 
Award 2021 and FICCI safety system 
excellence award in 2021 for outstanding 
performance in safety. The facility 
undertook a massive plantation drive and 
planted ~2,000 trees both inside the plant 
and on both sides of the road connecting 
the Mundali bridge to the plant. We have 
also initiated various activities to recycle 
and reuse water, including establishing a 
20 Kld Effluent Treatment Plant (ETP) and 
Sewage Treatment Plant (STP) to process 
waste.

• Build ferro chrome sizing capability

• Pursue new product development: 
low phosphorous and low silicon ferro 
chrome 

• Optimise power sourcing by actively 
seeking opportunities in renewable 
energy

• Strengthen stakeholder management 
and community relationship

• Explore new technologies 

We have been managing Tata 
Steel’s O&M for 2 x 18 MVA furnace 
with installed capacity of 55,000 
MTPA high-carbon ferro chrome 
for Tata Steel at Gopalpur, Odisha 
for operation and maintenance 
service. It is also as an Anchor 
Project for TATA SEZ (Gopalpur 
Industrial Park) and use state of 
art Technology for manufacturing 
of High Carbon Ferro Chrome like 
100 % Water recycling system for 
Material Recovery Plant, 100% 
Water Conservation System 
with Thickener & Water recycle 
Mechanism.

Boosting ferro chrome production through technology adoption

We are actively pursuing the adoption of the latest technologies in ferro 
chrome production to improve our product portfolio with niche products such 
as ultra-low phosphorus and low silicon and high chrome, etc. In this regard, we 
are engaging with leading technology vendors. We are also exploring ways to 
improve our operational efficiency.
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SHIKHAR & 
TECHNOLOGY

INTELLECTUAL CAPITAL

We aim to be the ‘most respected 
and valuable mining company 
in India’ by leveraging advanced 
technology, the power of the 
digital and fostering a culture of 
innovation. Since our inception 
in May 2020, we have been 
using Shikhar25 (improvement 
programme used extensively in 
Tata Steel to drive cost savings and 
other improvements) as a vehicle to 
identify improvement opportunities 
and generate business value.

Strategic objectives
SO1, SO2, SO3

Strategic enabler
SE1, SE2, SE3

Capitals impacted

Financial

Manufactured

Human

Social and relationship

At Tata Steel Mining, we aspire to be the 
most respectable and valuable mining 
company in India. We are leveraging 
in-house capabilities as well as our 
parent company’s expertise to drive the 
technology projects which are aimed 
to reduce costs, improve processes, and 
develop new products. We are also having 
strategic collaborations with external 
expertise to pave the way for innovations 
and accelerate the deployment of 
breakthrough technologies. In FY 2021-22, 
14 technology projects were initiated 
with R&D and process technology of 
Tata Steel, focusing on nickel extraction 
from overburden, low phos binder for 
briquette, carbon composite briquette, etc. 
An innovation event titled ‘Navritih’ was 
held not only to promote the small-big 
implemented breakthrough innovations 
across TSML but also to encourage 
employees to have freedom of failure. 
“Dare to Try” category has been formulated 
to provide an ambiance to young minds 
to test the opportunities without any fear. 
TSML also rolled out a platform “IdeaNext” 
to capture breakthrough ideas from its 
employees and relevant functions of Tata 
Steel. A monthly expert speak platform 
“Daksh” has been launched in TSML 
wherein Experts from TSML or TSL, research 

experts from renowned academia, industry 
delegates, partners share their experience, 
industry best practices, achievements, 
new initiatives towards achieving business 
excellence.

TSML has launched the EBIDTA focus 
program “Shikhar” in FY21. Shikhar is 
successfully running with 70+ projects 
across divisions with cross functional 
teams where organisation has accrued 145 
crores of savings. 38 projects have been 
completed in FY22. Main themes on which 
projects have been taken up are cost 
reduction, power / energy optimisation, 
procurement optimisation, process 
efficiency, sales and NR increase and new 
market development.

TSML successfully implemented integrated 
management system and was awarded 
with ISO 9001, ISO 14001 & ISO 45001 
in November 2021.In TSML, we deploy 
state of the art exploration techniques 
like ‘wireline triple tube’ assembly to 
maximize the core recovery, use of digital 
core orientation tools to understand the 
actual lithological disposition. We follow a 
strict QAQC protocol during sampling and 
chemical analysis to ensure the accuracy 
and precision in analytical results.

Re-assessment of Sukinda chemical 
laboratory in accordance with ISO/IEC 
17025:2017 was completed successfully 
for FY23. NABL had examined the 
assessment report of Sukinda Chemical 
Laboratory and decided the renewal of 
accreditation in the disciplines of Chemical 
testing of Chromium Ore, Manganese 
Ore, Pyroxenite, Dolomite & Limestone. 
Certification is valid for a period of 2 years 
i.e. 31.03.2022 - 30.03.2024 subject to 
compliance of NABL norms & satisfactory 
annual desktop surveillance. 

Verification of stacks are being done as per 
new sampling guideline of OMPTS:2022. 
Bigger size stacks are being prepared with 
5KT to 10 KT instead of 1KT. Sampling 
related SOP has been prepared and all 
sampling associates are trained who are 
involved in this process. All IT set up, auger 
machine, tool & tackles are in place for 
smooth operation. Multiple IP cameras 
and NVR (Network Video Recorder) system 
is used for capturing the footage of the 
entire stack during sample collection 
& preparation. Cycle time of Form-K to 
RP application is reduced & zero grade 
diversion is achieved post implementation 
of new sampling method. 
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Software/Methodology used for Mine 
planning

3D Modern mine planning software plays 
a crucial role in the mining operations 
and projects. This planning software 
provides a fast and accurate tool in order 
to manage the business interests and 
Provides accurate design to manage 
mining operation in cost effective way. 
We follow a process of first preparing 3D 
litho-structural model for individual rock 
unit in entire leasehold by Integrating 
topographical survey data, geological 
information and chemical analysis into a 
systematic database. 

Advanced geostatistical technique like 
semi variogram modelling, Estimation 
using Kriging or ISD etc. employed for 
ascertaining grade & estimating Resource 
& Reserves. Moreover, Minesched software 
is used to carry out ore production and 
waste dump for long- and short-term 
scheduling. This also includes backfilling 
plan to avoid further degradation of virgin 
land and restore the original ground profile 
to the extent possible. AutoCAD software 
is also used for updating Geological plans, 
Longitudinal and Transverse cross sections.

Geotechnical window mapping was 
introduced to monitor the behaviour of 
weak planes as mining face advances 
and to monitor stability of benches. In 
TSML, Movement and surveying radar 
(Ground Probe-SSRXT) has been installed 
at Sukinda for live slope monitoring of 
pit slopes. It’s a movable equipment with 
better accuracy compared to any other 
conventional monitoring instruments. We 
also practice weekly monitoring of slopes 
using Total Station and data analysis done 
by our expert Geotechnical Engineer.

We also focused on improving efficiency, 
governance, visibility and speed of 
decision making by having digitally 
enabled systems and processes. We 
shall continue to focus on improving 
our systems and processes, embrace 
new technologies and Digital to build 

competitive edge in the mining sector. In 
the year ahead, Digital interventions will 
involve usage of IIoT, location detection 
systems for logistics planning, prescriptive 
and predictive analytics models to 
facilitate business decisions &sensorisation 
to monitor process parameters. We shall 
benchmark industry’s best, form CFT (cross 
functional teams) wherever required and 
strive to achieve the business objective 
through collaboration with stakeholders.

Digital

On the digital space, Tata Steel Mining has 
adopted “Cloud first” approach whereby 
new applications are built on cloud 
environment and exiting ones being 
migrated to address scalability and work 
from anywhere architecture. To improve 
IT governance and control SAP GRC is 
being implemented. To support growth 
and improvement we are in the process of 
implementing world class SaaS (Software 
as a service) platforms. These platforms 
shall be integrated with S/4 Hana and 
cover following business processes:

A. Core HR

B. Payroll

C. Travel and Expenses

D. Vendor Management

E. Financial planning and budgeting

Zero harm is one of the core values of 
the organization. Mobile phone is not 
allowed for usage at the shop floor as it 
may compromise with safety. To keep track 
of employees in hazardous zones within 
company premises, LoRa WAN network was 
setup in FY22 and “Suraksha Card” deployed 
which communicates with the cloud 
infrastructure. This gives near real time 
visibility of card holders across locations on 
the dashboard #. In case of an emergency, 
the card holder needs to press a button on 
the Suraksha Card to trigger emergency 
response. Increase in digitalization is 
associated with cyber security risk. As we 
build new systems new and processes 
on the cloud, our strategy is to ensure 
security of the applications and databases 
in the event of cyber-attack. Mechanism 
has been put in place to detect and install 
necessary security patches to prevent 
system downtime. We devote significant 
resources to protect and continuously 
improve the security of the systems. Our 
cyber security and risk management 
policies and standards are centered on 
protecting the confidentiality, integrity 
and availability of the firm’s infrastructure, 
resources & information. We also require 
our employees and vendor partners to 
adhere to minimum security and control 
standards through Tata Code of Conduct. 
To ensure that statutory compliance is met, 
the organization operates on a customized 
digital platform called “Evolve” hosted on 
the cloud. To reach out to our stakeholders 
across the globe and address their queries, 
we launchedTata Steel Mining Website 
within the 1st year of operation.As part 
of stakeholder engagement initiative 
company website was launched. This 
ebalesUsers across locations operates 
on this and the activities are centrally 
monitored and reviewed. As part of our 
responsiveness to environment, we are in 
the process of implementation of smart 
water management solution which will 
help us to meet Zero affluent discharge 
norms. 

 

Geotechnical window mapping was introduced to monitor the behaviour of 
weak planes as mining face advances and to monitor stability of benches. In 
TSML, Movement and surveying radar (Ground Probe-SSRXT) has been installed 
at Sukinda for live slope monitoring of pit slopes. It’s a movable equipment with 
better accuracy compared to any other conventional monitoring instruments. We 
also practice weekly monitoring of slopes using Total Station and data analysis 
done by our expert Geotechnical Engineer
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WORKFORCE OF 
TOMORROW

HUMAN CAPITAL

Our people are at the centre 
of our world and we respect 
the contribution each one 
makes to the betterment of 
the organisation. We strive to 
provide them an enabling work 
environment and take a keen 
interest in their development 
which we promote through 
targeted trainings and 
programmes that deepen 
engagement.

TSML believes that sustained long-term 
value is created through organisational 
vivacity demonstrated and nurtured 
through an enabling environment of 
empowerment and accountability to 
harness the full potential of TSML’s human 
capital. In a volatile, uncertain, and intensely 
competitive environment, it is TSML’s 
human resources that provide the drive to 
ensure that TSML continues to be the most 
valuable mining industry creating value 
for all its stakeholders.  All its efforts are 
therefore, directed towards strengthening 
engagement of the workforce, fostering a 
performance-driven culture, and continuing 
to be the employer of choice. 

At TSML, our human capital is not only an 
asset to us, but is at the heart and soul of 
our existence. We consistently strive to 
create an environment that supports our 
employees’ growth and aspirations. TSML 
considers people as its biggest assets and 
‘Believing in People’ is at the heart of its 
human resource strategy. We are proud 
recipient of Great Place to work certification 
that inspires us to do more.

4,065
Total workforce (including contract 
employees) 

70004 hours
Of overall behavioural, managerial and 
functional training

Talent management 

Talent Transformation is our focus area. 
It begins with building synergy between 
how we look to differentiate ourselves as a 
Company and deliver on the expectations 
of our employees. Being a young and 
growing organisation, we are always in 
look out for new skills and ideas to fuel 
our growth. In FY’22, a strong and careful 
process was carried out in onboarding 
67 new people. TSML has a strong and 
structured onboarding process which 
includes processes like assigning buddy 
to a recruit to taking feedback from new 
recruits on their onboarding experience. 

With the pandemic posing challenge, it 
was imperative to balance employee needs 
and satisfaction with the organisation’s 
values, objectives, and goals. The year saw 
us introducing employee-friendly policies 
such as flexible workplace to five-day work 
week, Employee Benefit Support Scheme, 
Learning Policy, PMS Policy among others.  

To create opportunities for every employee 
to navigate further, we have implemented 
a thought-out Career Progression Policy. 
To build a talent pipeline and to improve 
work productivity, we have put up internal 
job postings and have encouraged 
inter-unit transfers so that the right talent 
makes its way to the right place and aids 
organisational growth

Training and Development 

We take a purpose-centric approach 
to training and development that 
leverages horizontal collaboration and 
the abundance of internal talent in an 
ecosystem where the training meets 
expectations of all its employees and 
enables them to acquire new skills and 
knowledge to not only perform their 
work more effectively but also develop 
their own capabilities according to their 
individual potential. 

A wide range of behavioural, managerial, 
and functional trainings were organised 
during the year. A total of 8,367 
participants were trained for an overall 
70,004 hours. The focus in the year was on 
safety trainings and on building a culture 
resonating Tata values and ethos. Felt 
Leadership, e-module on safety training, 
Tata Steel Story, Experiential Training 
Program were the focussed interventions. 
Apart from this, we focused on upskilling 
our contract employees in areas of mining 
mechanical and mining electrician in 
partnership with Indian Iron and Steel Skill 
Sector Council. 

To create a learning atmosphere, 
knowledge sharing platform ‘ubuntu’ 
was rolled out in the year. 9 sessions 
took place with 14 varied topics. Far 
safety, self-paced learning initiative was 
rolled out. Further, Hello Basics’ initiative 
was strengthened to align our business 

excellence fundamentals with both our 
existing employees and new entrants. 
The topics and way of imparting these 
trainings are curated based on the need of 
the audience. 

TSML got certified with Integrated 
Management System certification in 
the year. Training being one of the key 
processes also underwent IMS audit which 
has helped in strengthening the process.  

We also conducted awareness 
programmes on TCoC to make our people 
understand and imbibe the importance 
of values and ethical practices. POSH 
awareness sessions were conducted 
to promote our principle of inclusivity 
and to ensure a safe environment for 
our workforce. The sessions saw 100% 
participation. 

We ensure optimum use of available 
intellectual resources through various 
platforms such as Tata Tomorrow 
University, Tata Edge and Tata World. 
During the year, we came up with ‘Learning 
Policy’ to provide learning opportunities 
to our people which would enable them 
to grow in the organisation with right skill 
and knowledge. 

Employee engagement 

In order to create best-in-class employee 
experiences which would supports our 
people to stay motivated to deliver their 
best at all times, we have worked towards 
creating an Employee Engagement 
Framework that would help our employees 
to connect, care, collaborate and celebrate. 
To encourage people participation in 
companywide initiatives and programs, 
we conducted programs throughout 
the year such as Ethics month, Safety 
Week, Environment Month, Sustainability 
month, Tata Engage among others in 

Strategic objectives
SO4

Strategic enabler
SE1, SE3

Capitals impacted

Financial

Intellectual

Manufactured

Social and relationship
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which 100% participation was there. Due 
to Covid, during part of the year physical 
collaboration though could not happen, 
yet we organised virtual programs during 
this period in which people connected and 
collaborated across locations. More than 
30 meaning ful- programs were organised 
in the year.

The company had an internal engagement 
survey conducted before proceeding 
with Great Place to Work survey wherein 
the survey index stood at 78.2%. Further, 
among top 50 Great Mid-Size workplaces, 
TSML emerged as one of the companies 
having stood up to people’s trust on it 
for credibility, respect, fairness, pride, 
camaraderie, and the index stood at 71%.

We are trying to enhance the employee 
experience by being more sensitive to their 
needs and requirements. A state-of-the-
art canteen facility was introduced in the 
Mines division and COVID-19 resilience 
measures undertaken across all locations. 

At the same time, we are looking at 
strengthening our connect with our 
employees by connecting with their 
families as well. Drawing competitions, 
games and tournaments were organised 
at the Mines division during Republic 
Day, and Founder’s Day. Seminars, talks 
and cultural program were organised on 
International Women’s Day. 

Performance management system 

To align ourselves, to the business 
requirement and ensure productivity 
an effective performance management 
system has been established. To make it 
more transparent and agile, the whole 
process is being digitised. Going forward, 
the PMS will not only result in rewarding 
and recognising people but will also aid in 

their competency development through 
structured individual development plans. 
The system was made further robust with 
implementation of talent reviews and 
performance feedback. 

Diversity and inclusion 

A diverse workforce always enriches 
an organisation by bringing in wider 
perspectives and a wider pool of talent. 
We ensure that inclusive teams work 
together in an open and impartial work 
environment. We are committed to have a 
30% female workforce by 2030. To promote 
our policy of diversity and inclusion, a D&I 
council was formed to carry out activities 
that promote our objective. The year had 
two transgenders joining our workforce 
along with 24 women employees this year.

Zero Harm – a key priority 

Zero Harm is among our core values, 
and part of our safety and health 
responsibilities. I alignment with our 
parent company, which puts a high priority 
on people safety, we remain committed 
to ensuring a safe working environment 
for our people. With our robust safety 
management system and safety 
governance system,we ensure to carry out 
this objective. During the year 2021-2022, 
although it was more challenging in terms 
of the pandemic and overall slowdown 
of the socio-economic pace during first 
half of the financial year, we managed to 
travel a distinct path towards the journey 
of excellence in terms of Safety Health and 
Environment.

We have initiated several awareness 
trainings under the principle of ‘Zero Harm’. 
In order to build safety awareness in the 
organisation, we imparted a number of 
safety trainings in the year such as Incident 

Investigation, Felt leadership, among 
others. Further, in the year, Lifetime First 
aid certification training was imparted to 
our employees through National Safety 
Council.

All efforts are being made to enhance 
safety standards to minimize safety 
risks at all levels of the operations. The 
people are being trained to improve the 
risk perception and with use of theory 
of residual risk and reliability of control 
barriers, the safety processes and activities 
are being made safer.

Key activities for this year 

1. Suraksha Card (Connected Work Force) 
implementation across all the unit.

2. Developing and Implementation of E 
work Permit at all the units.

3. Felt Leadership training for employees 
and Associates at all the levels and 
Contractor supervisors in Mines.

4. Health check-up of all employees 
and monitoring of High risk category 
employees being counselled and 
necessary precautionary measures 
taken.

5. Suraksha RatnaPuraskar for the 
contractor workmen for the exemplary 
work done at shop floor.

We have also analysed the learnings from 
the preceding year and incorporated 
the same in our annual business plan of 
Fy’2023 for Safety Health and Environment 
excellence journey.

Employee Health & Wellness

Flexible work models, safety and wellness 
are important expectations from the 
discerning talent pool. We continuously 
strive towards enhancing the well-being 
of our employees by partnering with 
organisations such as 1to1help and 
Striders, in order to ensure people’s care 
is taken not only at physical level but also 
at mental well being level. Apart from 
this, yoga sessions, counselling sessions, 
work life balance sessions were conducted 
in house as well as by partnering with 
organisations like Basera Pvt Ltd, M/s 
Striders and 1to1help. The lockdown 
period during Covid did not deter us from 
ensuring that our employees retain their 
mental and physical wellbeing. We had 
series of programs conducted offline and 
online on virtual platform as well to ensure 
that our employees do not miss the care. 
The programs conducted were aimed at 
increased awareness, reduced stress levels, 
safe work environment and improved 
productivity levels, resulting in good 
health and well-being.

At TSML, as we continue in our endeavor to 
fight waves of the COVID-19 pandemic, our 
priority remained the safety and well-being 
of our employees, and business continuity 
for our customers. Considering employee 
safety as paramount, we implemented 
elaborate support measures for employees 
during the three COVID-19 waves in India, 
at all our locations. We also established  
war room and help-desk coordinated 
support measures, such as consultation 
with doctors and counselling support. 
We facilitated Company-sponsored 
vaccination drives for employees and their 
spouses at our place. As on March 31, 2022, 
100% of employees were fully vaccinated.

Way forward 

• Arrange regular training programmes 
like Tata Steel Story (Culture), TQM, 

Safety (Safety Skill Training for Line 
Managers, Felt Leadership Training 
Programme and Contract Labour 
Awareness Programme in consultation 
with Safety department), wellness 
among others

• Work on continuing to be employer of 
choice

• Rationalise contract labour 
workforce through automation and 
mechanisation and develop a multi-
skilled workforce.

• Develop people-friendly policies and 
diversity and inclusion policies and 
activities.

• Include Lesbian, gay, bisexual and 
transgender (LGBTQ)/People with 
Disabilities (PWD) in the workforce and 

address requirements across locations 
for a gender diverse workforce.

• Implementation of IT-enabling digital 
platforms to support HRM functions.

• Build competency and capability 
of employees for handling higher 
responsibilities and positions.

• Identify critical positions and ensure 
availability of workforce at the right 
time.

• Ensure industrial harmony across all our 
locations.
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BUILDING 
ENDURING BONDS

SOCIAL & 
RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

We seek to build and deepen 
long-term and transparent 
relationships based on trust with 
our stakeholders. We are investing 
in capacity building and knowledge 
sharing with our partners. We 
are also focusing on impact-led 
community initiatives in the areas 
we operate.

Strategic objectives
SO1, SO2, SO3, SO4

Strategic enabler
SE1, SE2, SE3

Capitals impacted

Financial

Manufactured

Human

Natural

Customer

Social & Relationship Capital: Customer 
Strategy 

Tata Steel Mining believes that taking 
care of customer needs should be at the 
forefront of its business principle. In line 
with this principle Tata Steel Mining has 
tried to create a strong customer focused 
marketing & sales operation.
However, Tata Steel Mining doesn’t stop 
there and continuously focuses on ways to 
improve its product offering experiences 
to its customers. In the last one year the 

Customer Relationship & Satisfaction 
Strategy

Customer relationship and mapping 
customers satisfaction is one of the core 
business strategy of how we operate our 
business. We conduct various customer 
need and satisfaction mapping activities 
all throughout the year so that we have 
deeper understanding of our customers’ 
latent needs and thus giving us a superior 

Chrome industry faced lot of volatility and 
supply chain bottlenecks. Even through 
this turbulent time Tata Steel Mining’s 
dedicated marketing and sales team along 
with our strong supply chain network, 
have strived to deliver unmatched value 
and customer experience to our domestic 
and international customers. To take this 
further, in FY22 Tata Steel Mining launched 
its new brand of Ferro Chrome – Tata 
Indicrome, with an aim to de-commoditize 
Ferro Chrome and create a global standard 
quality product. The future aspiration of 
the commercial operation function is to 
adapt digitization in its operation and 

competitive edge. Tata Steel Mining’s 
customer relationship & satisfaction 
strategy is broadly based upon 4 basic 
principles 

1. Product Quality: Customer come 
back to us with repeat orders because 
they always receive superior value 
from Tata Steel Mining. consistent 
quality has inspired us to take series of 
product quality checks right from the 

create a comprehensive online portal to 
sell Ferro Chrome and service customers. 
In FY22, Tata Steel Mining clocked nearly 
3,71,000 tons of Ferro Chrome sales 
and 434,000 tons of Chrome ore sales. 
Our commitment towards serving our 
customers with best-in-class products 
and services have helped us build strong 
relations over the years with more than 60 
customers globally.

point of ore extraction to Ferro Alloy 
processing and till the point of final 
product delivery. Tata Steel Mining not 
only follows some best-in-class SOPs 
for each operational functions but 
also engages in various continuous 
improvement initiatives to develop 
and deliver products that satiates 
customer’s need. 

Ferro Chrome Sales % in key markets  

China
Japan

India
South Korea

Indonesia
Others

4% 14%

42%

13%
6%

21%

Ferro Chrome Sales Volume (tons)  

Export Domestic

215603

154654

Customers 
Relationship & 

Satisfaction

Product 
Quality

Seamless 
Service

Customer 
Complaint 
Handling

Value Added 
Products & 

Services
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2. Seamless Service: We understand that 
one of the key needs of our customers 
is on-time and in-full delivery so that 
their plants don’t dry out of their key 
raw materials. In our commitment 
to provide seamless supply to our 
customers we work round the clock 
to deliver the right product at the 
right time at our customer premises. 
For achieving this we have created 
a robust supply chain networks 
with multiple stake holders. In our 
resilience to provide unmatched 
customer service we have gone out 
of our way to support our customer 
needs and bring in various process 
improvement. Throughout the last 
year amid continued global supply 
chain hinderance we took care of our 
customer’s regular and special needs 
cementing our strong relations with 
them.

3. Customer Complaint Handling: Proper 
handling and prompt addressing of 
customer complaints is key to the 
survival of any business. One unsatisfied 
customer may create a detrimental 
cascading effect in the market for the 
business to get ruined. Keeping this in 
mind we have put in place strong SOPs, 
tools and review mechanism to handle 
customer complaints. Once a complaint 
is identified, our team works round 
the clock to resolve the issue with top 
priority. We arrange sessions and take 
regular feedbacks from our customers 
to understand if they are facing any 
issue and try to resolve it.

4. Value Added Products & Services: 
Delivering general products and regular 
services can take us ahead but will not 
lead us to reach the zenith of customer 
satisfaction. With this philosophy at 
its core our commercial and technical 
innovation team works hand in hand 
to understand customer needs and 
deliver a wow factor to our customers. 
We are working on a plethora of new 
projects like digital sales, customer 
order portal, new packaging standards, 
JIT delivery and product innovation 
like composition and sizes so that we 
take care of the current and future 
requirement of our customers. We 
are also working towards creating a 
completely digital order booking and 
tracking solution for our esteemed 
customers.

SOP – Standard Operating Procedure 
FY – financial year
JIT – Just in time

Vendors 

We believe in building long-term, 
transparent and trust-based relationships 
with vendor partners who are our partner 
in progress. Our relationships with our 
vendors are built on mutual trust, respect 

and continuous engagement which are 
the cornerstones for building a robust 
organisation with our stakeholders. Various 
programmes with top down approach 
along with procurement team are carried 
to strengthen our relationship with 
vendors. 

Supplier management: This focuses 
on maintaining and enhancing the 
performance of supplier partners to meet 
the growing and varying needs of the 
organisation.

Contract management review: This plays 
a vital role in handholding and guiding the 
vendors to take their performance to the 
next level. Service providers work jointly 
with TSML teams during the execution of a 
job, to find areas of improvement, monitor 
performance based on well-defined key 
performance indicators (KPIs) and review 
progress against set objectives. 

Vendor meets: These are organised on a 
regular basis. TSML senior management 
communicates to vendors the Company’s 
requirements and where improvements 
can be made. 

Category approach: This approach helps 
combine requirements across TSML to 
procure on scale, helping suppliers grow 
their business in terms of volume. 

Vendor discovery: This is done to identify 
cost competitive sources of supply for 
major consumable items such as lime, 
molasses and raw material like reductant 
and others.

We work to support local communities and 
develop their entrepreneurial capabilities. 
Hence, specific categories of services 
and supply are awarded to local service 
providers/supplier partners. Around 
90% of the O&M services at our FAPs at 
Athagarh and Gopalpur are being catered 
to by local service providers. Similarly, 
~ 70% of the supply is being sourced 
through local vendors. 

Tata Steel Mining Responsible Supply 
Chain Policy (RSCP) is formulated in 2021 
to encourage supply chain partners to 
share our commitment on embedding 
sustainable business practices and has 
four principles on Environmental, Social 
and Governance (ESG) parameters. We 
encourage our supply chain partners to 
integrate this Sustainability Principles 
towards Fair Business Practices, Health & 
Safety, Human Rights and Environmental 
Protection in all their decisions and 
processes.

Community 

We believe that the primary purpose 
of a business is to improve the quality 
of life of the communities it serves. We 
carry out our developmental activities in 
the rural areas of the states in which our 
operations are located. While we ensure 

that all communities benefit from our CSR 
activities, we focus on those groups that 
are socially and economically marginalised. 
These include women, girls and scheduled 
castes and tribes. 

67,901
Lives impacted through our CSR 
programmes in FY 2021-22,

` 179.60 Lakhs
Expenditure on various CSR initiatives in 
FY 2021-22.

Health

We offer preventive, promotive and 
curative healthcare services in villages 
close to our operations. We provide 
primary healthcare services through 
static clinics and free medicine supply to 
communities in need. As the mining area 
is considered to be endemic zone, malaria 
and tuberculosis screening have been 
started, also liking the effected with Govt. 
is our main objective for medicine support. 

Mobile medical vans, including ambulance 
service, have been provided in the Sukinda 
mines area. These facilities have helped 
us treat 48 patients, seven of whom were 
referred to other specialised centres. 

14377
individuals were diagnosed & treated 
through Static Clinic.  

733
individual cases were diagnosed & out of 
the same 40 individuals were identified 
as TB positive. More than 243 children 
were immunised with pulse polio drops. 

Health check-up camps were organised at 
all revenue & hamlet villages of Kanasa GP, 
where 1581 people were treated.

RISHTA for today’s youth 

Regional Initiative for Safe Sexual 
Health of Today’s Adolescents 
(RISHTA) aims to help adolescents 
make informed decisions regarding 
their lives, including sexual and 
reproductive health. During FY 2021-
22, the RISHTA team conducted the 
following events: E-DHWANI: This is 
a platform that enables youths to 
share their perspectives and thought 
on key issues affecting them while 
encouraging respect for diversity 
and plurality of thought. Couple 
counselling: Through this workshop, 
counselling was provided to couples on 
early pregnancy, its consequences, and 
required nutrition. Couples from Kansa, 
Chingudipal, Ransol and Kaliapani gram 
panchayats were benefitted. Career 
counselling and vocational training: 
RISHTA team conducted a career 
counselling session with 86 youths from 
areas nearby our plants, along with an 
online session on vocational training 
and skill development opportunities. 
Leadership programme with RISHTA: 
The RISHTA team organised a 
leadership programme and team 
building exercises with adolescents of 
Kansa, Chingudipal and Ransol gram 
panchayats. Along with these activities, 
the youths were prepared to play an 
important role in their communities for 
water conservation. Through RISHTA 
project we have reach 600 adolescents. 

Combating COVID
The second wave of Covid-19 brought 
a strict lockdown across several states 
including Odisha which causeD loss of 
income, food insecurity, mis-information & 
stress among the society. The TSML team in 
collaboration with the  TSF team, keeping 
their safety in view ,took stock of the 
situation and initiatited relief measures.

#Thought For Food 
An initiative for theMankidia tribe; 
which is a nomadic tribe under the PVTG 
(Particularly Vulnerable Tribal Group) list of 
Odisha. The community lost their incomes 

and livelihood during the lockdown. 
From among them 41 people, who were 
old and living their life through begging 

were deprived of one meal in a day. Tata 
Steel Foundation extended support by 
providing healthy cooked food twice a day. 
During second wave TSF supported 521 
Individuals through the above initiatives.

#Cash for Work
The lockdown during the pandemic 
brought a huge impact on marginalized 
farmers & daily wage labourers. To 
create income opportunities, we started 

an initiative of pit digging for cashew 
plantation in 4 acres of land at Kakudia 
village and paid cash in return.
15-17 (Age group) Vaccination Drive
As the Odisha govt started vaccination 
drive for the 15-17 age group, our 
RISHTA Team collaborated with Health 
Department of Sukinda, mobilised youths 
from different panchayats and facilitated 

1000 Covid vaccines to these adolescents.

Sustainable livelihood and Gender & 
Community Enterprise 
We made significant efforts towards 
promoting sustainable agricultural 
practices and ensuring that communities 
can opt for alternative livelihood 
practices. Changing employment trends 
in tribal villages through Horticulture 
Plantation & Integrated Farming: Tata 
Steel Foundation (TSF) organised a visit 
where 40 farmers of Kansa panchayat met 
developed farmers. The exposure helped 
build trust and changed their mind-set. 
We also encouraged young men and 
farmers to raise poultry and fish etc. Other 
programmes undertaken include: 

• 281 farmers adopted SRI method of 
paddy cultivation

• 835 HH adopted Kitchen garden at their 
backyard for self-consumption 

• 395 farmers adopted dry land farming.  

• 140 farmers adopted 2nd crop 
cultivation.  

• 03 youths were supported for setting up 
Biofloc Fish Farming model & 11 youths 
were supported through fingerlings in 
Biofloc tank.  

• 913 farmers were supported through 
animal vaccination camp in partnership 
with Block Veterinary Department. 

• 300 HH (marginalised/ landless) were 
supported through poultry & duck 
rearing & also provided 

• 35 farmers were taken for an exposure 
visit to Global Biotech Agro Farm, 
Godbhaga for understanding best 
practices on agriculture & allied 
programs. 

• 30 women associated with SHG were 
supported to start an enterprise of their 
own.  

Sports
Sport makes equality a reality, has the 
power to emancipate women, effect social 
change and is, according to the United 
Nations, most effective in engaging, 
developing and empowering youth. 
TSF leverages sports to empower youth 
because the region where it operates 
has inherent talent in disciplines such as 
football, Chaki and athletics. 

Under 11-15 Football Coaching 

Football is a passion in the Sukinda valley. 
TSF channels this energy to groom the 
very young from remote areas through 
its Under-11-15 Football Coaching 
Centres. It has 6 centers (Kakudia, 
Kusumundia, Malharsahi & Kalarangiatta, 
Balipura& Saruabil) with 200 players. The 
achievement of this programme has raised 
awareness within their communities on the 
power of sports as a conduit to a better life.  
TSF also running 2 batch of Girl’s Football 
coaching at Malharsahi& Kakudia with 50 
students. After the practice they were also 
provided with basic awareness on hygiene 
& sanitation. 
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SAKHA a Community Based Organization, 
which is working for Transgender on their 
Empowerment, Health, right based work, 
eradicating social stigma attached to it 
as well as inclusion of this community for 
overall wellbeing; approached Tata Steel 
Foundation & TSML (Tata Steel Mining 
Limited) on the support for food and 
essential daily goods there who have 
impacted very badly during lockdown. 
With the support from Mrs Meera Parida 
(President & Co-Founder, SAKHA – first 
LGBT CBO in Odisha /Chairperson, All 
Odisha Third Gender Welfare Trust, 
Bhubaneswar / Vice President of Biju 
MahilaDala) TSF team distributed a 

packaged essential goods to 88 Individual 
Transgender from Jajpur, Dhenkanal & 
Cuttack of Odisha.  This was the first step 
from TATA STEEL FOUNDATION, towards 
working with Transgender.

Blanket distribution at Nagada village

300 numbers of blankets have been 
distributed on 29th December on urgent 
basis at Nagada village as Odisha was 
experiencing cold waves due to weather 
chang

DRINKING WATER & CIVIL 
INFRASTRUCTURE
With the ambition of enabling community 
led access to safe drinking water for 
100 per cent of excluded households 
in our proximate communities, The 
Foundation works on various initiatives 
like construction/ installation of drinking 
water structures (Wells, deep bore wells, 
hand tube wells), installation of solar based 
projects, supply of water through tankers, 
cleaning and rejuvenation of natural 
springs etc. 

Rejuvenation of Natural Spring Point 

A spring is formed when natural pressure 
forces groundwater above the land surface. 
This can occur at a distinct point or over a 
large seepage area. Springs are sometimes 
used as water supplies and can be a 
reliable and relatively inexpensive source 
of drinking water if they are developed 
and maintained properly. During field 
visits we found many seepage spring are 
used by community for their drinking and 
many other daily purpose. The water they 
were drawing from was not protected. TSF 
Continued this initiative last year as well to 
protect thei

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS 2021-22

DRINKING WATER 

• Rejuvenation of Spring Point at Kansa 
Grampanchayat with 156 beneficiaries. 

• Supply of drinking water through 
Water Tanker benefitting 10,200 lives. 

• Installation of solar submersible pump 
at Kansa & Kamarda in Twin Mines area 
covering 237 beneficiaries. 

• Installation of 3 number Hand Tube 
Well and repairing of 55 numbers 
of Hand Tube Well covering 3060 
beneficiaries. 

CIVIL INFRASTRUCTURE
• Renovation of School Building at 

Saruabil covering 262 beneficiaries.

• Renovation of School Building at Talangi 
covering 79 beneficiaries

• Renovation of Community Center at 
Kansa covering 243 beneficiaries

• Renovation of community center and 
open well at Damodarpur covering 189 
beneficiaries 

• Renovation of Community Center 
at Bambilo, Kuhika covering 238 
beneficiaries

• Construction of 4 numbers of Farm Pond 
reaching 107 beneficiaries.

THE PROJECT SHAAN
In line with the theory of inclusion, 
Tata Steel Foundation come forward 
and facilitate capacity building for 10 
transgender candidates for employment 
opportunities in collaboration with SAKHA. 
Tata steel foundation facilitated-

1. Physical Training of shortlisted 
transgender candidate for upcoming 
Government vacancies

2. Computer Literacy training 

3. General knowledge & Aptitude training

Through PROJECT SHAAN, TSF hoping for 
a better future of Transgender where they 
can live in the society with respect and 
dignity.

DISASTER RELIEF & DISTRIBUTION
Covid-19, lockdown brings plethora of 
issues for transgender community – from 
losing their sources of income to not being 
able to vaccines. Their livelihood has been 
severely hit due to lockdowns, given that 
their main two sources of income are 
begging and sex work. Add to this, the 
social stigma and discrimination they face 
in society have created more problems for 
them. 
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RESPONSIBLE 
PRODUCTION FOR A 
BETTER TOMORROW

NATURAL CAPITAL

Through our sustainable operating 
practices, we are living up to 
our commitment to reduce the 
environmental impact of our 
operations. We are taking steps 
to be water neutral, reduce 
air pollution, minimise waste 
generation and accelerate 
transition to a circular system by 
integrating advanced technologies 
and continuous innovation in the 
way we function.

Strategic objectives
SO1, SO2, SO3, SO4

Strategic enabler
SE2

Capitals impacted

Manufactured

Human

Social and relationship

Sustainability is an integral part of TSML 
corporate strategy and value system, and 
it will remain at the heart of its future 
planning. TSML continue to strive to make 
tomorrow better for our people and planet 
by considering environmental, biodiversity, 
safety, and social considerations in all its 
strategic and operational decisions, and it 
believes that operating sustainably is not 
just a business imperative, but also a long-
term competitive advantage. The company 
is also transforming the way mining is 
done by bringing in new technology, 
mineral conservation, sustainability, care 
for community and safety. TSML also 
promote sustainable practices among 

TSML established a comprehensive 
sustainability framework and identified 
significant material issues relating to 
Environmental, Biodiversity, Social, 
and Governance (ESG) through a 
comprehensive stakeholder engagement 
approach to address major business risks 
and stakeholder issues. KPIs have been set 
and are being reviewed on a regular basis 
for the stated material issues to illustrate 
how successfully the company is meeting 
its commitments and strategic objectives.

By integrating cutting-edge technologies, 
improving environmental performance, 
achieving resource efficiency while 
reducing our ecological footprint through 
sustainable projects, and continuously 
innovating in business practises and 
processes through the PLAN A initiatives, 
the company is committed to sustainable 
development, accelerating the transition to 
a circular system, and creating value for all 
stakeholders in a responsible, innovative, 
transparent, and inclusive manner.

all our stakeholders through intensive 
stakeholder engagement.

In FY 21-22, TSML named its sustainability 
initiatives as PLAN A because we believe 
that there is no plan B for our planet. PLAN 
A  initiatives are focussed on increasing 
renewable energy, reducing CO2 emission 
intensity, reduce, reuse &amp; recycle of 
solid wastes, biodiversity preservation, etc. 
as it believes there is no PLAN B for our 
planet. The company has also formulated 
sustainability and biodiversity policy 
in FY’22 which is at the centre stage of 
all strategic and operational decisions 
while aligning its actions with National 

Biodiversity Targets, Aichi Biodiversity 
Targets, UN Sustainable Development 
Goals and ICMM principles  to integrate 
sustainability into its business ecosystem

TSML has identified four strategic 
objectives to meet its business growth 
and sustainability goals, while setting 
parameters to measure the outcomes. 
This goal-oriented strategy will not only 
help us become a performance-driven 
organisation, but also help to push ahead 
its larger sustainability agenda. 

Strategic objectives Strategic enabler Capitals impacted

SO1, SO2, SO3, SO4 SE2 Manufactured
Human 
Social and relationship

48,376 MWhr
of renewable energy sourced

100% 
Use the SCM OB waste from the OB X 
quarry and ferro chrome slag to backfill 
in and reclaim the OB II mine and to fill in 
low-lying areas inside the FAP Gopalpur 
Plant.

100% 
Recycling of on-site process water
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Air Pollution

Air pollution (especially dust emissions) is a material issue at all of our locations, including mines and plants. To abate its effects, we have 
invested in various of emission control equipment and are putting forward our best efforts in introducing various practises that have a 
lower environmental impact.

Water sprinklers in permanent haul roads, frequent haul road maintenance, and increasing water sprinkling frequency and coverage are 
some of the primary measures taken to reduce dust emission at our mine locations.

At Sukinda, about 10 kilometres of haul road are watered by six water tankers, and 8 kilometres of haul road in twin mines are watered 
by three water tankers.

In addition to above, al the drilling machines deployed within mine is equipped with in-built wet drilling facilities to reduce dust 
generation with dust extractors or equipped with water injection system. Moreover, The vehicles carrying Mineral and ores, transported 
out of the mine lease boundary to the various destinations are completely covered by tarpaulin and secured in position by plastic straps. 
Also, the concentrate stacks are also now being covered using tarpaulin sheets to prevent finer concrete particle from getting air borne. 

We are improving our current Dry Fog Dust Suppression System (DFDS) system, installing mist canons in a  phase wise manner as well as 
and taking steps to reduce ambient dust generation and improve stack air quality in the FAPs.

To suppress dust and maintain a good working environment concrete roads, green  belt developments and water sprinkling are also 
some of the measures which are being taken of. 

Managing Emissions

We continue to minimise our environmental footprint through accounting and strict monitoring of our sp. Energy consumption and carbon 
emission intensity and taking actions steps in every direction to reduce it and achieve our aspirational under the umbralla of PLAN A 
initiatives.

The central sustainability team, in collaboration with cross-functional team members at each mine and plant site, is identifies and 
implement signature initiatives for CO2 emission reduction, energy conservation, and energy procurement from cleaner sources

We collaborated with industry technology experts to explore the feasibility of renewable energy in mine and plant facilities. A number of 
renewable energy projects has been identified, and signature projects are being designed to deploy it in a phased manner.

There is a  significant potential exist across all our locations to reduce GHG emission and reduce sp. energy consumption and we are taking 
action steps to reduce it by: process optimisation, yield optimisation, resource optimisation, switching to lower-emission fuels /cleaner 
fuels, switching to renewable energy sources,  switching to electric motors in machinery and vehicles, and reducing energy consumption 
through operational efficiency and bringing more energy efficient devices/technologies,  advance technology interventions, obsoleting old 
technologies and minimizing/ zero down the losses. 

During FY 2021-22, we sourced 38,871 Mwhr and 9,505 Mwhr of renewable energy from open access at FAP Gopalpur and FAP Athagarh, 
respectively, reducing absolute CO2 emissions by 31,874 and 7,794 tonnes. The sourced RE Power accounts  5% and 21% of total electricity 
consumption in Athagarh and Gopalpur respectively. 

In FY’22 at all of our operating locations, we have taken action steps to conduct energy 
audit of all the five locations, installed VVFDs in higher capacity motors, replacement of 
100% of conventional lights LED Lights, replacement of conventional fans with energy 
efficient fans and power factor improvement.

Water Management

Demand for water in India is outstripping supply, resulting in a historic water scarcity. It is an essential yet stressed resource and needs to be 
efficiently used in all the sectors. Realizing the importance of efficient water use and water conservation, Tata Steel Mining Limited (TSML) 
has entrusted The Energy and Resources Institute (TERI) to conduct water audits at five of TSML’s facilities in Odisha. The initiative focuses 
on comprehensive water audits of the selected facilities involving establishment of the water use and water balance, water quality profiling, 
identification of water losses/leakages (if any), etc. The study would come up with recommendations for efficient water management in 
these facilities with regard to water reuse, recycling, and conservation, as well as a reduction in specific water consumption. This would 
enable TSML to develop an integrated industrial water management strategy that optimises efficient use of water and improves water 
productivity, besides indirectly contributing towards the fourth goal of the National Water Mission on improving water use efficiency.

TSML has also partnered with FluxGen to install AquaGen across all of its operational locations in a phase wise manner.  To begin, it is 
deploying AquaGen at its Sukinda Chromite Mine and FerroChrome Athagarh Plant to cover one value chain.

AuqaGen is a SaaS platform that will give a Secure Single Window Access System to the Digital Data of the Entire Water Infrastructure: Water 
Flow, Water Level, and Borewell Water Level, allowing users to make informed water infrastructure decisions. TSML’s goal with this initiative 
is to derisk the water crisis and achieve water security, and in the process, the company hopes to conserve a substantial volume of water per 
day.

We have also collaborated with industry experts to conduct a feasibility study and build water recharge systems for ground water recharge 
at our locations.

Water is a critical resource for TSML’s mine and plant operations, and it has been a primary emphasis area for the company since its 
inception. Achieving water use efficiency and sustainability is the need of the hour and to address this, TSML has made firm commitments 
to reduce water related impacts, christened as PLAN A, as it believes there is no PLAN B for our planet, focusing on “zero down ground 
water withdrawal and a 30% reduction in surface water intake” by 2030. Company is also working to revitalise local water bodies, increase 
access to clean drinking water, and promote judicious consumption of water, as well as promoting “Reduce, Reuse, and Recycle” practises 
across companies’ operations. As a part of the company’s long-term strategy, TSML envisions itself as a water neutral organisation and is 
collaborating with experts to develop water harvesting and recharging systems and sensitise about it among its stakeholders, customers, 
and vendor partners to achieve its goal.

TSML has a well-organized water management system in place that follows the principles of reduce, reuse, and recycle. By constantly 
monitoring its surface and ground water intake, recycled water, and reused water, the water management system assists TSML in controlling 
our specific water intake.

To ensure achieve company’s commitment of NetZero Wastewater discharge, TSML has developed a 108 MLD onsite Central Effluent 
Treatment Plant at Sukinda Chromite Mine (SCM) that is a closed-loop water-recycling setup and a self-sustainable township and 
administrative facility, which is based on the concept of Zero Liquid Discharge. The self-sustainable township and administrative facility have 
a sewage treatment plant (STP) that treats domestic wastewater, and the treated water is reused for gardening, resulting in a zero liquid 
discharge facility. Company has constructed toe walls and garland drains along the dump slope which effectively channelize the effluent 
(surface runoff and dewatered mine water) to the central effluent treatment plant (ETP) and prevent soil erosion and contamination. 

The central ETP at Sukinda Chromite Mine (SCM) effectively treats 100% of the effluent generated (mine dewatered water and surface 
run-off water) and allows TSML to reclaim up to 95 -90 % of recycled water (5% - 10% evaporation loss). 70–80% of the recycled water 
is reused back in the mining operations and township. Furthermore, an excess of 20–30% of the recycled water during mansoons is 
discharged into local surface water bodies (DamsalaNalla). The discharged water has a higher quality than the water present in the local 
Nallah. Local communities use the recycled water for irrigation purposes after it is discharged. Thus, by recycling 100% of the effluent 
and reusing 70-80% of it, it has enabled the company to ensure zero stress on the local watershed for freshwater requirements.
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This is how, by implementing a strategic wastewater management system and making operational improvements, the company is 
not just fulfilling our water needs but also benefiting our local communities. TSML has left no stone unturned to set landmarks in the 
industry’s safety standards and lead in environmentally friendly initiatives, and Sukinda Chromite Mine epitomises this vision of TSML.

TSML is also working to have another central ETP of 1200 m3/hr capacity for its twin mines – Kamarda and Saruabil. The central ETP will 
enable the company to zero down our groundwater withdrawal. The treated water from ETP will be reused in the mining operation for 
drinking, domestic use, vehicle washing, dust suppression, and gardening. 

To ensure that TSML’s ferrochrome plants also do not contribute much stress to its local watershed (surface) and have zero ground water 
withdrawal, both the units have onsite effluent treatment plants (FAP Gopalpur – 720 KLD and FAP Athagarh – 500 KLD) which treat the 
onsite process water. Company has constructed garland drains and a settling pit to channelize the waste water from jigging and hot 
metal cake quenching as well as surface run-off to the ETP. The recycled water is reused back in the process. The 100% recycled water 
is reused on-site in metal cooling, jigging, for sprinkling water on the road and gardening. Both the production plants have a sewage 
treatment plant (FAP Gopalpur – 25 KLD and FAP Athagarh – 150 KLD) which treats the domestic wastewater. Treated water is reused for 
gardening purposes, making both the facilities Zero Liquid discharge.

Staying true to the Tata philosophy of the community being a key stakeholder in business, company worked to serve society at large. 
To ensure the good health and wellbeing of the community and ensure that they also have a good quality life, company has taken 
initiatives to rejuvenate water bodies around its areas of operation so that they can have access to good quality water.

Solid Waste Management

At TSML, we see waste as a nutrient that can be reused in the manufacturing process or in other ways to add value to the business 
while reducing environmental and social impact. All materials used in ferro chrome production and chrome extraction have economic, 
environmental, and social value, and that any by-product or waste generated that is not repurposed loses its intrinsic worth. As a result, 
in order to transition from a linear to a circular economy, we are committed to reusing 100 percent of solid waste generated as a result 
of our activities in the manufacturing process and selling by-products from the manufacturing process to other industries to replace 
natural resources. Reduce, Reuse, and Recycle principles have been incorporated at every stage of the process. For TSML. increasing 
the recycled content in our processes is the most effective strategy for us to minimise its overall environmental footprint, as recycling 
conserves virgin resources.  Furthermore, we have an advantage in our transition to a circular economy because stainless steel is a 
robust and entirely recyclable material with no quality degradation, making it a perfect fit for the circular economy.  We’re working on 
increasing the amount of recycled content in our products and processes.

At both the Ferro-Chrome Plants, we constructed a metal recovery plant with crushers, screens, jigging machines, and micro jigs to 
recover metallic chromium from non-hazardous slag waste to speed up the transition to a circular economy in the FeCr business and 
recover metallic chromium to the maximum degree possible. This allows us to increase chromium recovery to 85-86 percent, which is the 
industry standard in similar operations. 

In FAP Gopalpur and FAP Athagarh, we have reutilised 100% and 45% respectively of the leftover non-metallic slag from the jigging 
facility in filling in civil work, filling of low-lying areas inside the plant premises and selling to the construction companies 
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Also at ferrochrome plants, the GCP (Gas Cleaning Plant) dusts is being recycled in Briquette making, which is subsequently used as 
furnace feeding.

At our mines, the waste generated from OB X Quarry is being continuously backfilled into the OB II quarry to reduce ecological impacts 
the mining waste could have if dumped somewhere else. The reclaimed OB II mine quarry will promote a sustainable post-mining use of 
the land. It is planned to accumulate ~ 300 lakh cum of overburden which will save 60 Ha of land from degradation. Also at our mines we 
have initiated R&D projects to reutilize Pyroxenite and Nickeliferous limonitic waste found in mines overburden waste. 

Biodiversity

Integrating Biodiversity Conservation into smart and sustainable mining practises has been Tata Steel Mining Limited’s priority. The 
company always strives to push these interventions beyond the legal requirements to set high standards not only within the company but 
in the mining sector of India.

We are committed to the conservation, enhancement, and restoration of biodiversity. In order to formalize this commitment, we have 
formulated biodiversity policy and adopted comprehensive biodiversity conservation and management plan as well as set targets for our 
all-mine locations and plants.

TSML strongly believes that understanding biodiversity loss, taking actions and producing beneficial results on the ground require sound 
and robust scientific advice. 

In order to achieve its biodiversity commitments, TSML has partnered with Environmental Resources Foundation (ERF), an IUCN member 
organisation, to perform a comprehensive biodiversity assessment and develop Biodiversity Management Plan (BMP) for its newly acquired 
twin mines, Kamarda and Saruabil. The overall objective of BMP would be to achieve No Net Loss on biodiversity. This study shall serve as a 
practical guide for the progressive restoration and enhancement of biodiversity within the mines. 

To speed up restoration of the mine site as well as surrounding areas, TSML will promptly and thoughtfully implement the 
recommendations of this study. Additional supplementary off site measures also will be considered to help address cumulative effects 
on biodiversity and ecosystem services. A system of ongoing, adaptive improvement is the purpose of this BMP study, and the measures 
reported here will be revisited annually.

Generating awareness about biodiversity conservation is also very important. The company has been mainstreaming this approach 
among internal and external stakeholders by organising several awareness sessions across locations. Bird watching expedition,  Prajatiya 
Khadyotsav to promote indigenous tribal and local delicacies to name a few. TSML shall organise more awareness session in future to keep 
the pace.
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Way Forward
Sustainablity Commitments- Related SDGs

We have made a strong commitment to positively impact people, plants, and benefit as we strive to be a pioneer in 
sustainable practices. Both mine and plant sites have significant renewable energy potential, and we are developing 
plans to install solar power systems. We are working on programs to improve operation, energy conservation, and cost 
optimization, all of which will have a positive effect on our bottom line and reduce our carbon footprints.

2030 Goals:
• 5% of energy requirement to be met from renewables.
• Reduce CO2 emission intensity by 20%
• 5% improvement in ambient/ stack air quality
• Zero ground water drawl & 30% reduction in surface water
• 50% utilization of solid waste
• 33% plantation over mine & plant site

8 Decent work and 
Economic growth 6 Clean wa ter and 

sani ta tion 13 clim ate 
action 15 Life on 

land

7 affort able and 
clean energy 12 Responsible 

consumption 
and production

5Gender 
Equa lity 9 Industr y, inno vation 

and infrast ru cture
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Directors’ Report
Dear Members,

Your Directors take pleasure in presenting the Eighteenth Annual Report of Tata Steel Mining Limited along with Annual Accounts on the 
business and operations of the company along with summary of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022.

A. FINANCIAL RESULTS

 (` in Crores)

Objective details 2021-22 2020-21

Revenue from Operations 4605.39 535.14

Operating Cost other than Depreciation 5713.24 496.43

Operating Profit/(Loss) (1107.85) 38.71

Add: Other Income 7.17 1.58

Earnings before Interest, Tax & Depreciation/ Amortisation (EBITDA) (1100.69) 40.29

Depreciation/ Amortisation 16.50 14.17

Finance Cost 15.88 11.86

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax (1133.06) 14.26

Add/(Less): Exceptional Items 0 0

Profit Before Taxes [PBT] (1133.06) 14.26

Less: Provision for Current Taxation 0 0

Less: Deferred Tax Credit (247.24) 3.14

Profit After Tax (885.83) 11.12

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) (5.52) 6.51

Total Comprehensive Income (891.35) 17.63

Add: Balance Brought forward from previous year. 483.65 60.36

Add: Share Premium 0 407.62

Less: Share Issue Fees Written Off 0 (1.96)

Balance (407.70) 483.65

(i) Dividend Paid for the previous year 0 0

(ii) Tax on Dividend 0 0

Total 0 0

Balance Carried forward (407.70) 483.65

The figures of previous year have been regrouped/reclassified/re-casted wherever applicable as per the disclosure and presentation 
requirements of Indian Accounting Standards.

During the year under review, amidst the Covid 19 Pandemic and 
despite having acute oxygen shortage and manpower shortfall 
for the operation during the 2nd wave, the Company has met its 
production and dispatch targets for Ferro alloys production.

In FY’22, TSML has produced 3.73 Lakh Tons Ferro Chrome 
through its own as well as from conversion plants (known as 
Ferro Processing Centres (‘FPC’)), with many plants achieving 
their highest ever production. These Plants further supported 
TSML in stacking buffer stocks of chrome ore, thereby, maximising 
despatches from mines to the Mines Development and Production 
Agreement (‘MDPA’) requirement. 

However, one of the FPC (i.e. Jai Balaji Industries Limited) has 
terminated the conversion contract during the year. Further, 
Jindal Stainless Limited (‘JSL’) has been added as new conversion 
partner along with buyback of FeCr by mid FY’22, although, the 
conversion & buyback with JSL was impacted from Feb’22 due to 
power cost escalation at their plant. 

For controlling the cost of production at our Plants, the usage 

1. Dividend

In view of the net loss incurred during the year under review, 
the Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend to its 
shareholders for Fiscal 2021-22.

2. Transfer to Reserves 

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to its 
General Reserve. However, the losses have been carried forward to 
reserves and surplus account.

B. OPERATIONS AND PERFORMANCE 

Company’s Performance

Ferro Alloys Operations and FPCs 

The FY’22 has been a pivotal year for TSML, which saw the 
Company to consolidate its position as one of the largest 
ferrochrome producers in India and one of the top 10 producers 
of ferrochrome globally, reaching to all major national and 
international customers across various geographies.

of alternate reductant (anthracite & nut coke) was focussed. FAP 
Athagarh & Gopalpur touched to highest ever usage of 30% 
anthracite and FPCs were able to maximise use of anthracite as 
well as the use of nut coke (available from TSM & TSK).

Further, the Company launched its Ferrochrome brand “TATA 
IndiCrome” in the market during the year, securing profitable sales 
volume in the domestic and export market amid largely volatile 
market conditions.

The Company has achieved revenue of ` 4605.39 Crores from its 
operations as against ` 535.15 Crores in the previous year. Profit/
(Loss) before tax during the year worked out to be (`1133.06) 
Crores as compared to ` 14.26 Crores in the previous year. The 
Profit/(Loss) after tax amounted to (` 885.83) Crores against `11.12 
Crores in the previous year. Total Comprehensive Income for 
the period was (` 891.35) Crores as against ` 17.63 crores in the 
previous year. 

The reasons for Loss during FY’22 was on account of Provision 
in the Books for shortfall in despatch as per Mines Development 
and Production Agreement (MDPA) guidelines amounting ` 818 
Crores and ` 549 Crores on account of Low grade Chrome ores. 
These were one-time provisioning made during stabilisation 
and presently the compliance to MDPA targets is on track. With 
the acquisition of Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited and other Partner 
Plants, the value addition of Chrome ore will increase. Further, 
with proper planning, the production and despatch targets as 
per MDPA guidelines are being complied with. The Company is 
expecting, to meet the despatch target as per MDPA guidelines 
during the FY’23.

Mining

Amidst the COVID 19 pandemic situation, all three mines 
continued to operate in FY-22. Further, meeting compliance to 
MDPA guidelines for mines has been a major challenge and the 
Company successfully complied with the quarterly targets set for 
all three mines.

All three mines i.e., Sukinda, Saruabil & Kamarda chromite mines 
combinedly produced 17.74 Lakh tons of chromite ore in FY22 
and a total of 13.6 Lakh tons of chrome ore production has been 
achieved from Sukinda itself, which is the highest ever for TSML.

Further, the Company successfully conducted Public Hearing for 
Saruabil Mines and Kamarda Mines as part of fresh environmental 
clearance for expansion to 1 MTPA & 0.3 MTPA respectively, to 
meet future demand of chrome ore for plants. This was a great 
achievement for TSML, as it was the first time in the history of Tata 
Steel, that public hearing for 2 mines was concluded in a single 
day.

The Company has participated in the e-auction of Iron Ore Block 
in the state of Odisha and won the Gandhalpada iron ore block. 
Apart from above, the Company has also started the feasibility 
study of Oman Limestone project.

As a way forward, the Company is working towards excavating the 
ore blocked in the common boundary with neighboring mines. 
As a measure towards this, a MoU has been signed with Jindal 
Stainless and obtained required permission from Directorate 
of Mines Safety (DGMS) to unlock the Chrome in the common 
boundary of Sukinda mines, thereby increasing the reserve of 
Sukinda Open Cast.

Further, Company also exploring systematically to delineate the 
concealed chromite ore bodies in the twin mines by deploying 
modern hydraulic core drilling rigs for good quality data including 
borehole deviation survey and core orientation tool. Management 
also engaging with various agencies for capacity growth in 
the Saruabil and Kamarda mines and getting the necessary 
environment and forest clearances.

Market Conditions and industry outlook

Market Highlights - FY22

Global economy faced several shocks in the form of covid variant 
waves in 2021. However, government stimulus across the globe 
and vaccination drives supported global economies to open up 
and reached a growth rate of ~5.7% in 2021 over 2020. 

Ferro Chrome market remained volatile in FY22 and witnessed 
some interesting turn of events. From the sporadic outburst of 
Covid cases around the world disrupting global supply chain to 
the impact of China’s “Dual Control” policy, trade war with Australia 
to final ending of the year with the impact of Russia-Ukraine crisis. 
The global Ferro Chrome production grew by nearly 15% in 2021 
over 2020 and reached ~14 million T guided mainly by growth 
in South Africa. Global consumption grew by nearly 11% Y-o-Y in 
2021 driven by growth in Indonesia, India and Europe. Out of the 
total 7.4 million T of global Ferro Chrome traded volume in 2021, 
China and Indonesia contributed 35% and 20% import of Ferro 
Chrome respectively and remained key consuming geographies. 

Supply chain bottlenecks and high cost of production gave push 
to global Ferro Chrome prices. While China High Carbon Ferro 
Chrome tender prices increased by ~48% Y-o-Y in 2021, South 
African UG2 Chrome ore prices increased ~20%. On similar lines, 
Stainless Steel production too grew by ~15% Y-o-Y to reach 59 
million T in 2021 and Stainless Steel HRC prices (China 304 HRC 
prices) increased by ~28% Y-o-Y.

Indian Ferro Chrome market too witnessed jitters in 2021. Multiple 
factors like rising international Ferro Chrome prices along with 
strong demand from domestic as well exports market supported 
Ferro Chrome prices in India too. Indian Ferro Chrome prices 
moved up nearly 62% over last year in 2021. Ferro Chrome 
production in India rebounded by ~25% Y-o-Y in 2021 to touch 1.3 
million T level and supported exports to grow by ~9% and reach 
~0.7 million T.

Market Outlook - FY23

While world GPD grew by ~5.6% in 2021, it is expected to grow by 
4.3% in 2022. Emerging economies likely to grow by 4.5% in 2022. 
Inflation in major economies to fall as supply chain normalizes. 
However global supply chain and shipping bottlenecks are 
expected to return to normal only by the mid of 2022. 

Growth in industrial production and construction expected to 
slow-down against a high base case of 2021. Auto segment which 
has faced major supply chain disruption likely to grow at a higher 
pace as chip shortages ease. Construction segment growth under 
threat amid concerns around financial soundness of China’s 
real estate sector. Commodity prices likely to moderate due to 
normalization of supply chain and post restocking.

54 55Corporate Overview | Statutory Reports | Financial Statements www.tatasteelmining.com2nd Integrated Report 2022



While global Ferro Chrome consumption likely to remain modest 
and grow by 3.3% Y-o-Y in 2022, Ferro Chrome production to 
grow by 8% Y-o-Y. This will push inventories up in 2022. Indonesia, 
China and India to drive Ferro Chrome production growth in 
2022. Growing power, ocean freight and reductant cost likely to 
alter cost curve and push some of the South African and Chinese 
smelters higher up in the cost ladder. Global stainless steel 
production expected to grow by ~3.5% Y-o-Y in 2022 riding on 
the growth story of Indonesia and China stainless steel industry. 
Growth in Auto (13.6%), Industrial (3.8%) & Construction (4.7%) 
segments in 2022 to keep Stainless demand buoyant. High Nickel 
prices in 2022 likely to push Stainless steel prices on the higher 
side.

Indian Ferro Chrome demand to ride at decent levels amid 
governments push for local manufacturing. Ferro Chrome 
production in India is expected to rise by ~7% Y-o-Y in 2022. 
Indian Ferro Chrome prices likely to remain under pressure amid 
surplus supply.

Quality & Improvement Initiatives

In the pursuit of business excellence, TSML is now an integrated 
management system (IMS) certified organisation with ISO 
9001:2015, ISO 14001:2015 and ISO 45001:2018 certifications. All 
the units of TSML strives to achieve the Quality, Environmental 
and Safety & Occupational Health standards. Our NABL certified 
laboratory at Sukinda uses state of the art equipment and 
methods for chemical and physical testing of minerals such as 
Chromite, Manganese, Pyroxenite, Dolomite & Limestone. The 
Ferro chrome plants and conversion partners maintain proper 
quality and follow standard processes to produce exactly as per 
customer requirement. 

The “Shikhar” program launched in FY’21 completed 38 projects 
with a savings of 100+ crores. Improvement and cost reduction 
initiatives were focused on procurement optimisation, freight cost, 
sized products, long term contracts with customers, shipping lines 
and vendors, improved recoveries, alternates of reductant, market 
and consumables. Multiple workshops and idea generation 
sessions have been carried out to keep the idea line healthy.

C. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Share Capital: The Authorized share capital of the 
Company is ` 7500 Crores which includes 750,00,00,000 Equity 
Shares of ` 10/- each.

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Share Capital: As on March 
31, 2022, the total paid up capital of the Company stands at 
`4,850,710,680/-.

D. KEY DEVELOPMENTS

Acquisition of Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited

The three chromite mines of the Company are in operations. 
The Company was exploring opportunities to secure additional 
capacity for Ferro alloys production in geographies logistically 
closer to the mine. Considering the strategic attractiveness 
and expected synergy benefits, the Company had submitted 
a Resolution Plan for acquisition of Rohit Ferro Tech Ltd (‘RFT’) 
under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (‘CIRP’) of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (‘Code’).

On June 5, 2021, the Committee of Creditors, in terms of the CIRP 
of the Code, declared TSML as the successful resolution applicant 
for the acquisition of RFT, subject to necessary regulatory 
approvals including approval from the NCLT, Kolkata Bench. On 
April 7, 2022, the NCLT pronounced the Order approving the 
Resolution Plan submitted by the Company for acquisition of RFT. 
As per the Resolution Plan, the Company acquired 90% equity 
stake in RFT for ~ ` 617 crores.

For the purpose of this acquisition, the Company had issued and 

allotted 326,370,757 Equity Shares of face value of ` 10/- each at 
a premium of ` 9.15 each aggregating to Rs 625 crores, to Tata 
Steel Limited. On April 11, 2022, in terms of the Resolution Plan, 
the Company completed the acquisition of 90% stake in RFT and 
the remaining 10% stake was acquired by the assenting financial 
creditors of RFT towards conversion of a portion of their loans.

Further as per Resolution Plan, the Company has the option to 
issue Call Option Notice to Financial Creditors for acquisition of 
their 10% stake in RFT. Accordingly, the Company had issued Call 
Option Notice to Financial creditors on May 31, 2022, to sell their 
respective Equity Shares in RFT to the Company at a Price equal to 
the Fair Market Value i.e. ` 180.54 per sale Share. For the purpose 
of above acquisition, the Company had issued and allotted 
104,75,196 Equity Shares of face value of ` 10/- each at a premium 
of ` 9.15 each aggregating to Rs 20.06 crores, to Tata Steel Limited 
on June 14, 2022. The Company had completed the acquisition of 
equity shares of Financial Creditors in RFT on June 22, 2022.

E. SUSTAINBILITY

We aim to make a meaningful contribution to the world through 
sustainable mining practices. Our pioneering spirit helps us move 
the industry forward and solve complex problems for a cleaner 
future and a better tomorrow. Being a responsible company, our 
commitment is to make positive contribution to society and the 
environment we operate. The ESG processes of the Company 
primarily focuses on non-financial aspects that demonstrate the 
organization’s commitment towards addressing its environmental 
and social impact.

In the path towards sustainable mining, water audit for all units, 
energy efficiency audit, biodiversity assessments and many more 
have been initiated in FY’22 and the Company will initiate several 
sustainability programs in FY’23.

1. Environment, Health & Safety

Tata Steel Mining Limited strive to conduct our business in a 
responsible, scientific and sustainable manner, caring for the 
community and society at large. We are committed to reduce the 
adverse impact on stakeholders caused due to mining of natural 
resources and associated activities by taking precautionary 
measures and sustainable practices. Zero Harm is set as a 
value system and we care for human life and wellbeing above 
everything else. We strive to create an injury free workplace by 
assessing and managing risks and ensuring safer behaviour. 

All efforts are being made to enhance safety standards to 
minimize safety risks at all levels of the operations. The people are 
being trained to improve the risk perception and using the theory 
of residual risk and reliability of control barriers the process and 
activities are being made safer.

During the year 2021-2022, although it was more challenging 
in terms of the pandemic and overall slowdown of the socio-
economic pace during first half of the financial year, we managed 
to travel a distinct path towards the journey of excellence in terms 
of Safety Health and Environment.

Key activities lined up this year are.

1. Covid Protocols were being followed in all the locations of 
Mines and Ferro Plants divisions. Initiative was taken this year 
for 100% coverage of vaccination for both Employees and 
Contractor workmen and have been managed successfully. 

2. We obtained Consent to Operate (CTO) for FY 2022-23 for 
Sukinda, Saruabil and Kamarda Chromite Mines. 

3. We obtained Consent to Operate (CTO) up to 31st March 2026 
for FAP Gopalpur.

4. Suraksha Card (Connected Work Force) implementation was 
done across all the units.

5. Developing and Implementation of E Work Permit at all the 
units.

6. Felt Leadership training for employees and associates at all the 
levels and contractor supervisors in Mines.

7. Health check-up of all employees and monitoring of high-risk 
category employees, who are being counselled and necessary 
precautionary measures are being taken.

8. Safety Management Plan has been prepared for all the units.

9. Compliance to the fatal recommendations at both the 
divisions: 75 applicable recommendations at Mines and 79 at 
Ferro chrome plant have been identified.

10. Plantation was done at all the units to meet the planned 
targets.

11. Installation of Effluent Treatment Plant (ETP) at briquette unit 
of FAP Athagarh.

12. Metal Recovery Plant installation.

13. Safety Awareness programs like Road Safety Week, National 
Safety Week, Mines Safety Week etc. are being observed at all 
the units.

14. Contractor Safety Management (CSM) Workshop conducted 
for star rating assessment for the vendors engaged in TSML.

15. Suraksha Ratna Puraskar was awarded for the contractor 
workmen for the exemplary work done at shop floor.

16. Work at Height structure for Height pass test has been 
installed at Sukinda Mines and FAP Gopalpur and planned for 
FAP Athagarh.

17. 27 emergency stop switch changes with lockable type 
emergency switch were installed at GCP and MRP at FAP 
Gopalpur.

18. Operation of tarpaulin platforms at Sukinda Mines has been 
started for tarpaulin tying and untying activity.

19. Bio Medical Waste (BMW) Authorization obtained for FAP 
Gopalpur. 

20. E-mail Flyers on Health is wealth & Health Advisory was sent to 
ONE TSML.

21. Periodic AAQ, Weather, Stack, Fugitive Dust, Noise, Water 
monitoring is done.

Local outreach camps are being arranged at several regions of the 
community and over 1000 community patients have been catered 
during this period. Various awareness sessions were conducted by 
our Doctors on the eve of World Tuberculosis day, World Aids day 
etc.

We have also analysed the learnings from the preceding year and 
incorporated the same in our annual business plan of FY’2023 for 
Safety Health and Environment excellence journey and hopeful for 
sustaining our commitment towards Zero Harm. 

2. Human Resource Management & Industrial Relations

The Company has a diverse and an inclusive workforce with a 
total strength of 455 on roll employees and 3500+ contractual 
employees across various locations and businesses in the year 
2021-22. During the year, the Company recruited diversified 
talent from the market for its segment of mining and Ferro 
alloys business. The Company had undertaken various training 
programme in the areas of safety, enhancement of skill, capability 
development and also arranged different training program on the 
areas that are critical to the core function, values and building Tata 
culture in the organisation such as on Felt Leadership for safety, 
Tata Steel story for building Tata culture, Experiential Training 
Program to build capability, Tata Code of Conduct for imbibing 

values. The Company maintained cordial industrial relations with 
the representatives of Union of employees at Ferro Alloys Plant, 
Athagarh. 

A remarkable achievement in the year was getting certified as 
Great Place to Work.

Apart from the above activities, HR focused on Employee 
Engagement through its engagement initiatives at various 
locations, implementing employee friendly policies such as 
Five-Day work week, Work From Home, Flexible workplace 
policy, being the Employer of Choice, digitisation of core HR 
processes, strengthening the Performance Management System 
in the Company and working towards a competitive Reward 
and Compensation structure, as well as activities around 
comprehensive Employee Wellness & Welfare. 

The Company continued to maintain excellent and cordial 
Industrial Relations and concerted efforts were put in to maintain 
Industrial Harmony and Peace. The Directors express their 
appreciation for the dedication, commitment and sincere services 
rendered by the employees at all levels throughout the year.

3. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Initiative

The Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR’) initiatives of the 
Company is to improve the quality of life of communities through 
long-term value creation for all stakeholders. The Company has 
in place a CSR policy which provides guidelines to conduct CSR 
activities of the Company. The Company has in place a Board 
approved CSR policy, which provides guidelines to conduct CSR 
activities of the Company. The CSR policy is available on the 
website of the Company https://www.tatasteelmining.com/sites/
default/files/2022-05/csr-policy.pdf . The CSR Committee details 
has been mentioned in the Corporate Governance section.

As per requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company 
was required to spend ` 10.03 Lakhs, as per the 2% criteria. The 
Company ended the year with a spending of ` 179.60 lakhs on 
various CSR activities and thereby fulfilling its statutory obligation. 
The Annual Report on CSR activities for period under review is 
annexed as Annexure A to this report.

4. Ethics

The Company has adopted “Tata Code of Conduct (TCoC) - 2015”, 
which is applicable to its Directors & Employees at all levels, in 
the course of day to day business operations of the company. 
The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct 
which is expected to be followed by the Directors and the 
employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters 
relating to integrity in the work place, in business practices and in 
dealing with stakeholders. The Ethical behavior is the core to the 
way we conduct our business.

The governance structure of our Company is a combination of 
the oversight of the Board and the Ethics Team. The Apex Ethics 
Committees works on policies, focus on strategic issues and 
provide resources to establish and ensure effective functioning 
of ethics management system. The committee shall also ensure 
adherence to TCoC. The Ethics Committee is responsible for 
implementation and review of Management of Business Ethics 
(MBE) at each business unit. Apart from this, Company’s initiative 
on sustainability, corporate social responsibility, corporate 
governance and membership in different industry bodies helped 
the organization augment its reputation at all levels.

We have implemented various policies such as the Whistle Blower 
Policy for employees and vendors, Gift & Hospitality Policy, 
Conflict of Interest Policy and POSH. During the year under review, 
all employees and contractors/ vendors have acknowledged their 
adherence to Tata Code of Conduct and the related policies.

During the year, the Company has taken various initiatives, 
awareness programmes, and trainings to create awareness about 
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TCoC and other policies of the Company. Awareness was created 
among employees including contractors and vendors regarding 
the Third party helpline number managed by KPMG. The month of 
July was celebrated as “Ethics Month”. ‘Neeti Katha’ i.e. story-telling 
through snippet series on scenarios of ‘Conflict of Interest’ and ‘Gift 
and Hospitality Policy’ were and circulated to employees.

F. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed in maintaining a high standard of 
corporate governance practices and procedures. Strong leadership 
and effective corporate governance practices have been the 
Company’s hallmark inherited from the Tata culture and ethos. 
The philosophy of the Company’s corporate governance ensures 
transparency in its affairs and the functioning of the Management 
and the Board and accountability towards its stakeholders.

The Board constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
have functioned effectively during the year under review. Various 
policies like, Nomination & Remuneration Policy, Whistle Blower 
Policy for employees & vendors, Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy, POSH, as required under the Companies Act 2013 are in 
place and are being adhered. The Company has implemented a 
Compliance management system called EVOLVE and is managed 
by a third party. It encompasses applicability of various rules, 
regulations & processes across the organization. The system works 
in a maker and checker concept.

1. Board of Directors

i. Composition

As on March 31,2022, the Board comprised 4 (four) Directors, out 
of which,3 (three) are Non-Executive and 1 (one) is Executive. 
None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under 
Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

On recommendation of Board, Mr. Pankaj Kumar Satija (nominee 
of Tata Steel Ltd.) was appointed as Additional Executive Director 
w.e.f October 27, 2021 and subsequently as a Managing Director 
w.e.f December 1, 2021. Mr. M C Thomas - Managing Director 
resigned from Board w.e.f November 30, 2021.

ii. Re-appointment of Directors retire by rotation 

In terms of the provisions of the Act, and the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mr. Chanakya Chaudhary 
(DIN:02139568) Non-Executive Director of the Company, retire at 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being eligible, 
seek re-appointment. A resolution seeking Shareholders’ approval 
for his re-appointment forms part of the Notice of the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting.

2. Disclosure and Composition of the Committees of the 
Board

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
of the Board of Directors as required u/s 135 of the Act and Rules 
made thereunder and it comprises of three Non-Independent 
Directors. The composition of the CSR Committee as on March 
31,2022 was as below.

Name of the Member Category

Mr. Chanakya Chaudhary, 
Chairman

Non-Independent Non-
Executive Director

Mr. D B Sundara Ramam, 
Member

Non-Independent Non-
Executive Director

Mr. Pankaj Kumar Satija, 
Member

Non-Independent Executive 
Director

The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee have 
functioned effectively during the year under review.

3. Board Meeting

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the 
Company/business policy and strategy apart from other Board 
business. Only in case of special and urgent business, if the need 
arises, the Board’s or Committee’s approval is taken by passing 
resolutions through circulation or by calling the Board Committee 
meetings at short notice, as permitted by law.

The agenda for the Board and Committee meetings includes 
detailed notes on the items to be discussed to enable the 
Directors to make an informed decision.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, 13 Board 
Meetings, 2 CSR Committee Meetings were convened and held. 
The intervening gaps between the Board Meetings were within 
the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of the meetings held by the Board and various 
Committees during the year under review are given in Annexure B 
to this report.

4. Selection of new Directors and Board Membership Criteria

The Board determines appropriate characteristics, skills, 
experience for the Board as a whole and individual member with 
the objective of having a Board with diverse backgrounds and 
experience. The Company has in place a Board approved Policy on 
Appointment & Removal of Directors (‘Policy’).

5. Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company as on March 31, 2022 
are – Mr. Pankaj Kumar Satija, Managing Director, Mr. N S Raghu, 
Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Jatindra Kumar Panda, Company 
Secretary. 

Mr. M C Thomas was resigned from the Board and as Managing 
Director w.e.f. November 30, 2021 and Mr. Pankaj Kumar Satija was 
appointed as Managing Director for a period of three-years w.e.f 
from December 1, 2021. He is on Deputation from Tata Steel Ltd. Mr. 
Pushkar Sharma was resigned from the position of Chief Financial 
Officer w.e.f. November 18, 2021 and Mr. N S Raghu was appointed 
as Chief Financial Officer for a period of three years w.e.f. November 
19, 2021. He is on Deputation from Tata Steel Limited.

6. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and 
compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, 
the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial 
auditors and external consultants, including the audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting by the statutory auditors 
and the reviews performed by management the Board is of the 
opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were 
adequate and effective during FY 2021-22. 

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of 
Directors, to the best of its knowledge and ability, confirm that: 

i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed and there are no 
material departures; 

ii) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for 
that period; 

iii) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities; 

iv) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going 
concern basis; 

v) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

7. Compensation Policy for Board and Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP’s) & other Employees

The Company has adopted a policy for selection and appointment 
of Directors, KMP’s and other employees of the Company and 
their remuneration. The Policy lays down the parameters based 
on which remuneration (including fixed salary, benefits and 
perquisites, bonus / performance linked incentive, commission, 
retirement benefits) should be given to whole-time directors, 
KMPs and rest of the employees. It also lays down the parameters 
for remuneration payable to a Director for services rendered in 
other capacity.

8. Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its 
own performances, Board Committees, and individual Directors 
pursuant to the provisions of the Act.

The Board evaluated its performances after seeking inputs from 
all the Directors based on criteria such as the Board composition 
and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information 
and functioning, etc. The performance of the Committees 
was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the 
Committee members based on criteria such as the composition of 
committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

The Board reviewed the performance of individual Directors based 
on criteria such as the contribution of the individual Director to 
the Board and Committee meetings like preparedness on the 
issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution 
and inputs in meetings, etc.

The above evaluations were then discussed at the Board meeting 
at which the performance of the Board, its Committees, and 
individual Directors was also discussed. 

9. Material Changes and Commitments

On June 5, 2021, the Committee of Creditors, in terms of the CIRP 
of the Code, declared TSML as the successful resolution applicant 
for the acquisition of RFT, subject to necessary regulatory 
approvals including approval from the NCLT, Kolkata Bench. On 
April 7, 2022, the NCLT pronounced the Order approving the 
Resolution Plan submitted by the Company for acquisition of RFT. 
As per the Resolution Plan, the Company acquired 90% equity 
stake in Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited for ~ ` 617 crores.

Except as disclosed above in this report, there have been no 
material changes and commitments made between the end of the 
financial year of the company and date of this Report, which can 
affect the financial position of the Company.

10. Auditors

i) Statutory Auditors & Audit Report

M/s. Price Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountants LLP, of Kolkata, 
(FRN 304026E/E- 300009) (PWC) were appointed as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of 
the 13th AGM held in the calendar year 2017 until the conclusion 
of the ensuing Annual General Meeting and is eligible for 
reappointment. 

The Company has received confirmation from the Auditors to the 
effect that their appointment, if made, will be in accordance with 
the limits specified under the Companies Act, 2013 and the firm 
satisfies the criteria specified in Section 141 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 4 of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014.

The Board is of the opinion that continuation of M/s. Price 
Waterhouse & Co. Chartered Accountants LLP, as Statutory 
Auditors will be in the best interests of the Company and 
therefore, the members are requested to consider their re-
appointment as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a term 
of five years, from the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting, till the Annual General Meeting to be held in the 
calendar year 2027, at such remuneration mutually agreed and 
approved by the Board. 

The Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of the Company 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 is unmodified i.e. it 
does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. 
The Auditors’ Report is enclosed with the financial statements 
forming part of the annual report.

ii) Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s. Saroj 
Panda & Co., Practising Company Secretaries, to carry out the 
Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Report of the Secretarial 
Auditor for FY 2021-22 is attached herewith as Annexure C. 
There are no qualifications, observations or adverse remarks or 
disclaimer in the said report.

iii) Cost Auditors and Cost Audit Report

The Board of Directors of the Company had approved the 
appointment of M/s. Mani & Co., Cost Accountants, (Firm 
Registration No. 00004) as the Cost Auditors of the Company to 
conduct the audit of cost records for the financial year ending 
March 31, 2022. The same was ratified by the Members at the 17th 
Annual general Meeting held on July 5, 2021.

The cost audit report of the Company for the year ended March 
31, 2021 has been filed on October 24, 2021.

During the year under review, in accordance with Section 148(1) 
of the Act, the Company has maintained the accounts and cost 
records, as specified by the Central Government. Such cost 
accounts and records are subject to audit by M/s. Mani & Co., Cost 
Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 00004) Cost Auditors of the 
Company for FY 2021-22.

The Board has re-appointed M/s. Mani & Co., Cost Accountants, 
(Firm Registration No. 00004) as Cost Auditors of the Company 
for conducting cost audit for the FY 2022-23. A resolution seeking 
approval of the Shareholders for ratifying the remuneration 
payable to the Cost Auditors for FY 2022-23 is provided in the 
Notice of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

iv) Internal Auditors

The Internal Auditors conducted internal audit during the year 
under review and submitted its report to the Management on 
quarterly basis. The Board reviews the internal audit report on 
quarterly basis.

11. Risk Management

 The Company has adopted Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) 
framework based on guidelines provided by Tata Steel and has 
mapped key risk areas which may affect business and operational 
objectives of your Company. Risk list is periodically revisited to 
see its relevance and to have a check on emergence of any new 
risks. The early warning indicators and mitigation strategies are 
continuously monitored by management.

The existing ERM document was revisited based on changes in 
business scenario. The new Risk Register has been developed 
after deliberation by senior management of Tata Steel and Board 
members during business plan formulation for the year.
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12. Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions entered during the financial year 
were on an Arm’s length basis and were in the Ordinary course of 
business. These RPTs did not attract provisions of Section 188 of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Since, all the transactions entered into by the Company with 
the related parties during the period under review were in the 
ordinary course of business & on arm’s length basis, and hence, the 
particulars as required under Section 134(1)(h) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
relating to contracts or arrangements entered by the Company 
with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in Form AOC – 2 is not required to be provided.

13. Extract of the Annual Return as per section 92(3) of the 
companies act, 2013

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rules 
framed thereunder, the extract of the annual return for FY 2022 
is uploaded on the website of the Company and the same is 
available on www.tatasteelmining.com. 

14. Particulars of Employees

The particulars of employees as required under Section 197 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, have been provided in Annexure-D to this Report.

15. Deposits from Public

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as 
such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits 
from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet. 

16. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

The particulars of loans, guarantees or investments covered under 
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
given in the notes to the financial statement.

17. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology 
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo as 
stipulated under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out in the 
Annexure - E to this report.

18. Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators 
or Courts

There have been no significant and material orders passed 
by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and the Company’s future operations. However, 
Members’ attention is drawn to the statement on contingent 
liabilities, commitments in the notes forming part of the Financial 
Statements.

19. Vigil Mechanism

The Vigil Mechanism as envisaged in the provisions of Section 
177(10) of the Companies Act 2013 is implemented through the 
Company’s Whistle Blower Policy for Directors & Employees and 
Vendors which enables all the stakeholders to report genuine 
concerns. 

The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company encourages Directors, 
employees and vendors to bring to the Company’s attention, 
instances of unethical behavior and actual or suspected incidents 
of fraud or violation of the Code of Conduct that could adversely 
impact the Company’s operations, business performance and/
or reputation. The Company investigates such incidents, when 
reported, in an impartial manner and takes appropriate action 

to ensure that the requisite standards of professional and ethical 
conduct are always upheld. It is the Company’s Policy to ensure 
that no employee or vendor is victimized or harassed for bringing 
such incidents to the attention of the Company. 

20. Disclosure as per the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013

The Company has adopted zero tolerance for sexual harassment 
at the workplace and has formulated a policy on prevention, 
prohibition, and redressal of sexual harassment at the workplace 
in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and 
the rules thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of 
sexual harassment at workplace. 

Constitution of Internal Complaints Committee

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the 
constitution of the Internal Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013. The members of the Committee meet 
time to time and will be responsible for redressal of grievances/
complaints as and when made by the employees.

During the financial year 2021-22, two complaints were received, 
investigated and resolved as per the consequence management of 
Tata Steel for Sexual Harassment. The company has also extended 
the POSH guidelines applicable to all employees to provide 
harassment free workplace for all people. 

21. Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures/ Associate

The Company is holding 6.42% equity shares in Bhubaneshwar 
Power Pvt Ltd. No other company has become or ceased to be 
subsidiaries/ joint venture/ associate company during the year.

22. Frauds reported by Auditor

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as 
specified under Section 143(12) of the Act.

23. Secretarial Standard

The Company has in place proper systems to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of the applicable Secretarial Standards issued 
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and such systems 
are adequate and operating effectively.

24. Internal Financial Control & Internal Audit

Internal financial control systems of the company have been 
designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to 
recording and providing reliable financial and operational 
information, complying with applicable Accounting Standards.

Independent internal auditors conduct audit covering a wide 
range of operational matters and ensure compliances with specific 
standards. Planned periodic reviews are carried out by Internal 
Audit. The findings of internal audit are reviewed by the top 
management and by the Board of Directors.

Based on the deliberations with the statutory auditors to ascertain 
their view on the financial statements including the financial 
reporting systems and compliance to Accounting Policies and 
procedures.

 The Company has well- defined and documented delegation of 
authority with specified limits for approval of expenditure, both 
capital and revenue.

The company periodically conducts physical verification of 
inventory, fixed assets and cash on hand and matches them with 
the books of accounts. Explanations are sought for any variances 
noticed from the respective functional heads.

The company has adopted accounting policies which are in 
line with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. These are 
in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in 
India.

G. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors place on record sincere gratitude for the 
support extended by Tata Steel Limited. 

The Board conveys its appreciation for its customers suppliers 
as well as vendors, bankers, business associates, regulatory and 

government authorities district administrations and local bodies 
for their continued support.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: June 29, 2022

Sd/-
D B Sundara Ramam 
Chairman
DIN:06437027
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Annexure A

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22
1. A brief outline of the Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy, including overview of projects or programs 

proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs

Purpose
Tata Steel Mining believes that the primary purpose of a business is to improve the quality of life of people. Tata Steel Mining would 
volunteer its resources and partner with government bodies, community members to improve the quality of life of the employees 
and communities it serves.

TSML Focus Areas
The focus has been on improving quality of life of Socially and economically marginalized groups with particular emphasis on 
women, girl children and scheduled castes and tribes.Preference would be given to communities in the geographies where we 
operate.

Approach
The Company’s CSR will revolve around six guiding principles – Impact, Partnerships, Affirmative Action, Volunteerism, 
Communication and Innovation.

Our CSR activities focus on education, health, water, livelihood, and urban infrastructure. We also undertake community-centric 
interventions in the areas of sports, disaster relief, environment & ethnicity.

2. Composition of CSR Committee

Sl. 
No.

Name of Director
(Identity of the Chairman)

Designation / Nature of Directorship
Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 
held

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended during 
the year

1 Mr. Chanakya Chaudhary Chairman/Non-Executive Director 2 2

2 Mr. D B Sundara Ramam Member/Non-Executive Director 2 2

3 Mr. Pankaj Kumar Satija # Member/Managing Director 2 1

4 Mr. M.C.Thomas ## Member/Managing Director 2 1
# Appointed as member of CSR Committee w.e.f. 1st December 2021
## Ceased to be member of CSR Committee w.e.f 30th November 2021

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the 
website of the company are provided below.

The Composition of CSR Committee: https://www.tatasteelmining.com/sustainability/ethics-and-compliance

CSR Policy: https://www.tatasteelmining.com/sites/default/files/2022-05/csr-policy.pdf

CSR Projects: https://www.tatasteelmining.com/sustainability/ethics-and-compliance

4. Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any

Sl. 
No.

Financial 
Year

Amount available for set-off from preceding 
financial years (in ` Lakhs)

Amount required to be setoff for the financial year, if any 
(in ` Lakhs)

Not Applicable

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).: ` 501.61 Lakhs

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ` 10.03 Lakhs

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): ` 10.03 Lakhs

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

Total Amount Spent 
for the Financial 
Year (in ` Lakhs)

Amount Unspent (in ` Lakhs)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 
Account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as 
per second proviso to section 135(5).

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

179.60 - - - - -

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

Sl. 
No

Name of the 
Project.

Item from the list of 
activities in Schedule 
VII to the Act.

Local area 
(Yes/No).

Location of the project Project 
duration

Amount allocated 
for the project (in ` 

Lakhs)
State District

1 - - - - - - -

Total -

(8) (9) (10) (11)

Amount spent 
in the current 
financial Year 
(in ` Lakhs) 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 
Account for 
the project as 
per Section 
135(6) (in `)

Mode of 
Implementation - 
Direct (Yes/No)

Mode of 
Implementation 
- Through 
Implementing Agency

Name. CSR 
registration 
number

1 - - - - -

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl 
No

Name of the Project

Item from the list 
of activities in 
Schedule VII to 

the Act.

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No).

Location of the 
project.

Amount 
spent 

for the 
project 

(in ` 
lakhs).

Mode of 
Implementation- 

Direct (Yes/No)

Mode of 
Implementation - 

Through Implementing 
Agency 

State District Name 
CSR 

Registration

1 Supply of Drinking 
Water through Tanker

Clause (i) Yes Odisha Jajpur 21.37 TSF CSR00001142

2 Static Clinic

Health & Hygiene 
Clause(i)

Yes Odisha Jajpur 15.56 No TSF CSR00001142

Mobile Medical units 
and Ambulance

Yes Odisha Jajpur 7.20 No TSF CSR00001142

Health Camp Yes Odisha Jajpur 7.73 No TSF CSR00001142

COVID-19 initiatives Yes Odisha Jajpur 3.55 No TSF CSR00001142

Kitchen Garden 
programme

Yes Odisha Jajpur 6.58 No TSF CSR00001142

Initiative for Safe 
Sexual health by 
Adolescents

Yes Odisha Jajpur 5.77 No TSF CSR00001142

Awareness 
programme on 
Prevention of 
Communicable 
Diseases 

Yes Odisha Jajpur 0.73 No TSF CSR00001142

Awareness 
Programme on BCC & 
Health Promotion 

Yes Odisha Jajpur 1.48 No TSF CSR00001142
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl 
No

Name of the Project

Item from the list 
of activities in 
Schedule VII to 

the Act.

Local 
area 
(Yes/
No).

Location of the 
project.

Amount 
spent 

for the 
project 

(in ` 
lakhs).

Mode of 
Implementation- 

Direct (Yes/No)

Mode of 
Implementation - 

Through Implementing 
Agency 

State District Name 
CSR 

Registration

3 Water Harvesting 
Structure to conserve 
Rain water

Livelihood & 
AgricultureClause 
(ii)

Yes Odisha Jajpur 11.03 No TSF CSR00001142

Agriculture 
activities& Dry land 
farming

Yes Odisha Jajpur 4.07 No TSF CSR00001142

Promote cultivation 
of Second crop

Yes Odisha Jajpur 2.68 No TSF CSR00001142

Livelihood through 
Agriculture and 
Allied activities

Yes Odisha Jajpur 40.62 No TSF CSR00001142

Livelihood through 
allied integrated 
farming system

Yes Odisha Jajpur 1.91 No TSF CSR00001142

Capacity building of 
farmers institution

Yes Odisha Jajpur 2.87 No TSF CSR00001142

Horticulture 
Development

Yes Odisha Jajpur 3.39 No TSF CSR00001142

4 Short Term Skill 
Development 
programmes

Skill 
Development 
Clause(ii)

Yes Odisha Jajpur 1.38 No TSF CSR00001142

5 Women 
Empowerment 
Programme Women 

Empowerment 
Clause(ii)

Yes Odisha Jajpur 1.67 No TSF CSR00001142

Support for Business 
Development of Self 
Help Groups

2.84 TSF CSR00001142

6 Spoken English 
& Soft Skill 
Development 

Promoting 
Education Clause 
(ii)

Yes Odisha Jajpur 10.54 No TSF CSR00001142

7 Tribal Meet Ethnicity Clause (v) Yes Odisha Jajpur 5.93 No TSF CSR00001142

8 Disaster Relief 
Management

Clause(xii) Yes Odisha Jajpur 0.79 No TSF CSR00001142

9 Infrastructural 
support for Rural 
development

Rural 
Infrastructure. 
Clause(x)

Yes Odisha Jajpur 6.43 No TSF CSR00001142

10 Maintenance of 
Drinking water 
system

Drinking water. 
Clause (i)

Yes Odisha Cuttack 0.73 Yes

11 Provide Facilities for 
Covid 19

Health Clause(i) Yes Odisha Cuttack 8.10 Yes

Contribution to Red 
cross

Health Clause(i) Yes Odisha Cuttack 0.30 Yes

12 Development of 
Community Center

Rural 
Infrastructure 
Clause(x)

Yes Odisha Cuttack 2.23 Yes

13 Contribution for 
Cultural Programme

Ethnicity Clause (v) Yes Odisha Cuttack 2.12 Yes

Total 179.60

(d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

(e)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(f )  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): `179.60 Lakhs

(g)  Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil 

Sl. No. Particulars Amount (in ` Lakhs)

1 Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 10.03

2 Total amount spent for the Financial Year 179.60

3 Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 169.57

4 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, 
if any

-

5 Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] * -

* The Company does not propose to avail any set-off , against the excess amount spent in FY 2021-22 for set off in succeeding financial year

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years

Sl. 
No

Preceding 
Financial Year

Amount 
transferred to 

Unspent CSR 
Account under 
section 135 (6) 

(in `.)

Amount spent 
in the reporting 

Financial Year 
(in `)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per section 135(6), if any.

Amount 
remaining to 

be spent in 
succeeding 

financial years. 
(in `)

Name of the 
Fund Amount (in `) Date of transfer

1 - - - - - - -

Total - - - - - -

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s)

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

Sl. 
No

Project ID Name of the 
Project

Financial Year 
in which the 
project was 

commenced.

Project 
duration

Total amount 
allocated for 

the project 
(in `).

Amount 
spent on the 

project in the 
reporting 

Financial Year 
(in `).

Cumulative 
amount spent 

at the end 
of reporting 

Financial 
Year. (in `)

Status of 
the project - 
Completed /

Ongoing.

1 - - - - - - -

Total - - - - - -

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR 
spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).: Not applicable

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital Asset: Nil

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.: Not 
applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset). Nil

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5).

During the year under review, Company had spent more than two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5).

Sd/- 
Pankaj Kumar Satija
Managing Director
DIN:06689554

Sd/- 
Chanakya Chaudhary
Chairman CSR Committee
DIN:02139568
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Annexure B

Details of Meetings of Board of Directors and its Committees held during the 
Period April 1, 2021 to March 31, 2022

Meetings of Board of Directors: During the year under report, 13 (Thirteen) Board Meetings were held on April 27,2021, May 31, 2021, 
July 8, 2021, July 20, 2021, Aug 19, 2021, September 10, 2021, September 13, 2021, September 27, 2021, October 27, 2021, November 19, 
2021, November 30, 2021, January 27, 2022 and March 30, 2022.

Names of Directors
Number of Meetings held during the 

financial year 2021-22
Number of meetings attended

Mr. D B Sundara Ramam 13 13

Mr. Chanakya Chaudhary 13 13

Ms Meena Lall 13 10

Mr. M C Thomas# 13 11

Mr. Pankaj Kumar Satija ## 13 5

# Ceased to be Director w.e.f November 30, 2021
## Appointed as Director w.e.f October 27, 2021

Meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
During the year under report, 2 (Two) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meetings were held on April 27, 2021, and January 25, 
2022.

Names of Directors
Number of Meetings held during the 

financial year 2021-22
Number of meetings attended

Mr. D B Sundara Ramam 2 2

Mr. Chanakya Chaudhary 2 2

Mr. Pankaj Kumar Satija # 2 1

Mr. M C Thomas ## 2 1

# Appointed as Member w.e.f December 1, 2021
## Ceased to be Member w.e.f November 30, 2021

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: June 29, 2022

D B Sundara Ramam
Chairman
DIN:06437027

Annexure C

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 
The Members, 
TATA STEEL MINING LIMITED 
Formerly T S Alloys Limited
(CIN: U27109OR2004PLC009683)
Plot No. N-3/24, IRC Village 
Nayapalli 
Bhubaneswar-751015

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance 
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by TATA STEEL MINING LIMITED (hereinafter 
called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 
thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute 
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the company and also the information provided by the Company, 
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on 31st March 2022 (“Audit Report”) complied with the 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the 
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made 
thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and 
the rules made there under; (Not Applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period).

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws 
framed there under; (Not Applicable to the Company during 
the Audit Period).

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period).

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’):- (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period).

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period).

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; (Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period).

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of 
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period)

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee 
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period). 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and 
Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 

(f ) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to 
and Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period).

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of 
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period).

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback 
of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not Applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period).

 (vi) Other laws as may be applicable specifically to the company:

1 The Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Trans 
boundary) Rules, 2008. 

2 The Public Liability Insurance Act/ Rules, 1991 

3 The Bio-Medical Waste (Management and Handling) 
Rules,1998. 

4 The Gas Cylinder Rules 1981 

5 The Petroleum Act, 1934 and The Petroleum Rules, 1976 

6 The Factories Act, 1948 

7 The Motor Vehicle Act 1988 and The Motor Vehicle Rules 
1989, 

8 The Batteries (Management & Handling) Rules 2001 

9 The Water (Prevention and Control Of Pollution) Act 1974

10 The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act 1981

11 The Environment (Protection) Act 1986
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12 The Static and Mobile Pressure Vessel (Unfired) Rules 1981. 

13 The Indian Electricity Act, 2003 

14 The Orissa Minerals (Prevention of Theft, Smuggling & Illegal 
Mining and Regulation of Possession, Storage, Trading and 
Transportation) Rules, 2007

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 
clauses of the following: 

(i) The Company has Complied the Secretarial Standards issued 
by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with 
Stock Exchange(s), ; (Not Applicable to the Company during 
the Audit Period)

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with 
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors. 
The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board 
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting in exigency and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are 
carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 
meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as 
the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes 
in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 

NOTE: This report is to be read with detailed audit observation in 
Annexure- A and our letter of even dated annexed as Annexure- B 
forming an integral part of this report.

Place : Bhubaneswar
Date : June 29, 2022

Sd/-
FOR SAROJ PANDA & CO
CS Saroj Kumar Panda
FCS No. F 5071
C P No.: 3699
UDIN No. F005071D000542344

Annexure A

OBSERVATION ON SECRETARIAL AUDIT

We report that M/S TATA STEEL MINING LIMITED, CIN- U27109OR2004PLC009683, having its Registered office at PLOT NO. N-3/24, IRC 
VILLAGE, NAYAPALLI, BHUBANESWAR-751015 ODISHA, INDIA, complies to the observations as below.

COMPOSITION of BOARD
During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company comprised of the following Directors

LIST OF DIRECTORS & KMP DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22

Sl. 
No.

Name of the Directors Positions Held Date of Appointment Date of Cessation

1 Mr. Chanakya Chaudhary Director 01/06/2020 -

2 Mrs. Meena Lall Director 09/03/2021 -

3 Mr Sundararamam Dwaraka Bhamidipati Director  01/06/2020 -

4 Mr. Thomas Maliackal Cherian Managing Director 18/07/2017 30/11/2021

5 Mr. Jatindra Kumar Panda Company Secretary 01/05/2018 -

6 Mr. Pushkar Sharma CFO(KMP) 15/06/2020 19/11/2021

7 Mr Pankaj Kumar Satija Managing Director 1/12/2021

8 Mr. Raghu Srinivasa Neralla CFO(KMP) 19/11/2021

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted and 
the changes in the Board of Directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for the Financial Year 2021-
22.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year under review, Thirteen (13) meetings 
of the Board of Directors of the Company i.e. from 120th to 
132nd were held on April 27, 2021, May 31, 2021, July 8, 2021, 
July 20, 2021, August 19, 2021, September 10, 2021, September 
13, 2021, September 27, 2021, October 27, 2021, November 19, 
2021, November 30, 2021, January 27, 2022 and March 30, 2022 
respectively.

For all the Board Meetings, adequate notices were circulated to 
all Directors. Agenda and detailed notes on Agenda were sent in 
advance to all the Directors, in compliance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act and the Secretarial Standards. The requisite 
Quorum was present in all the Board Meetings, mostly vide video 
conferencing by the Directors from their respective place, due to 
COVID-19 scenario, during the financial year as per provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has a system existing for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items placed 
before the meetings for the meaningful participation.

All the decisions at the Board Meetings were carried out with 
requisite majority and recorded in the Minute’s Book of the 
Meeting maintained for the purpose as per the provisions of the 
Act.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

During the financial year under review, Annual General Meeting 
of the Company was held on July 5, 2021 for adopting financial 
statements, Audit Reports and Directors’ Report thereon. All the 

agenda items were approved with unanimous consent of all the 
members vide video conferencing in the meeting.

EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

During the financial year under review, two (2) Extra Ordinary 
General Meetings of the Company were held on September 
14, 2021 and November 19, 2021 respectively with unanimous 
consent of all the members cum directors vide video conferencing.

The need and highlights of the meetings were for enhancing the 
Paid up Capital of the Company to be raised vide Preferential issue 
method from Holding Company ( Existing member) through Cash 
basis and another for Change of Designation of Director, from 
Additional Director to Director.

STATUTORY COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

CSR Committee:

During the financial year under review, the company fulfils the 
criteria as stipulated in Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013. Hence, to formulate the CSR Policy, the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Committee of the Company has been constituted as 
per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014, Guidelines, Regulations and Standards.

The CSR Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company 
comprised of the following members:

• Mr. Chanakya Chaudhary – Chairman of the Committee.

• Mr. D B Sundara Ramam 

• Mr. Pankaj Kumar Satija

During the financial year under review, Two (2) meetings were 
held. 

For the CSR Committee Meetings, adequate notices were 
circulated to all the Members of the Committee. Agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance to all the Directors, 
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in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act and the 
Secretarial Standards.

The Company has a system existing, for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items placed 
before the meetings for the meaningful participation at the 
meetings. 

All decisions at the Committee Meetings were carried out 
unanimously and recorded in the Minutes Book of the respective 
Committee Meeting.

Maintenance of Statutory Registers & Records: 

All Statutory Registers, records and other registers as prescribed 
under various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 
made there under were kept and maintained by the Company 
properly with all necessary entries made therein. Provisions of 
these Acts were duly complied with during the period under 

report.

Filing of Statutory Forms & Returns as per Companies Act, 2013:

During the financial year under review, various forms and returns 
as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 were duly filed 
with MCA/Registrar of Companies within the prescribed time 
limit or in the extended time along with the payment of requisite/
prescribed fees.

Compliance with Applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations & Guidelines:

During the financial year under review and explanations as 
provided by the Management of the Company, adequate systems 
commensurate with its size & operations exist to monitor & ensure 
compliance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

Place : Bhubaneswar
Date : June 29, 2022

Sd/-
FOR SAROJ PANDA & CO
CS Saroj Kumar Panda
FCS No. F 5071
C P No.: 3699
UDIN No. F005071D000542344

Annexure B

To, 
The Members, 
TATA STEEL MINING LIMITED 
Formerly T S Alloys Limited
(CIN: U27109OR2004PLC009683)
Plot No. N-3/24, IRC Village 
Nayapalli 
Bhubaneswar-751015

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on our Audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of 
the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the 
Management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the company

Place : Bhubaneswar
Date : June 29, 2022

Sd/-
FOR SAROJ PANDA & CO
CS Saroj Kumar Panda
FCS No. F 5071
C P No.: 3699
UDIN No. F005071D000542344
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Annexure D

The Particulars of Employees as required under Section 197, read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 forming part of the Directors Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022

Sl 
No

Name
Designation /Nature of 
Duties

Gross remuneration 
(` in Lakhs)

Qualification Age (Yrs) Experience
Date of Commencement of 
employment

Previous employment /Position held

1 Mr. Pankaj Kumar Satija # Managing Director 69.59 B. Tech. in Mining from IIT (ISM) Dhanbad & First-
Class Mines Manager Competency Certificate/ 
PGDBM, XLRI, Jamshedpur

51 Yrs 19 Yrs+ 27.10.2021 Chief Regulatory Affairs, India Tata Steel Ltd.

2 Mr. Bibhudutta Nanda Sr. GM Ferro Alloys 141.19 B.E(Metallurgy) 54 Yrs 30 Yrs+ 16.06.2016 Chief Ferro Alloys Operations Tata Steel Ltd

3 Mr. Sushanta Kumar Mishra Sr. GM Mining 129.09 B.E(Mining) 50 Yrs 26 Yrs+ 01.04.2020 General Manager (Operations) FAMD, Tata Steel Ltd

4 Mr. Rajashri Palit Sr. GM commercial 125.55 B.E. in Mechanical & PGDBM from XLRI 52 Yrs 30 Yrs+ 01.01.2021 Chief of Marketing & Sales, FAMD Tata Steel Ltd

5  Mr. Bibhudutta Mohanty Sr. GM Ferro Alloys 70.58 B. E. in Electrical  from Bangalore University 54 Yrs 29 Yrs+ 15.09.2021 Chief Safety Tata Steel Ltd 

6 Mr. M C Thomas ## Managing Director 128.43 BTech (Mining) & PGDM from XLRI 49 Yrs 28 Yrs+ 01.06.2020 EIC in FAMD of Tata Steel Ltd

7 Mr. N S Raghu Chief Financial Officer 40.45 ICWA , Costing , Institute of Cost and Work 
Accounts

54 Yrs 31 Yrs 16.11.2021 Chief Financial Officer TRF Ltd

8 Mr. Rajeeb Kumar Mohanty Assistant General Manager, 
Mine Planning & Geology

85.28 M. Sc. Geology from University of Roorkee 52 Yrs 18 Yrs+ 02.04.2021 Principal Geologist FAM & Flux, Tata Steel Ltd

9 Mr. Biswadeb Dasgupta Assistant General Manager, 
Information Technology

71.42 AMIE in Electrical , Institution of Engineers,India 
& PGD in Marketing from AIMA Delhi

52 Yrs 31 Yrs+ 15.06.2020 Head Client Partner, Marketing & Sales Tata Steel Limited

10 Mr. Naveen Shrivastava Assistant General Manager 
Mining, Twins

71.02 B. E. in  Mining from Pt. Ravishankar Shukla 
University & & First-Class Mines Manager 
Competency Certificate

49 Yrs 19 Yrs+ 15.01.2021 Head, Officer on Deputation M/s Tata Sponge Iron Ltd.

#Appointed as Director w.e.f December 1, 2021
## Ceased to be Director w.e.f November 30, 2021

Notes:

1. The Nature of Employment in all cases are contractual.

2. Mr. Pankaj Kumar Satija, Mr. Bibhudutta Nanda & Mr. Sushanta Kumar Mishra hold 100 shares each jointly with Tata Steel Limited in 
the Company

3. The above officials are not relatives of any Director of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: June 29, 2022

Sd/-
D B Sundara Ramam
Chairman
DIN:06437027
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Annexure E

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption, and Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo required under the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014

A. Conservation of Energy

Company ensures that the manufacturing operations are 
conducted in the manner whereby optimum utilisation and 
maximum possible savings of energy is achieved. 

I. FERRO ALLOYS PLANT, ATHAGARH

i. Energy conservation measures taken or impact on 
conservation of Energy during FY’22

• Installation of 02 nos of LED High Masts (saving of 240 Units 
per day)

• Installation of VFDs in SKIP Systems (savings up to 600Units 
per day)

ii. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate 
sources of energy

• Roof top solar panel installation has been planned over 
Despatch yard shed.

• Conversion of all conventional luminaries to LED is being 
done in phased manner.

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation 
Equipments - Nil

iv. Total energy consumption and energy consumption per 
unit of production

• 190785250 Units of Energy consumed in FY 2021-22

• 3470 units of energy consumed per MnT of production in 
FY2021-22. 

II. SUKINDA CHROMITE MINES

i. Energy conservation measures taken or impact on 
conservation of Energy during FY’22

• Installation of timer in Lighting DG set for auto operation 
of DG sets with a predefined time setting. Rs 30000/month 
(Saving Diesel 300 ltr/month)

• Replacement of conventional ceiling fans with energy 
efficient fans at township

• Maintaining unit power factor - Rs 4.5 lakh/month (Saving 
kwh- 75000 unit)

• Installation of 200 Nos. LED Street Light in place of HPSV 
light in mines and township area. Rs 1800/month (saving 
kwh 300 unit/month 

• Using 5-star AC in township area.

• Using 500 Nos. LED bulb in place of 40-watt tube light in 
township area. Rs 16000/month

• Automatic operation of all street light and high mast at 
mines and township area.

• Switching off the Central AC completely in winter season 
and maintain ventilation naturally or by blower fan at 
ADMN building. - Rs 3250/month (saving kwh -540 unit/
month)

• Using of Motion sensor in admin building for automatic 
switching off the light.

• Diverting aux. LT load to one transformer in place of 4 
transformers to maximizing the efficiency and avoiding 
underutilization.

ii. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate 
sources of energy

• Installed 10 Solar Street Lights at colony area. - Rs 2400/
month

• Installed Solar delineators in mines in place of conventional 
lighting reflector. Rs 2500/month (Installed 200 nos in 
mines, Saving- Kwh 415 unit/Month)

• Using solar water heater in place of conventional heater. Rs 
800/month- (Saving Kwh- 120 unit/month)

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation 
Equipment’s

• NIL

iv. Total energy consumption and energy consumption per 
unit of production

• 55.42 lakh units (lakh kWh) of total Energy consumed in 
FY2021-22 

• 1.376 units (kWh) of energy consumed per CUM of 
excavation in FY2021-22. 

III. TWIN MINES (SARUABIL & KAMARDA MINES)

i. Energy conservation measures taken or impact on 
conservation of Energy during    FY’22

ii. The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate 
sources of energy

• Installation of 20 Solar street light in the mining haul road in 
place of LED light 

iii. The capital investment on energy conservation 
Equipments - Nil

iv. Total energy consumption and energy consumption per 
unit of production

• 1292609 Units of Energy consumed in FY 2021-22 in 
Kamarda

• 1355666 Units of Energy consumed in FY 2021-22 in 
Saruabil

• 0.64 units (kWh) of energy consumed per CUM of 
excavation in FY2021-22 in Kamarda

• 1.71 units (kWh) of energy consumed per CUM of 
excavation in FY2021-22 in Saruabil

B. Technology Absorption

Company’s products are manufactured by using in-house know 
how and no outside technology is being used for manufacturing 
activities. Therefore, no technology absorption is required. The 
Company constantly strives for maintenance and improvement in 
quality of its products.  

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

Amount in ` Lakhs

Foreign Exchange 2022-21 2020-21

Earnings 222,892.99 19345.55

Outgo
a) CIF Value of Imports

i) Raw Material
ii) Stores & consumables
iii) Capital goods

63067.80

63034.85
-
-

-

7810.20
98.68

-

Expenditure in foreign currency 
(on annual basis)
b) Others (Travelling, Conference 

fee etc.)

27.41

5.54
-

-

-

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Jamshedpur
Date: June 29, 2022

Sd/-
D B Sundara Ramam
Chairman
DIN:06437027
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Tata Steel Mining Limited (formerly known as T 
S Alloys Limited)

Report on the Audit of the financial statements

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements 
of Tata Steel Mining Limited(formerly known as T S Alloys 
Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet 
as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at March 31, 2022, and total comprehensive 
income (comprising of loss and other comprehensive income), 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Other Information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Directors’report,but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we will not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other informationand, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with 
governance for the financial statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to 
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, 

changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records,relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.

8. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances.Under Section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

9. We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 

10. We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

11. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 
(“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give 
in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including other comprehensive income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply 
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 
of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors as on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f ) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), 
in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us:  

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements – Refer Note 20 and 30 to the financial 
statements;

ii. The Company was not required to recognise a 
provision as atMarch 31, 2022 under the applicable 
law or accounting standards, as it does not have any 
material foreseeable losses on long-term contract. The 
Company did not have any derivative contracts as at 
March 31, 2022.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 
2022.

iv. (a) The management has  represented that, to the best 
of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes 
to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries (Refer Note 43(vi)(A) to the financial 
statements);

(b) The management has represented that, to the best 
of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes 
to the accounts, no funds have been received by the 
Company from any person or entity, including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries(Refer Note 43(vi)(B) to the financial 
statements); and

(c) Based on such audit procedures that we considered 
reasonable and appropriate in thecircumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) 
and (b) contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend 
during the year. 

13. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration 
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act, 
except for managerial remuneration amounting to Rs. 198.02 
lakhs which is subject to approval of shareholders by way of 
special resolution in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of 
the Company. Also refer Note 33(iii) of Financial Statements.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

Place: Gurugram
Date:  June 29, 2022

Sd/-
Amit Jain
Partner
Membership Number: 098053
UDIN: 22098053ALWYIM5712

76 77Corporate Overview | Statutory Reports | Financial Statements www.tatasteelmining.com2nd Integrated Report 2022



Annexure A to Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 12(f ) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Mining Limited(formerly 
known as T S Alloys Limited) on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference 
to Financial Statementsunder clause (i) of sub-section 3 
ofSection 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements of Tata Steel Mining Limited (formerly 
known as T S Alloys Limited) (“the Company”) as of March 31, 
2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controlsbased on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteriaestablished 
by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated inthe Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(“the Guidance Note”) issued bythe Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the 
design,implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operatingeffectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence tocompany’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds anderrors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation ofreliable financial information, as required under 
the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on 
Auditing deemed to be prescribedunder Section 143(10) of 
the Act to the extent applicable to an audit ofinternal financial 
controls, bothapplicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controlswith reference to financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy ofthe internal financial 
controls system with reference to financial statements and 
their operating effectiveness.Our audit of internal financial 
controlswith reference to financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that 
amaterial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness ofinternal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’sjudgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to providea basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
financial statements

6. A company’s internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. Acompany’s internal financial 
controlswith reference to financial statements includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail,accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparationof financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance withauthorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, ordisposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control controls with reference to financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes 
inconditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an 
adequate internal financial controls system with reference to 
financial statements and such internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2022, based on theinternal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026 E/E-300009

Place: Gurugram
Date:  June 29, 2022

Sd/-
Amit Jain
Partner
Membership Number: 098053
UDIN: 22098053ALWYIM5712

Annexure B to Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Tata Steel Mining Limited (formerly 
known as T S Alloys Limited) on the financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022

i. (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation, of 
Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full 
particulars of Intangible Assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified 
by the Management accordingto a phased programme 
designed to cover all the items over a period of three 
years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard 
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.  

Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, 
Plant and Equipment has been physically verified by 
the Management during the year and no material 
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties(other than 
properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), 
as disclosed in Note2A(i) and Note 3A(i) to the financial 
statements, are held in the name of the Company, except 
for the following:

Description of 
property

Gross 
carrying 
value (Rs. 
lakhs)

Held in the name 
of 

Whether promoter, 
director or their 
relative or employee

Period held 
- indicate 
range, where 
appropriate

Reason for not being held in the name 
of the Company

Freehold Land 11.81 In the name of 
erstwhile T S Alloys 
Limited.

No May 19, 2020 Pursuant to change of name the company 
to Tata Steel Mining Limited.

Leasehold 
Land

557.14 In the name of 
erstwhile Rawmet 
Ferrous Industries 
Private Limited

No January 10, 2011 Pursuant to change of name of the 
companyto T S Alloys Limited and 
thereafter to Tata Steel Mining Limited. The 
application for the change has been made 
to the concerned authorities.

(d) The Company has chosen cost model for its Property, 
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) 
and intangible assets.Consequently, the question of our 
commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the 
valuation by a Registered Valuer, or specifying the amount 
of change, if the change is 10% or more in the aggregate 
of the net carrying value of each class of Property, 
Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or 
intangible assets does not arise.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to 
us, no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending 
against the Company for holding benami property 
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions 
Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and 
Rules made thereunder, and therefore the question of our 
commenting on whether the Company has appropriately 
disclosed the details in its financial statements does not 
arise.

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory has been 
conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
Management during the year and, in our opinion, 
the coverage and procedure of such verification by 
Management is appropriate. In respect of inventory 
lying with third parties, these have substantially 
been confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed 
on physical verification of inventory as compared 
to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate 
for each class of inventory and have been 
appropriately dealt with in the books of account.

(b) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned 
working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in 

aggregate, from a bank on the basis of security 
of current assets for a major part of the year. The 
Company was not required to file quarterly returns 
or statements with the bank and has accordingly 
not filed the same. Consequently, the question 
of our commenting on whether these returns or 
statements are in agreement with the unaudited 
books of account of the Company does not arise. 
(Also refer Note 43(xii) to the financial statements)

iii. The Company has not made any investments, granted 
secured/ unsecured loans/advances in nature of loans, 
or stood guarantee, or provided security to any parties. 
Therefore, the reporting under clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b),(iii)
(c), (iii)(d), (iii)(e) and (iii)(f ) of the Order are not applicable to 
the Company.

iv.  In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with 
the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 in respect of the loans and investments made, and 
guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts 
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of 
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed 
there under to the extent notified.

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of 
India, the Company is required to maintain cost records as 
specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in respect of its 
products. We have broadly reviewed the same and are of 
the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and 
records have been made and maintained. We have not, 
however, made a detailed examination of the records with a 
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view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to 
us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our 
opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues in respect of goods and service 
tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance and income 
tax, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases, and 
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including 
sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax, cess, and other material statutory dues, as 

applicable, with the appropriate authorities.Also, refer note 
42 to the financial statements regarding management’s 
assessment on the matter relating to demand in respect of 
royalty and bid premium.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 
to us and the records of the Company examined by 
us, the particulars of statutory dues referred to in sub-
clause (a)as at March 31, 2022 which have not been 
deposited on account of a dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount (` lakhs)
Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where the dispute is 
pending

Central Excise Act, 
1944

Excise Duty and 
Interest

489.40 (net of amount paid 
under protest ` Nil)

FY’2004 to 2006 The Customs Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal

Central Excise Act, 
1944

Excise Duty and 
Interest

167.26 (net of amount paid 
under protest `25.11)

FY’2011 to 2016 The Customs Excise and 
Service Tax Appellate 
Tribunal

The Central Sales Tax 
Act, 1956

Sales Tax 5.48 (net of amount paid 
under protest ` Nil)

FY’2014 to 2016 Sales Tax Tribunal

Minerals (Other than 
Atomic and Hydro 
Carbons Energy 
Mineral) Concession 
Rules-2016 and 
Amendment Rule 
2021 in reference to 
Rule 13 of Mineral 
Auction Rule 2015

Royalty, Bid Premium, 
Contribution to 
District Mineral 
Foundation and 
National Mineral 
Exploration Trust and 
User Fee

41,357.17 (net of amount 
paid under protest 
`20,000.00)

July 23, 2020 to July 22, 
2021 (Sukinda)

High Court of Odisha

2,298.04 (net of amount 
paid under protest 
`1,100.00)

June 26, 2020 to June 25, 
2021 (Saruabil)

1,508.05 (net of amount 
paid under protest 
`750.00)

June 26, 2020 to June 25, 
2021 (Kamarda)

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to 
us and the records of the Company examined by us, there 
are no transactions in the books of account that has been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has 
not been recorded in the books of account.

ix.(a) According to the records of the Company examined by 
us and the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or in the 
payment of interest to any lender during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given 
to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we 
report that the Company has not been declared 
Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion, and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, the term loans have been 
applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. 
(Also refer Note 17 to the financial statements)

(d) According to the information and explanations given 
to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an 
overall examination of the financial statements of the 
Company, we report that the Company has used funds 
raised on short-term basis aggregating Rs 11,277 lakhs 
for long-term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to 
us and procedures performed by us, we report that the 
Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures 
or associate companies during the year.

(f ) According to the information and explanations given to 
us and procedures performed by us, we report that the 
Company did not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures 
or associate companies during the year.

x. (a)  The Company has not raised any money by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting 
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or fully or partially or optionally 
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the 
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company.

xi. (a) During the course of our examination of the books and 
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, we have 
neither come across any instance of material fraud by the 
Company or on the Company, noticed or reported during 
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the 
Management.

(b) During the course of our examination of the books and 
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with 
the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, 
a report under Section 143(12) of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 was not required to be filed with the Central 
Government. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) 

of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and 
records of the Company carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, and as 
represented to us by the management, no whistle-blower 
complaints have been received during the year by the 
Company. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi 
Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it, the reporting under 
clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into transactions with related 
parties in compliance with the provisions of Section 188 of 
the Act. The details of such related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the financial statements as required under 
Indian Accounting Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. Further, the 
Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee 
under Section 177 of the Act and, accordingly, to this 
extent, the reporting under clause 3(xiii) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

xiv. (a) The internal audit of the Company is covered under the 
group internal audit pursuant to which an internal audit is 
carried out every year. In our opinion, the Company’s internal 
audit system is commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business.

(b) We were unable to obtain someof the Internal Audit 
Reports forJuly1, 2021 to March 31, 2022 of the Company 
and accordingly, the Internal Audit Reports have been 
considered by us for the purpose of our auditonly to the 
extent those made available to us. 

xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or persons connected with 
him. Accordingly, the reporting on compliance with the 
provisions of Section 192 of the Act under clause 3(xv) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under 
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial 
/ housing financeactivities during the year. Accordingly, 
the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as 
defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of 
India. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the 
management of the Company, the Group has six CICs as 

part of the Group as detailed in note 43(x) to the financial 
statements. We have not, however, separately evaluated 
whether the information provided by the management is 
accurate and complete.

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 112,664.76 
lakhs in the financial year and had not incurred cash losses 
in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors 
during the year and accordingly the reporting under clause 
(xviii) is not applicable.

xix. According to the information and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of the financial ratios (Also refer Note 35C 
to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates 
of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 
management plans andbased on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to 
our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that 
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing 
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, 
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting 
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date will get discharged by the Company as 
and when they fall due.

xx. As at balance sheet date, the Company does not have any 
amount remaining unspent under Section 135(5) of the Act. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not 
applicable.

xxi. The reporting under Clause 3(xxi)of the Order is not 
applicable in respect of audit of Standalone Financial 
Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said 
clause has been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 304026E/E-300009
Chartered Accountants

Place: Gurugram
Date:  June 29, 2022

Sd/-
Amit Jain
Partner
Membership Number: 098053
UDIN: 22098053ALWYIM5712
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Note As at  March 31, 2022 As at  March 31, 2021

I ASSETS

1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Right-of-use assets
(c) Capital work in progress
(d) Intangible assets
(e) Financial assets

(i) Investments
(ii) Other financial assets

(f ) Retirement Benefit Assets
(g) Income-tax Assets (Net)
(h) Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
(i) Other non-current assets

2A
3A
2B
4

5
6(i)
7
9

16B
8(i)

8,974.08 
542.27 
168.07 

22,501.56 

2,564.91
986.28 
 44.56 

1,523.04 
23,700.91 
12,310.49 

9,516.51
552.55 

70.70 
22,988.72 

3,262.66 
936.02 

65.49 
537.36 

 -   
411.93 

Total Non-current assets 73,316.17 38,341.94 

II. Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other bank balances
(iii) Other financial assets

(c) Other current assets

10

11
12
13

6(ii)
8(ii)

1,61,037.67 

 22,964.89 
 14,617.87 

 7,208.94 
 578.02 

 45,384.49 

1,14,276.85 

 14,268.13 
 15,420.42 

 8.24 
 192.67 

 10,177.62 

Total Current assets  2,51,791.88  1,54,343.93 

TOTAL ASSETS  3,25,108.05  1,92,685.87 

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b) Other equity

14
15

48,507.10 
 (40,771.08)

48,507.10 
 48,364.12 

Total Equity  7,736.02  96,871.22 

2. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Lease liabilities 
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

3B
16B

10.31 
 -   

13.56 
 1,209.14 

Total non-current liabilities  10.31  1,222.70 

3. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(iI) Lease liabilities
(iII) Trade payables

(1) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
(2) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 

enterprises
(Iv) Other financial liabilities

(b) Short-term provisions
(c) Other current liabilities

17
3B
18

19
20
21

79,000.00 
3.24 

3,462.06 
61,012.40 

1,246.95 
 81,900.00 
 90,737.07 

-   
2.95 

5.85 
26,481.46 

444.03 
69.53 

67,588.13 

Total Current liabilities  3,17,361.72 94,591.95 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  3,25,108.05 1,92,685.87 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number : 304026E/E-300009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Amit Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098053
Gurugram, June 29, 2022

Sd/- 
D B Sundara Ramam
Chairman
DIN:06437027 | Jamshedpur, June 29, 2022

Sd/- 
Pankaj Kumar Satija
Managing Director
DIN:06689554 | Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
J.K. Panda
Company Secretary | Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022

Sd/- 
N S Raghu
Chief Financial Officer | Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Note As at  March 31, 2022 As at  March 31, 2021

1. Revenue from operations
2. Other income

22
23

4,60,538.57 
716.84 

53,514.57 
158.25 

3. Total Income (1) + (2)  4,61,255.41  53,672.82 

4. Expenses
a. Cost of materials consumed
b. Changes in inventories of finished goods
c. Employee benefits expense
d. Finance costs
e. Depreciation and amortisation expense
f. Power and fuel expenses
g. Other expenses
Total Expenses (4)

24
25
26
27
28

29

59,323.62 
 (3,738.79)

 4,917.34 
 1,587.97 
 1,649.97 

 12,144.29 
 4,98,677.47 
5,74,561.87 

(91,542.48)
 (7,713.26)

 2,736.87 
 1,186.16 
 1,417.47 

 11,170.01 
 1,34,992.19 

 52,246.96 

5. Profit/(Loss) before tax (3) - (4)  (1,13,306.46)  1,425.86 

6. Tax Expense 
a. Current tax
b. Deferred tax expense / (credit)
Total tax expense (6)

16A
16A

-   
 (24,723.67)
 (24,723.67)

-   
 313.71 
 313.71 

7. Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year (5) - (6)  (88,582.79)  1,112.15 

8. Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
a. Remeasurement of the employees defined benefit plans
b. Fair value changes of investment in equity shares
c. Income tax relating to these items 
Total other comprehensive income for the year (8)

(41.04)
 (697.75)

 186.37 
 (552.42)

(4.31)
 818.10 

 (163.27)
 650.52 

9. Total comprehensive income for the year (7 + 8) (89,135.21) 1,762.67 

10. Earnings per equity share (Face value of share of Rs. 10 each)
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

32
(18.26)

 (18.26)
0.36 

 0.36 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements (1-45)
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number : 304026E/E-300009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Amit Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098053
Gurugram, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
D B Sundara Ramam
Chairman
DIN:06437027
Jamshedpur, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
Pankaj Kumar Satija
Managing Director
DIN:06689554
Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
J.K. Panda
Company Secretary
Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
N S Raghu
Chief Financial Officer
Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022
a. Equity Share Capital

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Description Note Amount

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Changes in equity share capital during the year

 6,570.75 
 41,936.35 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 14  48,507.10 

Changes in equity share capital during the year -

Balance as at March 31, 2022 14  48,507.10 

b. Other Equity

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Description Note 

Reserves & Surplus
Other 

reserves Total Equity

Securities 
Premium

Retained 
Earnings

FVOCI - Equity 
Instruments

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income for the year
Transaction costs relating to issue of shares
Premium on issue of equity shares

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 40,762.13 

 5,333.56 
 1,112.15 

 (3.23)
 (196.19)

 -   

 701.95 
 -   

 653.75 

 -   

 6,035.51 
 1,112.15 

 650.52 
 (196.19)

 40,762.13 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 15  40,762.13  6,246.29  1,355.70 48,364.12 

Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income for the year

-
-

 (88,582.79)
 (30.71)

 -   
 (521.70)

 (88,582.79)
 (552.41)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 15  40,762.13 (82,367.21)  834.00  (40,771.08)

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number : 304026E/E-300009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Amit Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098053
Gurugram, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
D B Sundara Ramam
Chairman
DIN:06437027
Jamshedpur, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
Pankaj Kumar Satija
Managing Director
DIN:06689554
Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
J.K. Panda
Company Secretary
Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
N S Raghu
Chief Financial Officer
Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars As at  March 31, 2022 As at  March 31, 2021

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax (1,13,306.46)  1,425.86 

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Finance Costs
Capital work-in-progress/capital advance written off
Interest Income classified as investing cash flows
Net (gain) / loss on foreign exchange transactions and translations
Net gain/(loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment

1,649.97 
 1,587.97 

 -   
 (595.97)

 (1,008.28)
 -   

1,417.47 
 1,186.16 

 317.51 
 (110.26)

 -   
 (8.96)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in non-current/current financial and other assets
(Increase)/Decrease in non-current/current financial and other liabilities 
and provisions

(46,760.82)
 (55,521.59)
 1,43,251.45 

(1,13,198.50)
 (20,662.23)

 90,425.35 

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Income taxes (paid)/refund (net)

 (70,703.73)
 (985.68)

 (39,207.60)
 308.74 

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities [A]  (71,689.41)  (38,898.86)

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for acquisition of Property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets (including capital work in progress and capital advances)
Proceeds from sale of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Interest received
Fixed deposits (placed) / matured (net)

(419.24)

 -   
 475.12 

 (7,200.70)

(23,975.21)

 19.51 
 100.40 
 497.00 

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities [B]  (7,144.82)  (23,358.30)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issues of equity shares
Proceeds from inter corporate deposits
Repayment of inter corporate deposits
Share issue expenses
Principal elements of lease payments 
Interest paid
Interest paid on account of lease liabilities

-   
 1,08,000.00 
 (29,000.00)

 -   
 (3.57)

 (963.84)
 (0.91)

76,765.85 
 75,660.00 

 (75,660.00)
 (196.19)

 (3.90)
 (1,184.38)

 (0.56)

Net cash inflow /(outflow) from financing activities [C]  78,031.68  75,380.82

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C]  (802.55)  13,123.66 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year [Refer Note 12]  15,420.42  2,296.76 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year [Refer Note 12]  14,617.87  15,420.42 

This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number : 304026E/E-300009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Amit Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098053
Gurugram, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
D B Sundara Ramam
Chairman
DIN:06437027
Jamshedpur, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
Pankaj Kumar Satija
Managing Director
DIN:06689554
Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
J.K. Panda
Company Secretary
Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
N S Raghu
Chief Financial Officer
Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022
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Notes to the financial statements
forming part of standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

BACKGROUND

“Tata Steel Mining Limited (“the Company”) is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Tata Steel Limited. The name of company has been 
changed from T S Alloys Limited to Tata Steel Mining Limited on 
May 19, 2020. 

The Company  produces ferro chrome using chrome ore extracted 
from its acquired chromite mines. The Company caters to 
customers in domestic and international market. The financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 were approved by 
the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on June 29, 2022.”

Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies 
adopted in the presentation of these financial statements. These 
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, 
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis for preparation

(i) Compliance with Ind AS
The financial statements comply in all material aspects 
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act ) 
[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] 
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Historical Cost Convention
“The financial statements have been prepared on a 
historical cost basis, except for the following:

• certain financial assets are measured at fair value;

• defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair 
value.”

(iii) Current versus Non-current classification
“The company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance 
Sheet based on current/non-current classification. An 
asset is classified as current when it is:

a) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in the normal operating cycle,

b) held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) expected to be realised within twelve months after 
the reporting period, or

d) cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

a) it is expected to be settled in the normal operating 
cycle,

b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the 
reporting period, or

d) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement 
of the liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period. All other liabilities are classified as 
non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current.”

(iv) New and amended standards adopted by the company
“The company has applied the following amendments 
to Ind AS for the first time for its annual reporting period 
commencing April 1, 2021:

i) Extension of COVID-19 related concessions – 
amendments to Ind AS 116

ii) Interest rate benchmark reform – amendments to Ind 
AS 109, Financial Instruments, Ind AS 107, Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS 104, Insurance 
Contracts and Ind AS 116, Leases

The amendments listed above did not have any impact 
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not 
expected to significantly affect the current or future 
periods.”

(b) Use of critical estimates and accounting judgments

“In preparation of the financial statements, the Company 
makes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other 
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed 
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and 
future periods affected.

Significant judgments and estimates relating to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities include:

i) useful lives of property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets (Refer note 1(l), 1(m), 2A and 4)

ii) impairment of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 
1(f ), 2A and 4)

iii) provision for employee benefits (Refer note 1(q) and 34)

iv) valuation of investments and other provisions (Refer note 
1(j) and 5)

v) recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward tax 
losses (Refer note 1(d), 9 and 16B)

vi) commitments and contingencies (Refer note 1(p), 30 and 
31)

vii) provision for royalty and bid premium expense with 
respect to all months for which prices were not declared 
by the Indian Bureau of Mines as on the date of 
preparation of these financial statements. (Refer note 1(p) 
and 21)”

(c) Revenue Recognition

“Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net 
of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes, goods 
and service tax (GST).

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of 
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow to the company and specific 
criteria have been met for each of the company’s activities 
as described below. The company bases its estimates on 
historical results, taking into consideration the type of 
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.”

(i) Sale of Products

Sales are recognised when control of the products has 
been transferred to the buyer, being when the products 
are dispatched / delivered to the customer depending 
on the contractual terms and there is no unfulfilled 
obligation that could affect the buyer’s acceptance 
of the products per the terms of the contract and no 

significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the 
consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. 

 (ii) Operation & Maintenance Income:

Revenues from contracts priced on a time and material 
basis are recognised when services are rendered and 
related costs are incurred.

(iii) Other operating revenue

Export entitlements are recognised when the right 
to receive credit as per the terms of the schemes is 
established in respect of the exports made by the 
company and where there is no significant uncertainty 
regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export 
proceeds. 

(iv) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis 
based on the amount outstanding and the effective 
interest rate applicable.”

(d) Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax 
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate for the jurisdiction adjusted by 
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to 
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of 
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of 
the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in 
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. 
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

“Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability 
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the 
financial statements. Deferred income tax is  not accounted 
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 
transaction that at the time of the transaction affects neither 
accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income 
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been 
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting 
period and are expected to apply when the related deferred 
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability 
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is 
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to 
utilise those temporary differences and losses.”

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is 
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the 
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities 
are offset where the company has a legally enforceable right 
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly 
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(e) Leases

As a Lessee

Leases are recognised as right of use assets and a 
correspondence liability at the date at which the leased asset 
is available for use by the company. A contract may contain 

both lease and non lease components. The Company allocates 
the consideration in the contract to the lease and non lease 
components based on their relative standalone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured 
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net 
present value of the following lease payments, as applicable:-

a) Fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) 
less any lease incentive receivable.

b) Variable lease payment that are based on an index or a 
rate, initially measured using the index or a rate at the 
commencement date.

c) Amount expected to be paid by the Company as under 
residual value guarantees.

d) Exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is 
reasonably certain to exercise that option.

e) Payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease 
term reflects the Company exercising that option.”

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Company

a) Where possible, uses recent third party financing received 
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to 
reflect changes in the financing conditions since third 
party financing was received, 

b) use a built up approach that starts with risk free interest 
rate adjusted for credit risk of leases held by Tata Steel 
Mining Limited, which does not have recent third party 
financing.”

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance 
cost. The finance cost is charged to Statement profit or loss 
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each 
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the 
following

i) the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

ii) any lease payment made at or before the commencement 
date less any lease incentive received

iii) any initial direct cost and

iv) restoration costs.”

Right of use of assets are generally depreciated over the 
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a 
straight line basis.

Payment associated with short-term leases of equipment and 
all the leases of low value assets are recognised on a straight 
line basis as an expenses in the statement of profit and loss. 
Short term leases are leases with a lease term of less than 12 
months or less.”

As a Lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the company is 
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an 
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease 
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased 
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. 

(f) Impairment of Assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes 
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not 
be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the 
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing 
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impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely 
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups 
of assets (cash generating units). Non-financial assets that 
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of 
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

(g) Cash and Cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, 
cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits 
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or 
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(h) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods 
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less loss allowance.”

(i) Inventories

Raw materials, finished goods and stores & spares

Raw materials, stores & spares and finished goods are stated 
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of raw 
materials and traded goods comprises cost of purchases. 
Cost of finished goods comprises direct materials, direct 
labor and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed 
overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis 
of normal operating capacity and includes bid premium and 
royalty. Cost of inventories also include all other costs incurred 
in bringing the inventories to their present location and 
condition. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory 
on weighted average basis. Costs of purchased inventory 
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net 
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and 
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions are made to cover slow-moving and obsolete items 
based on historical experience of utilisation on a product 
category basis, which involves business considering product 
quality and market conditions.”

(j) Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification

The company classifies its financial assets in the following 
measurement categories:

• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either 
through other comprehensive income, or through profit 
or loss), and

• those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the company’s business model 
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of 
the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will 
either be recorded in the statement of profit and loss or 
other comprehensive income. For investments in equity 
instruments, this will depend on whether the company has 
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition 
to account for the equity investment at fair value through 
other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only 
when its business model for managing those assets changes.

(ii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial 

asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not 
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are expensed in the statement of profit 
and loss.”

Equity Instruments

The company subsequently measures all equity investments 
at fair value. Where the company’s management has elected 
to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments 
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the statement 
of profit and loss. Dividends from such investments are 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as other income 
when the entity’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) 
in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses 
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments 
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other 
changes in fair value.”

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the 
expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at 
amortized cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment 
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified 
approach required by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which 
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial 
recognition of the receivables.

(iv) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

• The company has transferred the rights to receive cash 
flows from the financial asset or

• retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of 
the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to 
pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the company 
evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, 
the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not 
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor 
retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of 
the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the 
Company has not retained control of the financial asset. Where 
the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset 
is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing 
involvement in the financial asset.”

(v) Income Recognition

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the 
effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross 
carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the 
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected 
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the 
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call 
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit 
losses.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss only when the right to receive payment is established, 
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with 
the dividend will flow to the entity, and the amount of the 
dividend can be measured reliably.”

(k) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount 
is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there 
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and 
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable 
rights must not be contingent on future events and must be 
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event 
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the 
counterparty.

(l) Property, Plant and Equipment

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of 
property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost 
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount 
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component 
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when 
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to 
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are 
incurred.

Depreciation Methods, estimated useful lives and residual 
value

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to 
allocate cost of assets, net of their residual values, over their 
estimated useful lives.

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance 
leases is depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the 
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no 
reasonable certainty that the company will obtain ownership 
at the end of the lease term.”

“The useful lives have been determined based on technical 
evaluation done by the management’s experts which are 
same as those specified by Schedule II to the Companies Act; 
2013, in order to reflect the actual usage of the assets. The 
residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of 
the assets.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and 
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.”

The estimated useful lives for the categories of property, plant 
and equipment are:

Particulars Estimated useful life (years)

Buildings 5 to 60 years

Plant and machinery 3 to 25 years

Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years

Office Equipment 3 to 14 years

Vehicles 3 to 10 years

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater 
than its estimated recoverable amount

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or 

loss within other gains/(losses).

(m) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if 
any. Recognition of costs as an asset is ceased when the asset 
is complete and available for its intended use. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with 
definite useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment, if any.

(i) Software costs

Computer Software for internal use, which is primarily 
acquired from third-party vendors is capitalised. Subsequent 
costs associated with maintaining such software are 
recognised as expense as incurred. Software costs includes 
license fees and cost of implementation/system integration 
services, where applicable.

Computer Software are amortised on a pro-rata basis using 
the straight-line method over its estimated useful life of 5 
years from the date they are available for use. Amortisation 
method and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at 
each financial year end.

ii) Mining Assets

Mining Assets includes net present value for forest proposal 
i.e. the amount paid and incurred towards forest and 
environment restoration required as a result of mining 
activities to be carried out by the company. It also includes 
stamp duty and registration fees paid by the company for 
obtaining the mining lease rights.

These are amortised on a pro-rata basis using the straight-line 
method over its estimated useful life of 50 years from the date 
they are available for use.

The Company amortises intangible assets with a finite useful 
life using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Particulars Estimated useful life (years)

Software Costs 5 years

Mining Assets 50 years

The useful lives are determined based on technical evaluation 
and reassessed at each reporting date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its 
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater 
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or 
loss within other gains/(losses).

(n) Trade and other payables:

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services 
provided to the company prior to the end of financial year 
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are 
usually paid within 0-45 days of recognition. Trade and other 
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment 
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They 
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method.

(o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest and other costs incurred in 
connection with borrowings which are expensed in the period 
in which they are incurred.

(p) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and volume 
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discounts are recognised when the entity has a present legal 
or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood 
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined 
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision 
is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect 
to any one item included in the same class of obligations may 
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s 
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount 
rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest 
expense.

(q)  Employee Benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary 
benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 
months after the end of the period in which the employees 
render the related service are recognised in respect of 
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and 
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current 
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.”

(ii) Other Long Term Benefits Obligation

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled 
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which 
the employees render the related service. They are therefore 
measured as the present value of expected future payments to 
be made in respect of services provided by employees up to 
the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit 
method. The benefits are discounted using the appropriate 
market yields at the end of the reporting period that have 
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments 
and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss.”

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the 
balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is 
expected to occur.

(iii) Gratuity Obligations

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect 
of defined benefit gratuity plan is the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period 
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation 
is calculated annually by an actuary using the projected unit 
credit method.”

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows 
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting 
period on government bonds that have terms approximating 
to the terms of the related obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount 
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and 
the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee 
benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience 

adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in 
other comprehensive income. They are included in retained 
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the 
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation 
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are 
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as 
past service cost.

(iv) Defined contribution plans

The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly 
administered provident funds as per local regulations. 
The company has no further payment obligations once 
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are 
accounted for as defined contribution plans and the 
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense 
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as 
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the 
future payments is available.”

(r) Foreign Currency Transactions

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using 
the currency of primary economic environment in which the 
Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial 
statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is Tata 
Steel Mining Limited’s functional and presentation currency.”

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the 
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of 
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting 
from the settlement of such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.”

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at 
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation 
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are 
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.

(s) Earnings Per Share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

• the profit attributable to owners of the company

• by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus 
elements in equity shares issued during the year and 
excluding treasury shares. (Refer Note 32)”

(ii)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the 
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

• the after income tax effect of interest and other financing 
costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, and

• the weighted average number of additional equity 
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the 
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.”

(t) Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes 
have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the 
requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

Notes
forming part of standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2A: Property, plant and equipment

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars
Freehold 

Land 
 Buildings 

Plant and 
Machinery 

Furniture & 
Fixtures 

Office 
Equipment 

Vehicles Total 

Cost / Deemed cost

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Additions
Disposals

11.81 
 -   
 -   

 1,590.72 
 868.65 

 -   

 5,948.18 
 4,520.30 

 -   

 25.50 
 12.56 

 -   

 129.24 
148.76

 -   

 47.60 
174.32

 (19.16)

 7,753.05 
 5,724.59 

 (19.16)

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions
Disposals

 11.81 
 -   
 -   

 2,459.37 
 -   
 -   

 10,468.48 
 550.00 

 -   

 38.06 
 20.25 

 -   

 278.00 
 33.64 

 -   

 202.76 
 6.21 

 -   

 13,458.48 
 610.10 

 -   

Balance as at March 31, 2022 11.81 2,459.37  11,018.48 58.31 311.64 208.97 14,068.58 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Charge for the year
Disposals

 -   
 -   
 -   

 383.09 
 76.47 

 -   

 2,407.31 
 847.41 

 -   

 20.22 
 4.03 

 -   

 84.18 
83.11

 -   

 18.56 
 26.20 
 (8.61)

 2,913.36 
 1,037.22 

 (8.61)

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals

 -   
 -   
 -   

 459.56 
 83.95 

 -   

 3,254.72 
 948.74 

 -   

 24.25 
 7.63 

 -   

 167.29 
 71.84 

 -   

 36.15 
 40.37 

 -   

 3,941.97 
 1,152.53 

 -   

Balance as at March 31, 2022  -    543.51  4,203.46  31.88  239.13  76.52  5,094.50 

Net carrying amount

Balance as at March 31, 2021  11.81  1,999.81  7,213.76  13.81  110.71  166.61  9,516.51 

Balance as at March 31, 2022  11.81  1,915.86  6,815.02  26.43  72.51  132.45  8,974.08 

(i) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed above are held in the name of the Company, except for the following:

Description of 
property

Gross carrying 
value

Held in the 
name of

Whether promoter, director or 
their relative or employee

Period held 
Reason for not being held in 

the name of the Company

 Freehold Land  11.81 In the name of 
erstwhile T S 

Alloys Limited.

No May 19, 2020 Pursuant to change of name 
of the company to Tata Steel 

Mining Limited.

(ii) Refer Note 31 for contractual commitments for the acquisition of Property, plant and equipments.

2B: Capital work in progress
(i) Movement in Capital work in progress

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Capitalised during the year

70.70 
 132.22 

 34.85 

 70.70 
 -   
 -   

Balance at the end of the year  168.07  70.70 

(ii) Age analysis of Capital work in progress

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

As at March 31, 2022

Less than 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years  More than 3 years  Total 

Projects in progress
Transfer fee for Land*
Vehicle 
Office equipments

 -   
 38.00 
 59.37 

-   
 -   
 -   

-   
 -   
 -   

70.70 
 -   
 -   

 70.70 
 38.00 
 59.37 

 97.37  -    -    70.70  168.07 
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(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

As at March 31, 2021

Less than 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 3 years  More than 3 years  Total 

Projects in progress
Transfer fee for Land*  -    -    -    70.70  70.70 

 -    -    -    70.70  70.70 

* Capital work-in-progress comprises of transfer fees of 143.5 acres of Government Land allotted by IDCO in favor of Rawmet Ferrous Industries Limited (now known 
as Tata Steel Mining Limited). The Company has requested to IDCO to reconsider the manner of computation of transfer fees. Pending resolution of the matter, the 
amount demanded by IDCO is included in the Capital work-in-progress.

3A: Right-of-Use assets
Amounts recognised in Balance Sheet:

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars
Leasehold 

Land
Plant and 

Machinery
Total

Cost / Deemed cost

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Additions
Deletions/cancellation/modification

557.14
 -   
 -   

15.24
 -   
 -   

 572.38 
 -   
 -   

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions
Deletions/cancellation/modification

 557.14 
 -   
 -   

 15.24 
 -   
 -   

 572.38 
 -   
 -   

Balance as at March 31, 2022  557.14  15.24  572.38 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Charge for the year
Deletions/cancellation/modification

 7.26 
 7.24 

 -   

 2.29 
 3.04 

 -   

 9.55 
 10.28 

 -   

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Charge for the year
Deletions/cancellation/modification

 14.50 
 7.24 

 -   

 5.33 
 3.04 

 -   

 19.83 
 10.28 

 -   

Balance as at March 31, 2022 21.74  8.37  30.11 

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2021  542.64  9.91  552.55 

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022  535.40  6.87  542.27 

(i) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed above are held in the name of the Company, except for the following:

Description of 
property

Gross carrying 
value

Held in the 
name of

Whether promoter, director or 
their relative or employee

Period held 
Reason for not being held in 

the name of the Company

Leasehold Land 557.14 In the name 
of erstwhile 

Rawmet Ferrous 
Industries Private 

Limited

No January 10, 2011 Pursuant to change of name 
of the company to T S Alloys 

Limited and thereafter to Tata 
Steel Mining Limited. The 

application for the change has 
been made to the concerned 

authorities. 

(ii) The Company leases liquid oxygen tank. Rental contract is made for a fixed period of 5 years.

(iii) The Company has subleased the leasehold land to Bhubaneswar Power Private Limited with rent payable yearly.

3B: Lease Liabilities

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Non-current Lease Liabilities  10.31  13.56 

 10.31  13.56 

Current Lease Liabilities  3.24  2.95 

 3.24  2.95 

Amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss:

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended  

arch 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (Refer Note 28)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 27)

10.28 
1.52 

10.28 
1.78 

Total 11.80 12.06 

(i) The total cash outflow for leases for the year was ` 4.48 lakhs (March 31, 2021: ` 4.46 lakhs)

4: Intangible assets

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars
Computer Software 

(Acquired) 
Mining Assets Total 

Cost / Deemed cost

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Additions
Disposals

5.95 
104.80 

-   

 -   
23,250.21 

 -   

5.95 
23,355.01 

 -   

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Additions
Disposals

 110.75 
 -   
 -   

 23,250.21 
 -   
 -   

 23,360.96 
 -   
 -   

Balance as at March 31, 2022  110.75  23,250.21  23,360.96 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at April 1, 2020
Charge for the year
Disposals

 2.27 
 9.92 

 -   

 -   
 360.05 

 -   

 2.27 
 369.97 

 -   

Balance as at March 31, 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals

 12.19 
 22.15 

 -   

 360.05 
 465.01 

 -   

 372.24 
 487.16 

 -   

Balance as at March 31, 2022  34.34  825.06  859.40 

Net carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2021 98.56 22,890.16 22,988.72 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 76.41 22,425.15 22,501.56 

5: Investments

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Investment in equity instruments at FVOCI
Unquoted

1,62,64,484 (As at March 31, 2021: 1,62,64,484) equity shares of Bhubaneswar Power 
Private Limited of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 2,564.91 3,262.66 

Total Non-current investment 2,564.91 3,262.66 

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 2,564.91 3,262.66 

(i) Tata Steel Mining Limited has invested in equity shares of Bhubaneshwar Power Private Limited (BPPL) which is equal to 6.42% of total 
share capital of the BPPL. The investment is carried at fair value.

6: Other financial assets 

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

(i) Non current - (Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Security Deposits
(b) Interest accrued on deposits, loans and advances Considered doubtful 

Less: Provision for doubtful interest accrued on deposits, loans and advances 
(c) Bank deposits with remaining maturing of more than twelve months*
(d) Lease receivables

 980.94 
 26.90 

 (26.90)
 3.00 
 2.34 

 930.68 
 26.90 

 (26.90)
 3.00 
 2.34 

Total Other financial assets - non current  986.28  936.02 
*Pledged with Government Authorities
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(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

(ii) Current - (Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Security Deposits
(b) Interest accrued on deposits, loans and advances
(c) Lease receivables
(d) Accruals under duty drawback

 1.38 
 193.26 

 0.26 
 383.12 

 1.38 
 72.41 

 0.26 
 118.62 

Total Other financial assets - current  578.02  192.67 

7: Retirement Benefit Assets

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Retiring gratuities (Refer Note 34)  44.56  65.49

Total Retirement Benefit Assets  44.56  65.49 

8: Other Assets

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

(i) Non Current - (Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Capital Advances
(b) Advances with public bodies *

Considered good
Considered doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful balances

(c) Prepaid expenses
(d) Other non-financial assets

 56.14 

 12,254.25 
 3.92 

 (3.92)
 -   

 0.10 

 393.77 

 13.44 
 3.92 

 (3.92)
 4.62 
 0.10 

Total Other non current assets  12,310.49  411.93 

* Advance with public bodies as on March 31, 2022 includes Rs. 12,240.81 lakhs paid by the Company to the Government of Odisha towards first installment of the 
upfront payment in respect of the Gandhalpada Iron Ore Block of Keonjhar District.

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

(ii) Current - (Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(a) Balances with government authorities
(b) Advances to suppliers
(c) Prepaid expenses

 45,167.05 
 98.07 

 119.37 

 10,110.91 
 24.85 
 41.86 

Total Other current assets  45,384.49  10,177.62 

9: Income-tax Assets (Net)

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Advance taxes (including tax deducted at sources and net of provision for tax) [Net of 
provisions for taxes  ` 609.38 lakhs (March 31, 2021: ` 609.38 lakhs]

 1,523.04  537.36 

Total Income-tax assets  1,523.04  537.36 

10: Inventories
(Valued at lower of costs or net realisable value)

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

(a) Raw Materials [Includes Goods in transit Rs. 2,533.32 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Nil)]
(b) Finished Goods
(c) Stores and Spares

 1,48,328.37 
 11,525.79 

 1,183.51 

 1,05,522.96 
 7,787.00 

 966.89 

Total Inventories  1,61,037.67  1,14,276.85 

(i) Write-down of inventories to net realisable value amounted to Rs. 54,919.27 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Nil). These were recognised as an 
expense during the year and included in ‘Cost of materials consumed’ in statement of profit and loss.

11: Trade receivables
(Unsecured, considered good, unless stated otherwise)

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Unsecured, considered good
Having significant increase in credit risk
Credit impaired

 22,964.89 
 -   
 -   

 14,268.13 
 -   
 -   

 22,964.89  14,268.13 

Less: Loss allowance  -    -   

Total Trade receivables  22,964.89  14,268.13 

Ageing of trade receivables

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars
Undisputed trade 

receivables – 
considered good

Disputed trade 
receivables considered 

good
Total

Not Due
Less than 6 months
6 months to 1 year
1 year 2 years
2 years to 3 years
More than 3 years

 18,252.11 
 4,675.66 

 37.12 
 -   
 -   
 -   

-
-
-
-
-
-

 18,252.11 
 4,675.66 

 37.12 
 -   
 -   
 -   

Total Ageing of receivables  22,964.89 -  22,964.89 

Age bracket

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars
Undisputed trade 

receivables – 
considered good

Disputed trade 
receivables considered 

good
Total

Not Due
Less than 6 months
6 months to 1 year
1 year 2 years
2 years to 3 years
More than 3 years

 5,935.69 
 8,234.93 

 97.51 
 -   
 -   
 -   

-
-
-
-
-
-

 5,935.69 
 8,234.93 

 97.51 
 -   
 -   
 -   

Total Ageing of receivables  14,268.13 -  14,268.13 

(i) The ageing has been determined from the date when the aforesaid receivables have become due for payment. Refer Note 35B on 
credit risk for more details.

(ii) There are no outstanding receivables due from directors or other officers of the Company.

(iii) Refer Note 33 for trade receivables pertaining to related parties.

12: Cash and cash equivalents

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Cash on hand
Balances with bank in current accounts
Deposits with maturity of less than three months 

 0.03 
 14,617.84 

 -   

 0.10 
 1,620.32 

 13,800.00 

Total cash and cash equivalents  14,617.87  15,420.42 

13: Other bank balances

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

In deposit accounts having - maturity more than three months but less than twelve 
months*

 7,208.94  8.24 

Total other balances with banks  7,208.94  8.24 

* Includes deposits amounting to Rs. 7,200.00 lakhs lodged as security against bank guarantee and deposits, NSC amounting to Rs. 8.94 lakhs pledged with 
Government Authorities 
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14: Equity share capital

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Authorised share capital

 7,500,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each
(As at March 31, 2021: 7,500,000,000 equity shares of ` 10 each)

 7,50,000.00  7,50,000.00 

Total authorised share capital  7,50,000.00  7,50,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

485,071,068 equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up
(As at March 31, 2021: 485,071,068 equity shares of ` 10 each, fully paid up)

 48,507.10  48,507.10 

Total issued, subscribed and paid up share capital  48,507.10  48,507.10 

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Balance as at the beginning of the year
Changes during the year

 48,50,71,068 
 -   

 48,507.10 
 -   

 6,57,07,544 
 41,93,63,524 

 6,570.75 
 41,936.35 

Balance at the end of the year  48,50,71,068  48,507.10  48,50,71,068   48,507.10 

(b) Terms and rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the event 
of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after the payment of the 
preferential amounts.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of shares in the Company:

Particulars
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

No. of shares % age holding No. of shares % age holding

Name of shareholders and promoter

Tata Steel Limited (holding company)  48,50,70,468 100.00%  48,50,70,468 100.00%

 48,50,70,468 100.00%  48,50,70,468 100.00%

(d) Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash

Particulars

As at March 
31, 2022 

As at March 
31, 2021

As at March 
31, 2020

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares

Shares issued as consideration for acquisition of 
property, plant and equipment

-  3,00,84,384 - - -

15: Other equity

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Securities premium
Retained earnings
FVOCI -Equity investments

 40,762.13 
 (82,367.21)

 834.00 

 40,762.13 
 6,246.29 
 1,355.70 

 (40,771.08)  48,364.12 

Securities premium

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year
Received on issue of shares during the year

 40,762.13 
 -   

-   
 40,762.13 

Balance at the end of the year  40,762.13  40,762.13 

Retained earnings

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
Net Profit for the year
Transactions costs arising on issue of shares
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax

 6,246.29 
 (88,582.79)

 -   

 (30.71)

 5,333.56 
 1,112.15 
 (196.19)

 (3.23)

 (82,367.21)  6,246.29 

FVOCI - Equity Instruments

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI equity instruments (Refer Note 5)
Deferred Tax

 1,355.70 
 (697.75)

 176.05 

 701.95 
 818.10 

 (164.35)

Balance at the end of the year  834.00  1,355.70 

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

FVOCI equity investments
The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive 
income. These changes are accumulated within the FVOCI equity investments reserve within equity. The company transfers amounts 
from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant equity securities are derecognised.

16A: Income Taxes

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 

(a) Analysis of Income tax (expenses)/credit recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current taxes
Deferred taxes

-   
(24,723.67)

-   
313.71 

(24,723.67) 313.71 

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate:

Accounting Profit before tax
At India’s statutory Income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2021: 25.168%)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income
Adjustment for change in tax rate
Others

(1,13,306.46)
(28,516.97)

3,795.25 
-   

(1.95)

1,425.86 
358.86 

19.94 
(146.02)

80.93 

Income tax expense reported (24,723.67) 313.71 

16B: Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Deferred tax assets

Provisions for doubtful advances and other provisions
Retirement benefit assets/ liabilities
Tax losses
Lease liabilities

 11,414.44 
 13.61 

 18,599.32 
 3.41 

 7.75 
 1.45 

 5,421.37 
 4.15 

Total  30,030.78  5,434.72 

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment
Right of Use Assets
Fair valuation of investment

 6,221.93 
 2.49 

 105.45 

 6,359.09 
 3.27 

 281.50 

Total  6,329.87  6,643.86 

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

 23,700.91  (1,209.14)
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Significant component of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2022 is as follows:

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
Balance at at 

beginning of the 
year

Deferred tax 
expense/ 
(income) 

recognised in 
profit and loss

Deferred tax 
expense/ 
(income) 

recognised 
in other 

comprehensive 
income 

Balance at at end 
of the year

Deferred tax assets

Provisions for doubtful advances and other provisions
Retirement benefit assets/ liabilities
Tax losses
Lease liabilities

 7.75 
 1.45 

 5,421.37 
 4.15 

 11,406.69 
 1.83 

 13,177.95 
 (0.74)

 -   
 10.33 

 -   
 -   

 11,414.44 
 13.61 

 18,599.32 
 3.41 

Total  5,434.72  24,585.73  10.33  30,030.78 

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment
Right of Use Assets
Fair valuation of investment

 6,359.09 
 3.27 

 281.50 

 (137.16)
 (0.78)

 -   

 -   
 -   

 (176.05)

 6,221.93 
 2.49 

 105.45 

Total  6,643.86  (137.94)  (176.05)  6,329.87 

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)  (1,209.14)  24,723.67  186.38  23,700.91 

Significant component of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows:

Particulars
Balance at at 

beginning of the 
year

Deferred tax 
expense/ 
(income) 

recognised in 
profit and loss

Deferred tax 
expense/ 
(income) 

recognised 
in other 

comprehensive 
income 

Balance at at end 
of the year

Deferred tax assets

Provisions
Retirement benefit assets/ liabilities
Tax losses
Lease liabilities
MAT Credit

 8.57 
 8.64 

 -   
 4.84 

 43.70 

 (0.82)
 (8.27)

 5,421.37 
 (0.69)

 (43.70)

 -   
 1.08 

 -   
 -   
 -   

 7.75 
 1.45 

 5,421.37 
 4.15 

 -   

Total deferred tax assets  65.75  5,367.89  1.08  5,434.72 

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipment
Right of Use Assets
Fair valuation of investment

 676.79 
 3.97 

 117.15 

 5,682.30 
 (0.70)

 -   

 -   
 -   

 164.35 

 6,359.09 
 3.27 

 281.50 

Total deferred tax liabilities  797.91  5,681.60  164.35  6,643.86 

Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)  (732.16)  (313.71)  (163.27)  (1,209.14)

“The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legal enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax 
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. The Company 
has carried forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation of Rs. 72,798.47 lakhs and Rs. 1,102.49 lakhs respectively as at March 31, 2022 
on which deferred tax asset aggregating to Rs. 18,599.32 lakhs has been recognized. Such losses can be utilized by eight (8) years from 
the year losses are incurred. The Company expects to utilize its tax losses on expectation of improved financial performance in the near 
future.”

17  Borrowings

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

(i) Current Unsecured

(a) Loan from related parties - holding company (Refer Note (i) below) 79,000.00  -   

Total  Borrowings 79,000.00  -   

(i) The inter-corporate deposits were obtained during the year for working capital purposes and have been applied for the purpose for 
which it has been obtained.

18: Trade payables

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 40)
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

3,462.06 
61,012.40 

5.85 
26,481.46 

Total Trade payables 64,474.46 26,487.31

(i) Refer Note 33 for trade payables pertaining to related parties.

Ageing of trade payables

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

As at March 31, 2022

MSME Others
Total 

Undisputed Disputed Undisputed Disputed 

Unbilled
Not Due
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than three years

 -   
 528.59 

 2,930.56 
 2.78 
 0.13 

 -   

-
-
-
-
-
-

 6,091.72 
 24,027.82 
 30,346.12 

 542.40 
 4.34 

 -   

-
-
-
-
-
-

 6,091.72 
 24,556.41 
 33,276.68 

 545.18 
 4.47 

 -   

Total  3,462.06 -  61,012.40 -  64,474.46 

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

As at March 31, 2021

MSME Others
Total 

Undisputed Disputed Undisputed Disputed 

Unbilled
Not Due
Less than 1 year
1-2 years
2-3 years
More than three years

 -   
 -   

 5.85 
 -   
 -   
 -   

-
-
-
-
-
-

 13,112.02 
 7,647.10 
 5,677.58 

 43.47 
 1.29 

 -   

-
-
-
-
-
-

 13,112.02 
 7,647.10 
 5,683.43 

 43.47 
 1.29 

 -   

Total  5.85 -  26,481.46 -  26,487.31 

19: Other financial liabilities

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

(a) Interest accrued and due on borrowings
(b) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
(c) Capital creditors
(d) Creditors for accrued wages and salaries

 55.83 
 622.61 

 87.64 
 480.87 

 55.83 
 -   

 137.04 
 251.16 

Total Other financial liabilities  1,246.95  444.03 

20: Short-term provisions

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

(a) Provisions for employee benefits Compensated absences (Refer Note 34)
(b) Other provisions (Refer Note (i) below)

 98.66 
 81,801.34 

 69.53 
 -   

Total Short-term provisions  81,900.00  69.53 

(i) During the year, the Company has made a provision of Rs 81,801.34 lakhs for demand notices received against alleged shortfall in 
dispatch of Chromite Ore from the mines. The demand notices have been challenged by the Company before the Hon’ble High Court of 
Odisha and as per court direction, an amount of Rs 21,850.00 lakhs has been paid under protest.
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21: Other current liabilities

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

(a) Advances received from customers
(b) Employee recoveries and employer contributions
(c) Statutory dues (Royalty, Bid Premium, GST, TDS, cess etc) 

 2,244.56 
 20.14 

 88,472.37 

 2,068.18 
 15.08 

 65,504.87 

Total Other current liabilities  90,737.07  67,588.13 

22: Revenue from operations

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

Revenue from contract with customers

(a) Sale of products
(b) Sale of services

 4,54,257.97 
 3,811.66 

 36,929.05 
 16,339.03 

Other operating revenues

(a) Sale of scrap
(b) Export Incentives

 13.32 
 2,455.62 

 37.81 
 208.68 

Total revenue from operations  4,60,538.57  53,514.57 

(i) Sales made to T S Global Procurement Pte. Limited amounting to Rs. 222,892.99 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 19,315.55 lakhs) represents 
more than 10% of the total revenue from operations.     

23: Other income

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

(a) Interest income (Refer Note (i) below)
(b) Other miscellaneous income (Refer Note (ii) below)

 687.49 
 29.35 

 156.82 
 1.43 

Total other income  716.84  158.25 

(i) Includes interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost Rs 595.97 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs 110.26 lakhs)
(ii) Includes interest income on lease receivable Rs. 0.26 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 0.26 lakhs)

24: Cost of materials consumed

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

Raw material at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases
Raw material at the end of the year

 1,05,522.96 
 1,02,129.03 

 (1,48,328.37)

 218.24 
 13,762.24 

 (1,05,522.96)

Total cost of materials consumed  59,323.62  (91,542.48)

(i) Raw materials at the end of the year include provision for bid premium and royalty along with other mining related expenses which 
are directly related to the extraction process from mines.

25: Changes in inventories of finished goods

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 7,787.00 73.74 

Balance at the end of the year
Finished Goods 11,525.79  7,787.00 

Total changes in inventories of finished goods  (3,738.79)  (7,713.26)

26: Employee benefits expense

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 34)
Gratuity (Refer Note 34)
Staff welfare expenses

 4,467.77 
 100.09 

 14.38 
 335.10 

 2,557.47 
 73.70 
 12.61 
 93.09 

Total employee benefits expense  4,917.34  2,736.87 

27: Finance costs

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

Interest on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Interest expenses on loans
Interest on lease obligations
Others

934.11 
 1.52 

 652.34 

1,124.63 
 1.78 

 59.75 

Total finance costs  1,587.97  1,186.16 

28: Depreciation and amortisation expense

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

Depreciation on property, plant and equipments
Amortisation of Intangible assets
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

 1,152.53 
 487.16 

 10.28 

 1,037.22 
 369.97 

 10.28 

Total depreciation and amortisation expense  1,649.97  1,417.47 

29: Other expenses

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

(a) Repairs and maintenance
- buildings
- plant and machinery
- others

(b) Royalty and Bid Premium (Refer Note 20)
(c) Conversion charges
(d) Rates and taxes
(e) Consumption of stores and spares
(f ) Job processing and other machining charges (including contract labour charges)
(g) Legal and other professional costs
(h) Auditors Remuneration [Refer Note (i) below]
(i) Security charges
(j) Loss on sale of assets
(k) Freight and handling charges
(l) Miscellaneous expenses

499.10 
 1,257.65 

 58.90 
 3,47,195.59 
 1,09,650.13 

 136.39 
 6,120.79 

 19,668.88 
 411.22 

 20.88 
 949.78 

 -   
 9,722.57 
 2,985.59 

138.07 
 625.79 
 186.25 

 1,12,544.68 
 9,434.03 

 90.85 
 3,190.74 
 4,527.39 

 122.19 
 17.83 

 542.36 
 8.96 

 1,167.50 
 2,395.55 

Total other expenses  4,98,677.47  1,34,992.19 
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(i) Details of payments to auditors

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

Payment to auditors*

As auditor:
Audit fees
Tax audit fees

14.00 
 1.50 

14.00 
 1.50 

In other capacities:
Certification fees
Re-imbursement of expenses

5.00 
 0.38 

1.60 
 0.73 

Total payment to auditors
* Amount is exclusive of tax

 20.88  17.83 

Miscellaneous expenses include gain on exchange fluctuation of  `1,810.02 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: loss on 
exchange fluctuation of ` 13.22 lakhs).     

(ii) Details of corporate social responsibility expenditure:

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

Amount required to be spent during the year
Amount of expenditure incurred on - 

(A) construction / acquisition of any asset
(B) purposes other than (A) above

- In cash
- Yet to be paid in cash

Amount of shortfall for the year
Amount of cumulative shortfall at the end of the year

 10.03 

 -   

 179.60 
 -   
 -   
 -   

 8.26 

 -   

 70.13 
 -   
 -   
 -   

The amounts were spent on other than ongoing projects. There was no amount unspent for years ended March 31, 2022 and March 
31, 2021 and the Company does not propose to carry forward any amount spent beyond the statutory requirement. Refer Note 33 for 
amount spent on CSR through related parties.     

30 Contingent liabilities

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021

(a) Disputed Excise duty 
(b) Disputed Income tax 
(c) Disputed Central sales tax
(d) Water conservation fund (WCF)

 681.77 
 122.60 

 5.48 
 250.00 

 659.22 
 115.56 

 -   
 250.00 

Total  1,059.85  1,024.78 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims by various parties. The Company assesses such claims and monitors the 
legal environment on an ongoing basis with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records a liability 
for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated. For potential losses that are considered possible, but 
not probable, the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss 
becomes probable.

The Company believes that none of the contingencies described below would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial 
condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

31 Commitments
(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for as at March 

31, 2022: 375.47 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Nil, Net of advance: 393.77) 

(ii) Other Commitments:

32. Earnings per share

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars  As at March 31, 2022  As at March 31, 2021

(a)  Net profit for the year
(b) No. of equity shares at the beginning of the year
(c) No. of equity shares at the end of the year
(d) Weighted average no. of equity shares outstanding during the year

 (88,582.79)
 48,50,71,068 
 48,50,71,068 
 48,50,71,068  

 1,112.15 
 6,57,07,544 

 48,50,71,068 
 30,47,59,768 

Earnings per equity share

Earnings per equity share - Basic and Diluted (`)
There are no potentially dilutive securities issued by the Company

 (18.26)  0.36 

33. Related party transactions
(a) List of related parties and relationship

Name of the related party Relationship

(i) Tata Steel Limited 
(ii) Tata Steel Long Products Limited
(iii) Tata Steel BSL Limited (upto November 02, 2021, since merged with Tata Steel Limited)
(iv) M Junction Services Limited
(v) Tata Steel Utilities & Infrastructure Services Limited
(vi) TKM Global Logistics Limited
(vii) Indian Steel & Wire Products Limited
(viii) T S Global Procurement Company Pte Limited
(ix) Bhubaneswar Power Private Limited
(x) Tata Steel Foundation
(xi) TM International Logistics Limited
(xii) T S Alloys Employees Gratuity Trust

Holding Company
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Joint Venture of Tata Steel Limited
Fellow subsidiary
Joint Venture of Tata Steel Limited
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Joint Venture of Tata Steel Limited 
Retirement benefit plan

Other related parties:
(i) Mr. Bibhudutta Nanda (Managing Director upto June 1, 2020)
(ii) Mr. Jatindra Kumar Panda (Company Secretary)
(iii) Mr. M. C. Thomas (erstwhile Managing Director, till November 30, 2021)
(iv) Mr. Pankaj Kumar Satija (Managing Director w.e.f December 1, 2021)
(v) Mr. Pushkar Sharma (erstwhile CFO, till November 15, 2021)
(vi) Mr. N S Raghu (CFO w.e.f November 16, 2021)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Key Management Personnel (KMP)

(b) Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Name of the related party Nature of transactions
Year ended March 

31, 2022
Year ended March 

31, 2021

Tata Steel Limited Sale of services (conversion income)
Sale of services (Operation and Maintenance income)
Employee Benefit Expense (Refer note (iii) below)
Conversion charges
Miscellaneous expenses (IT services)
Reimbursement of Expenses
Sale of Goods
Purchase of  Raw Materials
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Interest on Inter-Corporate Deposit
Inter-Corporate Deposit Received
Inter-Corporate Deposit Repaid
Subscription for New Equity Shares

 -   
 4,497.76 
 3,175.22 

 16,237.17 
 28.71 

 104.16 
 3,528.46 
 6,091.90 

 -   
 869.43 

 1,08,000.00 
 29,000.00 

 -   

 16,830.38 
 1,566.70 
 1,760.64 

 -   
 93.41 

 278.03 
 -   

 506.82 
 6,019.18 
 1,124.52 

 75,660.00 
 76,700.18 
 82,698.49 

Bhubaneswar Power Private Limited Reimbursement of Sublease Expense
Purchase of Power

 0.26 
 9,266.20 

 0.39 
 9,233.53 

T S Global Procurement Co Pte. Limited Sale of Goods
Reimbursement of Expenses
Purchase of Raw Materials

 2,22,892.99 
 175.42 

 62,859.43 

 19,315.55 
 -   

 7,810.20 

Tata Steel Long Product Limited Sale of Goods  5,522.67  962.08 

Tata Steel BSL Limited Sale of Goods
Sale of Goods
Purchase of  Raw Materials

 5,522.67 
 344.74 

 1,490.34 

 962.08 
 19.22 

 -   
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(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Name of the related party Nature of transactions
Year ended March 

31, 2022
Year ended March 

31, 2021

M Junction Services Limited Miscellaneous expenses (E-Auction services)  -    19.47 

Tata Steel Utilities & Infrastructure 
Services Limited

Miscellaneous expenses (Township maintenance charges)  966.89  321.55 

TKM Global Logistics Limited Freight and handling charges (Material handling charges)  750.96  79.49 

Indian Steel & Wire Products Limited Purchase of Stores & Spares  -    1.91 

TM International Logistics Limited Freight and handling charges (Material handling charges)  22.48  6.74 

Tata Steel Foundation Corporate social responsibility expenses  166.11  61.00 

T S Alloys Employees Gratuity Trust Contribution to Trust  34.49  17.74 

Mr. Bibhudutta Nanda (Managing 
Director upto June 1, 2020)

Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment -  1.60 

Key Management Personnel - 
Jatindra Kumar Panda

Short Term Employees Benefit 
Post Employment Benefits
Other Long Term Benefits

 7.95 
 5.23 
 1.34 

 45.30 
 6.99 
 1.22 

(c) Outstanding balances at the end of the period

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Name of the related party Nature of transactions
Year ended March 

31, 2022
Year ended March 

31, 2021

Tata Steel Limited Trade Receivables
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Inter-Corporate Deposit
Trade Payables

 3,677.41 
 55.83 

 79,000.00 
 6,861.32 

 1,644.19 
 55.83 

 1,044.49 

Tata Steel Long Product Limited Trade Receivables  585.87  545.48 

Tata Steel BSL Limited Trade Receivables  -    19.22 

T S Global Procurement Co Pte. Limited Trade Receivables  13,532.67  10,291.59 

TKM Global Logistics Limited Trade Payables  20,758.23  6,617.38 

Tata Steel Utilities & Infrastructure 
Services Limited

Trade Payables  69.51  77.90 

Indian Steel & Wire Products Limited Trade Payables  562.14  315.12 

TM International Logistics Limited Trade Payables  -    1.09 

T S Alloys Employees Gratuity Trust Trade Payables  -    6.60 

M Junction Services Limited Fund Balance with Trustee  230.51  181.74 

Bhubaneswar Power Private Limited Advance from Customers  200.00  -   

Trade Payables  661.62  671.33 

(i) All outstanding balance are unsecured and considered good, payable in cash.

(ii) Transaction amount includes GST and TCS.

(iii) Employee benefit expense includes deputation cost of the managing director Mr M. C. Thomas (till November 30, 2021) for Rs. 128.43 
lakhs (March 31, 2021: 134.42 lakhs), managing director Mr Pankaj Kumar Satija (w.e.f. December 01, 2021) for Rs. 69.59 lakhs (March 31, 
2021: Nil), CFO Mr Pushkar Sharma (upto November 15, 2021) for Rs 28.97 lakhs (March 31, 2021: 30.65 lakhs) and CFO Mr N S Raghu 
(w.e.f. November 16, 2021) for Rs. 40.45 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Nil). Remunerations amounting to Rs. 198.02 lakhs to former and current 
managing director has been approved by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval from shareholders in the ensuing annual 
general meeting.

34. Employee benefit obligations
(a) Defined contribution plans

The Company provides Provident .Fund benefit to all employees and Employees State Insurance benefit to selected employees. 
Under these schemes fixed contributions are paid to Government provident fund. The Company has made the following 
contributions which are recognised as expense in the statement of profit and loss for year in which the services are rendered by 
employees. The Company have no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions.

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

(i) Contribution to Provident fund
(ii) Contribution to ESIC

 89.72 
 10.37 

 61.96 
 11.74 

 100.09  73.70 

(b) The Company operates post retirement defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefits as follows:

A. Post retirement defined benefit plans - Gratuity

The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan, covering eligible employees. The scheme is funded by way of 
a separate irrevocable Trust and the company makes regular contributions to the Trust. The Trust makes payment to the 
employees on exit by way of retirement, death, disability or voluntary withdrawal. The benefits are defined on the basis of final 
salary and the period of service and paid as lump sum at exit.

B. Other long term employee benefits plans - Compensated absences

The leave obligations cover the company’s liability for other long term benefit plans. This is an unfunded plan which provides 
for a lump sum payment made on exit either by way of retirement, death, disability or voluntary withdrawal. The benefits are 
defined on the basis of final salary and the accumulated leave balances and paid as lump sum at exit. Compensated absences 
cover the company’s liability for earned leave.

As the company does not have an unconditional right to defer the payment beyond 12 months, the entire amount has been 
treated as current.

(c) Details of the gratuity and compensated absences benefit are as follows:

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Description

2021-22 2020-21

Gratuity
Compensated 

absences
Gratuity

Compensated 
absences

1. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of obligation

a. Obligation as at beginning of the year
b.  Current service cost
c. Interest cost
d. Actuarial (gain) / loss
e. Acquisition cost / (credit)
f. Benefits paid

 116.25 
 20.08 

 7.97 
 43.27 

 -   
 (1.63)

 54.77 
 9.75 
 3.63 

 20.13 
 -   

 (4.36)

 126.28 
 15.99 

 8.35 
 (3.57)

 (23.88)
 (6.92)

 57.10 
 7.77 
 3.32 
 3.27 

 -   
 (16.69)

Obligation as at the end of the year  185.94  83.92  116.25  54.77 

2. Change in fair value of plan assets

a. Fair value of plan assets as at the beginning of the year
b. Expected return on plan assets
c. Actuarial gain/(loss)
d. Contributions made by the Company
e. Benefits paid

 181.74 
 13.67 

 2.23 
 34.49 
 (1.63)

-
-
-
-
-

 167.07 
 11.73 
 (7.88)
 17.74 
 (6.92)

-
-
-
-
-

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year  230.50 -  181.74 -

3. Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and obligations

a. Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year
b. Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

 230.50 
 185.94 

 -   
 83.92 

 181.74 
 116.25 

 -   
 54.77 

Amount recognised in the balance sheet assets/(liabilities) (Refer 
Note (i) below)

 44.56  (83.92)  65.49  (54.77)

4. Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss

a. Current service cost
b. Interest cost
c. Actuarial (gains)/loss

 20.08 
 (5.70)

 -   

 9.75 
 3.63 

 20.13 

 15.99 
 (3.38)

 -   

 7.77 
 3.32 
 3.27 

Expenses recognised during the year (Refer Note (ii) below)  14.38  33.51  12.61  14.36 
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(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Description

2021-22 2020-21

Gratuity
Compensated 

absences
Gratuity

Compensated 
absences

5. Expenses recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive 
Income

a. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO experience
b. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes
c. Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest 

expense / (income)

 3.40 
 39.87 
 (2.23)

-
-
-

 (1.78)
 (1.79)

 7.88 

-
-
-

Expenses recognised during the year  41.04 -  4.31 -

6. Investment details

a. Funds with Life Insurance Corporation of India
b. Fixed Deposit 

91%
9%

 NA 
 NA 

91%
9%

 NA 
 NA 

7. Assumptions

a. Discount rate (per annum)
b. Rate of escalation in salary (Refer Note (iii) below)

7.30%
7.00%

7.30%
7.00%

6.90%
5.00%

6.90%
5.00%

(i) In case of gratuity, the amount is recognised under “Retirement benefit assets” in Note 7 whereas for compensated absences the 
same is recognised under “Provisions for employee benefits” in Note 20.

(ii) Expenses relating to gratuity are disclosed in Employee benefit expense and compensated absences the same is included in salaries 
and wages including bonus in Note 26.

(iii) The estimates of future salary increases take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

(iv) The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at March 31, 2022 is 12 years (March 31, 2021: 16 years).

(v)  Expected employer contribution for the year ending March 31, 2023 is Nil (March 31, 2022: Nil).

8. Net asset/(liability) recognized in balance sheet (including experience adjustment impact):

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Description 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18

Gratuity

1. Present value of defined benefit obligation
2. Fair value of plan assets
3. Status [surplus/(deficit)]

 (185.94)
 230.50 

 44.56 

 (116.25)
 181.74 

 65.49 

 (126.28)
 167.07 

 40.79 

 (96.92)
 141.11 

 44.19 

 (83.47)
 105.53 

 22.06 

Compensated absences 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18

1. Present value of defined benefit obligation
2. Fair value of plan assets
3. Status [surplus/(deficit)]

 (83.92)
 -   

 (83.92)

 (54.77)
 -   

 (54.77)

 (57.10)
 -   

 (57.10)

 (43.44)
 -   

 (43.44)

 (37.33)
 -   

 (37.33)

9. Sensitivity analysis
The table below outlines the effect on the service cost, the interest cost and the defined benefit obligation in the event of a decrease/
increase of 1% in the assumed rate of discount rate, salary escalation and inflation cost:

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Gratuity Assumption Change in assumption
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Impact on Scheme Liabilities

Discount rate 1% Increase in Discount Rate
1% Decrease in Discount Rate

 (19.90)
 23.53 

 (16.60)
 19.60 

Salary escalation 1% Increase in Salary Escalation Rate1% Decrease in Salary 
Escalation Rate

 23.38 
 (20.13)

 19.79 
 (16.57)

Compensated Absences 
Assumption

Change in assumption
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation

Discount rate 1% Increase in Discount Rate
1% Decrease in Discount Rate

 (8.71)
 10.32 

 (7.84)
 9.59 

Salary escalation rate 1% Increase in Salary Escalation Rate
1% Decrease in Salary Escalation Rate

 10.25 
 (8.81)

 9.68 
 (8.04)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this 
is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit 
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the 

projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability 
recognised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

10. The benefits are defined on the basis of final salary and the period of service and paid as lump sum at exit. The plan design means 
the risks commonly affecting the liabilities and the financial results are expected to be:

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the 
defined benefit obligation will tend to increase. 

Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation 

Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, 
withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and 
depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. It is important not to overstate withdrawals 
because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year as compared to a long 
service employee.

Change in Leave Balances : This is the risk of variability of results due to a significant variation from expected accumulation of leave 
balances. All other aspects remaining same, higher than expected increase in the leave balances will increase the defined benefit 
obligation.

35A. Fair Value Measurements
Financial instruments by category and fair value hierarchy

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) 
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial 
statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the company has classified 
its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows 
underneath the table.

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

As at March 31, 2022
Amortised 

cost 
FVTPL FVOCI 

Total 
carrying 

value 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Investments 
- Equity instruments (Refer Note 

(a) below)
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other Bank balances
Other financial assets

 -   

 22,964.89 
 14,617.87 

 7,208.94 
 1,564.30 

-

-
-
-
-

 
2,564.91 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 2,564.91 

 22,964.89 
 14,617.87 

 7,208.94 
 1,564.30 

-

-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

2,564.91 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

2,564.91 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

Total financial assets  46,356.00 - 2,564.91  48,920.91 - -  2,564.91  2,564.91 

Financial liabilities

Short term borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

 79,000.00 
 13.55 

 64,474.46 
 1,246.95 

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

 79,000.00 
 13.55 

 64,474.46 
 1,246.95 

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

Total financial liabilities  1,44,734.96 - - 1,44,734.96 - - - -

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

As at March 31, 2021
Amortised 

cost 
FVTPL FVOCI 

Total 
carrying 

value 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Investments 
- Equity instruments (Refer Note 

(a) below)
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other Bank balances
Other financial assets

-   

14,268.13 
 15,420.42 

 8.24 
 1,128.69 

-

-
-
-
-

3,262.66 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

3,262.66 

 14,268.13 
 15,420.42 

 8.24 
 1,128.69 

-

-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

 3,262.66 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 3,262.66 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

Total financial assets  30,825.48 - 3,262.667 34,088.14 - -  3,262.66  3,262.66 

Financial liabilities
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(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

As at March 31, 2021
Amortised 

cost 
FVTPL FVOCI 

Total 
carrying 

value 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Short term borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities

 -   
 16.51 

 26,487.31 
 444.03 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 16.51 

 26,487.31 
 444.03 

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

Total financial liabilities  26,947.85 - - 26,947.85 - - - -

(a) The equity securities which are not held for trading, and for which the company has made an irrevocable election at initial 
recognition to recognise changes in fair value through OCI rather than profit or loss as these are strategic investments and the 
company considered this to be more relevant.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little 
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument 
is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This 
is the case for unlisted equity securities.

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

(a) For unlisted equity securities, the fair values have been determined based on discounted cash flows.

(b) The carrying amount of remaining financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values.

(iii) Disclosures related to unlisted equity shares categorised through level 3

(a) The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the periods ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars Unlisted equity shares Total

As at April 1, 2020
Gains (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income

 2,444.56 
 818.10 

 2,444.56 
 818.10 

As at March 31, 2021  3,262.66  3,262.66

Gains (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income  (697.75)  (697.75)

As at March 31, 2022  2,564.91  2,564.91 

(b) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Particulars
Fair value as at

Significant unobservable inputs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Unlisted equity shares  2,564.91  3,262.66 Weighted average cost of capital

A quantitative sensitivity analysis as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as shown below:

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise)

Significant unobservable inputs - Weighted average cost of capital March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Impact of 1% Decrease
Impact of 1% Increase

370.43
-330.79

481.10
-428.33

(c) Valuation processes

The finance department of the company performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting 
purposes, including level 3 fair values. Discussions of valuation processes and results are held in the finance department once 
every year, in line with the company’s reporting period.

The main level 3 input for unlisted equity securities used by the company is derived and evaluated as follows:

- Weighted average cost of capital are based on beta of companies operating in similar industry considering inter alia the 
nature of business, stage of current operations, etc.

(iv) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, lease liabilities and other 
financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

35B. Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprises of borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of 
these financial instruments is to manage short-term cash flow and generate finances for the Company’s capital expenditure program. 
The Company has various financial assets such as trade receivable, long-term deposits, short-term deposits and cash, which arise directly 
from its operations.

Risk exposures and responses

The Company manages its exposure to key financial risks in accordance with the direction of Board of Directors. The main risks that could 
adversely affect the Company’s financial assets, liabilities or future cash flows are market risks, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and 
credit risk. Management and board of directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below:

(i) Market risks

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
The Company’s financial instrument mainly affected by market prices risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk 
and other price risk which include equity price risk and price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk includes investments, 
trade receivables, other financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities.

(a) Foreign currency risks

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the company’s operating 
activities. The finance department of the company continuously monitors the foreign exchange fluctuations on the basis of which any 
material adverse effect on the company is identified and additional remedial measures, if any, are taken.

The company’s foreign currency exposure at the end of the reporting period expressed in Rs. (foreign currency multiplied by closing 
rate) are as follows:

Particulars
March 31, 2022

USD
March 31, 2021

USD

Financial assets

Trade receivables  13,532.67  10,291.59 

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets)  13,532.67  10,291.59 

Financial liabilities

Trade payables  20,758.23  6,617.38 

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities)  20,758.23  6,617.38 

Net exposure to foreign currency risk (assets less liabilities)  (7,225.56)  3,674.21 

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rate, with all other variables held 
constant:

Particulars
Changes in USD 

rate (%)
Foreign currency (payable)/

receivable (net)
Effect on profit 

before tax

March 31, 2022 5%  (7,225.56)  (361.28)

-5%  361.28 

March 31, 2021 5%  3,674.21  183.71 

-5%  (183.71)

(b) Interest rate risks

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cashflows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. As the company generally has only short term borrowings in the nature of loans carrying a fixed rate of interest from the 
holding company, there is no significant exposure to the interest rate risk but only to the extent of recognition of interest portion of 
financial instrument classified at amortized cost. The company manages it interest risk exposure relating to the financial instrument 
classified at amortised cost by using the market interest rate as the effective interest rate and the changes in the assets and liabilities is 
accounted for as interest income/expenses with respect to financial assets/financial liabilities respectively.

However, as there is no significant exposure to the interest rate risk the sensitivity analysis has not been performed by the Company.

(c) Equity price risks

Equity price risk is related to the change in market reference price of the investments in equity securities. The Company holds investment 
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for strategic rather than trading purposes.

The Company does not have any investment in the equity shares apart from the investment in Bhubaneswar Power Private Limited 
which is a fellow subsidiary and is fair valued in the financial statements. The shares of Bhubaneswar Power Private Limited are unlisted. 
They are however exposed to changes in value arising from changes in expectations of equity returns, etc.

(ii) Credit risks

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from the counter party failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms 
and obligations, credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of the credit worthiness as well as 
concentration risks.

Financial instruments that are subjected to concentration of credit risk principally consists of trade receivables due from the holding 
company and fellow subsidiaries.

(iii) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to 
maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements.

The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit, which carry no/low mark to market risk and has sufficient owned funds to 
finance its existing and continuing commitments.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

Particulars
Carrying 
Amount

Contractual 
Cash flows 

Between 0 
to 1 years

Between 1 
to 3 Years 

Between 3 
to 5 years

More than 5 
years 

As at March 31, 2022

a) Short term borrowings
b) Lease Liabilities (Current and Non-current)
c) Trade payables
d) Other financial liabilities

 79,000.00 
 13.55 

 64,474.46 
 1,246.95 

 79,000.00 
 54.47 

 64,474.46 
 3,264.86 

 79,000.00 
 4.47 

 64,474.46 
 3,264.86 

 -   
 6.06 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 1.25 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 42.69 

 -   
 -   

As at March 31, 2021

a) Short term borrowings
b) Lease Liabilities (Current and Non-current)
c) Trade payables
d) Other financial liabilities

 -   
 16.51 

 26,487.31 
 444.03 

 -   
 58.94 

 26,487.31 
 444.03 

 -   
 4.47 

 26,487.31 
 444.03 

 -   
 8.94 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 2.21 

 -   
 -   

 -   
 43.32 

 -   
 -   

35C. Financial Ratios

S.No. Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Change Reference

i Current ratio (times)*  0.79  1.63 51% a

ii Net debt-equity ratio (times)#  1.09  (0.28) 488% b

iii Debt service coverage ratio (times)^  (2.85)  0.05 5976% c

iv Return on Equity (%)^ (169%) 2% (171%) d

v Inventory turnover ratio (times)^  0.30  1.56 81% e

vi Trade receivable turnover ratio (times)^  0.04  0.16 74% f

vii Trade payable turnover ratio(times)^  0.21  (0.23) 191% g

viii Net capital turnover ratio (times)^  (0.01)  0.59 101% h

ix Net profit ratio (%)^ (19%) 2% (21%) i

x Return on capital employed (%) # (130%) 3% (133%) j

xi Return on investment (%)^ (35%) 1% (36%) k

Reference note:

a) Current Ratio: (Total current assets/Current liabilities)

[Current liabilities: Total current liabilities - lease obligations]

b) Net Debt to Equity: Net Debt/Average Equity 

[Net debt: Current borrowings + Non-current and current lease liabilities - Cash and cash equivalents - Other balances with banks] 
[Average Equity: (Opening Equity+Closing Equity)/2]

c) Debt Service Coverage ratio : Earnings available for debt service divided by debt service. Earning for debt service = Net profit after 
taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and other amortisations + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of 
PP&E etc. Debt service = Interest and principal repayments including lease payments.

d) Return on Equity ratio : Profit After tax(PAT)/Average Equity, 

[Equity : Equity Share Capital + Reserves and Surplus]

[Average Equity: (Opening Equity+Closing Equity)/2]

e) Inventory Turnover: Average Inventory/Sale of Products 

[Average Inventory: (Opening Inventory+Closing Inventory)/2]

f ) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio: Average Debtors/Turnover

[Average Debtors: (Opening Debtors+Closing Debtors)/2]

g) Trade Payable Turnover Ratio:  Average Trade Payables /  Purchase,

[Purchases:  Total Expenses - Finance Cost- Depreciations & Amortisations - Employee Benefits Expenses - Royalty and Bid Premium]

[Average Trade Payable: (Opening Trade Payable+Closing Trade Payable)/2]

h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio : Average Working Capital/Turnover, 

[Average Working Capital  : (Opening Working Capital+Closing Working Capital)/2]

[Working Capital: Current Assets - Current Liabilities]

i) Net Profit Ratio: Net Profit after Tax/ Turnover

j) Return on capital Employed:EBIT/Capital Employed

[Capital Employed: Equity (Equity Share Capital + Reserves and Surplus) + Non-current borrowings + Current borrowings + Current 
maturities of long-term borrowings + Deferred Tax Liabilities]

[EBIT: Profit before tax +/(-) Exceptional Items + Finance Charges - Interest Income]

k) Return on Investment:EBIT/Total Assets

Reasons for variation in financial ratios

^Variation in coverage, turnover and other profitability ratios is primarily due to increase in turnover and loss incurred during the 
year ended March 31, 2022.

* The variation in current ratio as at March 31, 2022 as compared to March 31, 2021 is primarily due to increase in inventories, trade 
payables and loans.

# The variation as at March 31, 2022 as compared to March 31, 2021 is primarily due to increase in borrowings and equity is reduced 
due to losses during the year. 

36. Capital management
Risk management 

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to: 

- Safeguard their ability to continue as going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for 
other stakeholders, and

- Maintain optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes to economic conditions and strategic 
objectives of the company.

37. Net debt reconciliation
This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents
Lease liabilities
Current borrowings including accrued interest

 14,617.87 
 (13.55)

 (79,678.44)

 15,420.42 
 (16.51)
 (55.83)

Total  (65,074.12)  15,348.08 

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars

Liabilities from financing activities

TotalCash and cash 
equivalents

Lease 
liabilities

Current borrowings 
including accrued interest

Net debt as at April 1, 2020  2,296.76  (19.19)  (55.83)  2,221.74 

Cash flows 
Receipt of inter-corporate deposit
Repayment of inter-corporate deposit
Interest expense
Interest paid
Principal Repayment of Lease

  13,123.66 
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 (1.78)
 0.56 
 3.90 

 -   
 75,660.00 

 (75,660.00)
 (1,184.38)

 1,184.38 
 -   

 13,123.66 
 75,660.00 

 (75,660.00)
 (1,186.16)

 1,184.94 
 3.90 

Net debt as at March 31, 2021  15,420.42  (16.51)  (55.83)  15,348.08 
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(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars

Liabilities from financing activities

TotalCash and cash 
equivalents

Lease 
liabilities

Current borrowings 
including accrued interest

Cash flows 
Receipt of inter-corporate deposit
Repayment of inter-corporate deposit
Interest expense
Interest paid
Principal Repayment of Lease

 (802.55)
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   
 -   

 -   
 -   
 -   

 (1.52)
 0.91 
 3.57 

 -   
 (1,08,000.00)

 29,000.00 
 (1,586.45)

 963.84 
 -   

 (802.55) 
(1,08,000.00)

 29,000.00 
 (1,587.97)

 964.75 
 3.57 

Net debt as at March 31, 2022  14,617.87  (13.55)  (79,678.44)  (65,074.12)

38. The Company is engaged in the business of Excavating Chrome Ore & Producing Ferro Chrome, which come under a single business 
segment known as Ferro Alloys. The financial performance relating to this single business segment is evaluated regularly by the 
Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer (Chief Operating Decision Makers). The Company is domiciled in India.

39. Impact of Covid 19 on business
The Company has assessed the possible impact of COVID-19 on its financial statements based on the internal and external 
information and concluded no adjustments are required in these financial statements. The Company continues to monitors changes 
in future economic conditions. 

40. Information relating to Micro and Small Enterprises (MSEs):

(Amounts in ` Lakhs, unless stated otherwise) 

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021

(i) Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of 
the accounting year 
Principal  3,203.03 5.85 

Interest  259.03 -

(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 along with the amount of payment 
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year 

- -

(iii) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under 
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year 

- -

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
interest specified under this Act

- -

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year  259.03 -

The above particulars, as applicable, have been given in respect of MSEs to the extent they could be identified on the basis of 
information available with the Company. 

The Company has not filed its MSME returns for earlier years due to migration from previous accounting software to ERP. The Company 
has sent confirmations to the vendors since the Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises vide notification no S.O. 2119(E) dated 
June 26, 2020, had revised the criteria for classification of enterprises. The Company is in the process of collating the data and will file the 
returns in due course. 

41. The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment received 
Indian Parliament approval and Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India and 
subsequently on November 13, 2020 draft rules were published and invited for stakeholders’ suggestions. However, the date on 
which the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into 
effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

42. The Company has received demand notice from the Office of Deputy Director of Mines on assessment of shortfall in dispatch of 
Chromite Ore in respect of Sukinda for the period July 23, 2021 to October 22, 2021 for Rs 5,620.56 lakhs. As per Rule 12A(1A) of the 
Minerals (Other than Atomic and Hydro Carbons Energy Minerals) Concession Rules, 2016 as amended, any shortfall in dispatch from 
the minimum dispatch required shall be assessed on a quarterly basis. A reconciliation of the dispatch shall be done at the end of 
the year for that year as a whole. If on such reconciliation, it is noted that the Company has dispatched more than or equal to the 
minimum dispatch required, any amount paid by Company for the shortfall in dispatch in any quarter or quarters of that year shall 
be adjusted with the amounts to be paid for the last quarter of that year.

The Company has made good the shortfall in dispatch quantity of the aforementioned period in the subsequent quarters i.e. quarter 
2 and 3 of the operational year of the mine. Further, the Company expects to meet the requisite dispatch target of chromite ore in 
the last quarter as well and accordingly, the demand is not outstanding as at the year end.

43. (i) Details of benami property held: No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for holding benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

(ii) Willful defaulter: The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
government authority.

(iii) Relationship with struck off companies:  The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 
2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

(iv) Compliance with number of layers of companies:  The Company does not have any subsidiary as at the Balance Sheet date, 
accordingly compliance with section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of layers) 
Rules, 2017 does not arise.

(v) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements: The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has 
an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

(vi) Utilisation of borrowed funds, share premium or any other sources or kinds of funds:

(A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 

a. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b. Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(vii) Undisclosed income: There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

(viii) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency: The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency 
during the current or previous year.

(ix) Valuation of PP&E, intangible asset and investment property: The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment 
(including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

(x) The Group has six core investment companies as a part of the group - Tata Sons Private Limited, Tata Industries Limited, Panatone 
Finvest Limited, Tata Capital Limited, TMF Holdings Limited and T S Investments.

(xi) There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(xii) During the year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 500.00 lakhs, in aggregate, from the 
banks on the basis of security of current assets. The Company was not required to file any quarterly returns or statements as no 
such request were made by the banks.

44. The Company has incurred loss after tax of Rs. 88,582.79 lakhs during the year. The Company expects to generate the cash flows from 
improvement in operations and increased efficiencies, by which it expects to recover losses in near future. Accordingly, accounts are 
prepared on going concern basis. The company continues to receive funds from holding company for short term purposes as and 
when required.

45. Pursuant to an order pronounced by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench (‘Hon’ble NCLT’) on April 7, 2022, 
the Company completed the acquisition of controlling stake of 90% in Rohit Ferro-Tech Limited (‘RFT’) on April 11, 2022 under the 
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (‘CIRP’) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (‘Code’). As the acquisition has taken 
place subsequent to the year end, there is no impact on the reported amounts in these financial statements. 

For Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number : 304026E/E-300009

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Amit Jain
Partner
Membership No. 098053
Gurugram, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
D B Sundara Ramam
Chairman
DIN:06437027
Jamshedpur, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
Pankaj Kumar Satija
Managing Director
DIN:06689554
Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
J.K. Panda
Company Secretary
Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022

Sd/-
N S Raghu
Chief Financial Officer
Bhubaneswar, June 29, 2022
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INDEPENDENT LIMITED ASSURANCE STATEMENT  

 

 

To  
The Stakeholders of TATA STEEL MINING LTD.  
 

 
Introduction and objectives of work  
 
Bureau Veritas has been engaged by TATA STEEL MINING LTD (hereinafter abbreviated as “TSML”) 
to provide limited assurance over selected sustainability performance indicators for inclusion in its 
Integrated Report 2021-22 and website. This Assurance Statement applies to the related information 
included within the scope of work described below.  
 

 
Scope of work  
 
The scope of our work was limited to assurance over the following information included within TSML’s 
Integrated Report 2021-22 (‘the Report’) for the period 1st of April 2021 to the 31st of March 2022 
and within the report section listed below.(the ‘Selected Information’) 
 

 
Value Creation Approach at TSML 
 
 Business Model  
 Strategic  Priorities   
 Stakeholder Engagement  
 Corporate Governance  
 Risk Management   

                              

Capital-wise Performance at TSML 
 
 Financial Capital 
 Manufactured Capital  
 Intellectual Capital  
 Human Capital  
 Social and Relationship Capital  
 Natural Capital  

                           

 
Reporting criteria  
 
The Report is prepared in accordance with the Integrated Reporting framework of the Value Reporting 
Foundation, formed following the merger of the International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC) and 
the Sustainable Accounting Standards Board. (SASB) The Report   presents an overview of how   
organisation’s   value creation process contributes to the United Nations Sustainable Development 
Goals (UN SDGs). 
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Limitations and exclusions  
 
 Excluded from the scope of our work  is the verification of information related to  
 Activities outside the defined verification period 
 Financial data taken from the report which are audited by external financial auditor 
 The appropriateness of the  reporting  criteria , and  
 Other information included in the TSML report  

 
This limited assurance engagement relies on a risk based selected sample of sustainability data and 

the associated limitations that this entails. The scope of a limited assurance engagement is substantially 

less than for reasonable assurance both in terms of the risk assessment procedures and in performing 

the procedures to address the identified risks. This independent statement should not be relied upon to 

detect all errors, omissions or misstatements that may exist. 

 
Responsibilities  
 
This preparation and presentation of the Selected Information in the Report are the sole responsibility 
of the management of TSML.  
Bureau Veritas was not involved in the drafting of the Report or of the Reporting Criteria. Our 
responsibilities were to:  

 obtain limited assurance about whether the Selected Information has been prepared in 
accordance with the Reporting Criteria;  

 form an independent conclusion based on the assurance procedures performed and evidence 
obtained; and  

 report our conclusions to the management of TSML 
 

 
Assessment Standard  
 
We performed our work to a limited level of assurance in accordance with the International Standard 
on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000 Revised, Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or 
Reviews of Historical Financial Information (effective for assurance reports dated on or after December 
15, 2015), issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. 
 

 
Summary of work performed  
 
As part of its independent verification, Bureau Veritas undertook the following activities remotely:  
 
1. Conducted interviews with relevant personnel of TSML;  

2. Carried out  virtual site audits, selected employing a risk-based approach, of Raw Material Locations, 
the manufacturing locations, sales & Marketing activities, Value chain related initiatives & Community 
initiatives.;  

3. Reviewed documentary evidence produced by TSML;  

4. Agreed a sample of the Selected Information to the corresponding source documentation;  

5. Report our conclusions and recommendation in a formal Management Report to TSML.  
 

 
 
 
 



 

-3- 
 

 
Conclusion  
 
On the basis of our methodology and the activities described above, nothing has come to our attention 
to indicate that the Selected Information has not been properly prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with the Reporting Criteria.  
 
 

Statement of Independence, Integrity and Competence  
 

Bureau Veritas is an independent professional services company that specialises in Quality, Health, 
Safety & Social and Environmental management with almost 190 years history in providing independent 
assurance services. Bureau Veritas has implemented a Code of Ethics across the business to maintain 
high ethical standards among staff in their day-to-day business activities. We are particularly vigilant in 
the prevention of conflicts of interest. 
 
The assurance team has extensive experience in conducting assurance over environmental, social, 
ethical and health & safety information, systems and processes an excellent understanding of Bureau 
Veritas standard methodology for the Assurance of Sustainability Reports. 
 

 

Bureau Veritas (India) Private Limited 
Address: 72 Business Park, 9th Floor, MIDC Cross Road ‘C’, Andheri (East), Mumbai- 400 093 India 

 
 
 

                                               
 

Subrata MAJUMDAR Rupam BARUAH 
Lead Assurer Technical Reviewer 
                                                                                                        Regional Head–East &Centre  
                                                                                                        South Region (India) 

Date: 20/08/2022 

 

 



 

 

 

BUREAU VERITAS (INDIA) PVT. LTD. 

Certification Business 

 

         Date: 20/08/2022 

 

 
To, 
Mr. Devraj Tiwari 
Assistant General Manager  
External Affairs & Sustainability, 
Tata Steel Mining Limited. 
  

 

ENGAGEMENT FOR ASSURANCE OF TATA STEEL MINING LTD  

INTEGRATED REPORT 2021-22 

 

1. Executive Summary 

Bureau Veritas was engaged by TATA STEEL MINING  LTD (hereinafter abbreviated “TSML”) to 

provide assurance over its Integrated Report 2021-22 (hereafter referred to as “the Report”).  The scope 

of work involved:  

 Data and information included in Integrated Report 2021-22 for the reporting period 
[01/04/2021 to 31/03/2022].   

 Appropriateness and robustness of underlying reporting systems and processes, used to 
collect, analyze and review the information reported;  

 Evaluation of the Report against the principles of the Integrated Reporting framework of the 
Value Reporting Foundation. 

In addition to our Assurance Statement, which is included in the Report, this Management Letter  
provides more details on the findings and recommendations from our work and is intended as an input 
to TSML  management.  
  
 

Main assurance conclusions:  

On the basis of our methodology and the activities described above, it is our opinion that: 

 Nothing has come to our attention to indicate that the reviewed statements within the scope 
of our verification are inaccurate and the information included therein is not fairly stated;  

 It is our opinion that TSML has established appropriate systems for the collection, 
aggregation and analysis of quantitative data such as Environmental, Health & Safety, Human 
Resource, Labor & Community Interventions as well as Product and Investor related data. 
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Key strengths and areas of good practice observed by Bureau Veritas are listed in Section 6 below.  

                                                                                                                                                                                     

2. Objectives and Scope of Work  

The objectives of our assurance were mainly to evaluate the TSML Report against the principles of the 

Integrated Reporting Framework for report content and report quality.  

To achieve the objectives above, we completed the following tasks:  

 Desk Review of the Report 
 Interviews with key personnel handling responsibilities 
 Review of stakeholder engagement activities 
 Review and evaluation of data and other information in the report. 

 

3.  Assessment of stakeholder consultation process 

The stakeholder consultation exercise was carried out through the creation of effective mechanisms for 

concerned stakeholder groups to approach and register their viewpoints on identified key issues. This 

is seen to be a comprehensive process similar to the previous year. The exercise has included 

shareholders & investors, customers, suppliers, employees, media and Government. The stakeholder 

engagement process is regular and on-going and takes place through formal as well as informal 

meetings. Stakeholders could provide their views and opinions in many ways such as investor queries 

and replies thereto, customer satisfaction feedback and employee communication.  

Stakeholder concern areas were mapped and responses were identified to address the same. The 

consultation ensured that stakeholders could offer their views and rank issues on levels of significance 

and priority. The feedback was analysed to determine issues of materiality. Report focuses mainly on 

the issues identified that are highly material to the organization as well as stakeholders. We observe 

that the exercise has been effective in identifying topics material to TSML and its stakeholders. 

 

4.  Disclosure of management approach 

The management approach that TSML has adopted in respect of reported aspects has been described 

in the report and is apparent from discussions held with the interviewees. The identified approach 

adopted is suited to address the issues identified as of concern to TSML’s business and its 

stakeholders.  

 

5.  Review and comments on the data provided in the integrated report 

The data pertaining to material aspects was evaluated for its adequacy and completeness. The audit 

was carried out essentially on a sampling basis. Our audit showed that the data in the report was backed 

up by corresponding field records maintained by responsible persons in charge of business operations 

and no data in the report was found that was unsupported by such records.  
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6. Areas of good practice and recommendations for improvement 

Bureau Veritas was pleased to observe that TSML has put in place, over the reporting period:  

 Robust & effective Risk Management by identifying, monitoring & mitigating risks by 

implementation of strategic objectives and meeting commitments to stakeholders.  

 Application of updated geology and mine planning competencies thereby facilitating 

sustainable mining operation.   

 Introduced geotechnical window mapping to monitor behaviour of weak planes as mining face 

advances and to monitor stability of benches. 

 Conserving mineral resources by using lean grade Chrome Oreblended with higher grade ore  

 67901 lives touched through CSR activities.  

 Development of new products like Ultra low Phosphorous & low Silicon Ferrochrome initiated  

 Installed 108 MLD on site Central Effluent   Treatment Plant  at Sukinda Chromite Mine, 

which treats  100% effluent generated. 

 Organisation need to periodically review material topics based on impact on business & 

importance to stakeholders.                                                                                

We trust that TSML will note our feedback from the assurance engagement and take suitable steps 

towards the continual improvement of its sustainability performance. 

  

For Bureau Veritas (India) Pvt. Ltd. 

 
 
 
 
Saikat  DASGUPTA  
(Regional Head Certification- East) 
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